Resettlement and Indigenous Peoples Plan

February 2013

IND: North Eastern State Roads Investment Program

Udaipur-Melaghar Subproject (TR02)

Prepared by Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region for the Asian Development Bank.

CURRENCY EQUIVALENTS

(as of 21 February	2013)	
--------------------	-------	--

Currency unit	_	Indian rupee (Rs)
Rs1.00	=	\$0.0184145106
\$1.00	=	Rs 54.305000

ABBREVIATIONS

		ABBREVIATIONS
ADB	—	Asian Development Bank
BPL	-	Below poverty line
DC	-	District Collector
DP	_	Displaced person
DPMC	—	Design and Project Management Consultants
DPR	_	Detailed Projecr Report
EA	_	Executing Agency
GOI	_	Government of India
GOT	_	Government of Tripura
GRC	_	Grievance Redressal Committee
HH	_	Household
IA	_	Implementing Agency
IPP	_	Indigenous Peoples Plan
IR	_	involuntary resettlement
LA	_	land acquisition
LAA	_	Land Acquisition Act, 1894
LAP	_	Land acquisition plan
LVC	_	Land Valuation Committee
MDONER	_	Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region
MDR	_	Major district road
NE	_	north east
NESRIP	_	North Eastern State Roads Investment Program
NGO	_	nongovernment organization
NH	_	national highway
NRRP	_	National Rehabilitation and Resettlement Policy, 2007
PD	_	Project Director
PIU	_	Project implementation unit
PWD	_	Public Works Department
R&R	_	resettlement and rehabilitation
RO	_	resettlement officer
ROW	_	right-of-way
RP	_	resettlement plan
RU	_	resettlement unit
SC	_	scheduled caste
SDP	_	state domestic product
SH	_	state highway
SOR	_	Schedule of Rates
SPS	_	Safeguard Policy Statement
ST	_	scheduled tribe
TOR	_	terms of reference
WHH	_	women-headed household

NOTE In this report, "\$" refers to US dollars.

This resettlement and indigenous peoples plan is a document of the borrower. The views expressed herein do not necessarily represent those of ADB's Board of Directors, Management, or staff, and may be preliminary in nature. Your attention is directed to the "terms of use" section of this website.

In preparing any country program or strategy, financing any project, or by making any designation of or reference to a particular territory or geographic area in this document, the Asian Development Bank does not intend to make any judgments as to the legal or other status of any territory or area.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Ι.	INTRODUCTION	1
	A. OVERVIEW	1
	B. PROFILE OF TRIPURA	1
	C. PROJECT DESCRIPTION	3
	D. SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES OF THE RPE. METHODOLOGY ADOPTED	3
	F. PROJECT BENEFITS AND IMPACTS	3 3 3 5
	G. MEASURES TO MINIMIZE RESETTLEMENT IMPACTS	5
II.	SCOPE OF RESETTLEMENT IMPACTS	7
III.	FINDINGS OF THE CENSUS SURVEY	8
	A. OBJECTIVE OF THE CENSUS SURVEY	8
	B. SOCIOECONOMIC PROFILE OF THE DISPLACED HOUSEHOLDS	8
	C. TYPE AND EXTENT OF PROJECT IMPACTS	14
IV.	CONSULTATION, PARTICIPATION AND DISCLOSURE	19
	A. AWARENESS ABOUT THE PROJECT	19
	B. WILLINGNESS TO COOPERATE	19
	C. PERCEIVED PROJECT BENEFITSD. VIEWS ON COMPENSATION AND REHABILITATION	20 20
	E. OTHER SUGGESTIONS FROM THE COMMUNITY	20
	F. DISCLOSURE OF RESETLEMENT PLAN	23
v .	IMPACTS ON WOMEN AND INDIGENOUS PEOPLE	25
	A. GENDER IMPACTS OF THE PROJECT	25
	B. IMPACT ON INDIGENOUS PEOPLE (IP)	26
VI.	POLICY FRAMEWORK AND ENTITLEMENTS	27
	A. POLICY FRAMEWORK - REVIEW OF RESETTLEMENT POLICIES AND	
		27
	B. INVOLUNTARY RESETTLEMENT SAFEGUARD PRINCIPLES FOR THE PROJECT	29
	C. VALUATION OF AFFECTED ASSETS	31
	D. ENTITLEMENT MATRIX	32
VII.	GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM	37
VIII.	INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION	39
	A. KEY INSTITUTIONS	39
	B. PROJECT IMPLEMENTATION UNIT (PIU)	39
	C. NON GOVERNMENT ORGANIZATION (NGO)/ FIELD STAFF D. INSTITUTIONAL CAPACITY DEVELOPMENT PROGRAM	40 41
	E. IMPLEMENTATION SCHEDULE	41
IX.	RESETTLEMENT BUDGET	43
	A. RESETTLEMENT BUDGET	43
	B. RESETTLEMENT FINANCING	45
Х.	MONITORING AND REPORTING	46

Annexures:

1.	Location Map	51
2.	Typical Cross Section of Road	52
3.	Letter received from PWD regarding minimization of impacts on structures	54
4.	Census and Socioeconomic Survey Questionnaire	57
5.	Details of Displaced Persons	61
6.	Details of Properties Affected	74
7.	Community Consultations Attendance Sheet	79
8.	Comparison between LA Act, NRRP, and ADB SPS	89
9.	TOR for NGO for RP Implementation	93
10.	TOR for External Expert for Monitoring	99

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Project Description

1. The proposed North East State Roads Investment Program (NESRIP) is a part of Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region (MDONER) initiative to bring the North Eastern Region into the mainstream of development. The project will assist the eight states in the Region to develop their road network and establish reliable road connectivity to the national and sub regional road networks. It will also build the capacity of road sector institutions at state level and contribute to effective and efficient management of the road assets. The proposed subproject road section of Udaipur – Melaghar (20.28 kms) in the state of Tripura is proposed under Tranche II of this Program. The subproject aims to augment the road connectivity in the state so as to facilitate socio-economic development in the area. The subproject would entail upgradation and improvement of the existing road leading to easier access and availability of essential services to the communities living along this road. Improved roads would imply better and frequent transport facilities and increased mobility for the local population. Also the subproject road shall augment connectivity with other MDR and NH 44 which ultimately connects to the State capital, Agartala.

2. The Project road section (TR02) lies in West Tripura and South Tripura district of the State. The road which is 20.28 kilometers in length takes off at Udaipur village from National Highway 44 at Km 51.200 (from Agartala). The road passes through plain and rolling terrain all along its length and lies in East –West direction. The width of the existing carriageway varies from 3.5 m to 5.5 m i.e. single lane and intermediate carriageway. The existing carriageway is proposed to be widened as 2-lane, with 7 m wide carriageway and earthen shoulders 2.5 m wide on either side. Land use along the Project road is mainly agricultural and built up areas scattered along. The river Gumati crosses the Project road at Km 13. For considerable length the Project road is aligned along the river bank, some- times close to the river. The Project road ends at *Melaghar* at the junction with another MDR, joining *Melaghar* village to NH-44 and further leading to Agartala. The road passes through eleven (11) villages and is an imprtant road for International border trade between India and Bangladesh.

Objectives of Resettlement Plan

3. The objective of this Resettlement Plan (RP) is to mitigate all unavoidable negative social and resettlement impacts caused due to the upgradation of TR02. Further it aims to restore the livelihoods by provision of compensation to the displaced persons at replacement cost and other assistances as per agreed entitlement framework. It also lays additional emphasis on support to the vulnerable affected households.

Socio-Economic Profile of DPs

4. The average household size of affected households is 4.3. The literacy rate amongst displaced persons is high at 92.5% with only 7.45% Affected Persons (APs) are illiterate. 49.94 % APs have received education up to primary level and 16.61% are graduates. In terms of social stratification, 48.9% of the APs belong to General caste, 33.18% of the APs to Other Backward Classes and rest belong to Scheduled Caste category. In terms of employment status, approximately one third (36.61%) of APs are employed and the rest 63.39% are unemployed. The percentage of unemployment is highest in *Udaipur* village which is 65.38%. With respect to occupation pattern, Business/Trade is the main occupation for majority of APs. 57.32% of APs are engaged in business related activities, while 12.74% are engaged in agriculture and related activities and 8.28% is non agricultural labour. The remaining APs are engaged in Govt. service and Private services. 44% APs earn a monthly

household income of more than Rs. 4000/, while 19.5% of the households have a monthly income of less than Rs 2000 per month.

Resettlement Impacts

The project road traverses through a total of eleven villages namely Udaipur, 5. Rajarbag, Khilpara, Rajdhar Nagar, Jamjuri, Dudhpurkarni, Palatana, Kakraban, Shilghati(Kishoregani), Mohanbhog, and Purba Chandigarh. The total land along the entire 20.8 km stretch is Government land. The Right of Way (ROW) is available throughout the proposed alignment across eleven villages that lie en-route. The improvement proposal will be contained within the available ROW wherever possible, by appropriate design detailing to avoid land or road side property acquisition. No private land would be acquired for the project. Further as instructed by the Public Works Department (PWD), impacts were minimized on encroachments within the ROW. Despite efforts to minimize impacts, as per census survey it is recorded that a total 279 HHs in 8 villages would be impacted as a result of the Project. Out of the 279 affected housheolds, majority 214 HHs will incurr impact on their residential and commercial structures. Out of the total of 214 households whose builtup structures are affected, 32 are residential, 174 are commercial and 8 are residential cum commercial structures. Seventy five percent of the affected structures are temporary in nature.

6. Other losses will mainly include loss of trees, cattle sheds, irrigation units and boundary walls. Impacts are recorded on 1852 trees and other assets such as water tank and tube wells. In addition to private properties, 1 small temple will be relocated.

Rehabilitation Options

7. During the census survey, affected households were asked about their preference of rehabilitation options during the census and socio-economic surveys. 92% households indicated a preference for self-relocation within existing village or town area.

Vulnerable DPs

8. A total of 53 households are recorded as vulnerable households. 43 of these are categorized as BPL (Below Poverty Line) households, while 10 households are headed by women. Some of the BPL households also belong to Scheduled Caste category.

Gender Impacts of the Project

9. There are 10 women-headed households who would be affected as a result of the Project. These housheolds would be be provided with additional assistance as per the agreed entitlement framework of this RP. The Project by making available an all-weather roads with safe connectivity and better transport services will benefit the access of the women of the area to socio-economic facilities.

Impacts of the Project on Indigenous People

10. No tribal households would be impacted by the project and therefore Indigenous Peoples Plan (IPP) is not required for this sub-project.

Consultation with Displaced Persons

11. During the detailed survey community consultations were held along the project corridor at many of the villages that lay en-route. All relevant aspects of project were discussed with the village communities and panchayat members during the consultations

held at 6 villages – *Shilghati, Jamjuri, Khilpara, Purba Chandigar, Mohanbhog* and *Kakrabon.* A total of one hundred and one (101) persons participated in these meetings. Communities understood such road-widening works as part of the development works that is taken up by the government departments. Widening of the road was perceived by the communities as a very critical infrastructural requirement in their area. They also stated that improved communication and access would lead to reduction in savings in time and fuel costs; enhance access to markets for their agricultural produce and also to educational and medical facilities; provide a boost to tourism and lead to overall socio-economic development of the area.

12. Key concerns included: impacts on livelihood as widening would impact their structures either partially or fully; community properties such as waiting shed and parking areas that would be affected and thereby needing suitable replacement; trees that provided shade to the passers-by; businesses due to inconvenience caused to the regular clientele. They requested that minimum disruption be caused at the time of construction. With respect to compensation and rehabilitation, communities stated that adequate compensation should be paid for all impacted structures that are owned either privately or are used by the communities. Besides, they requested resettlement and rehabilitation in an appropriate manner for all persons who were either physically and/or economically displaced. Financial assistance for those persons who lose their livelihood was a specific request. Communities requested that any construction should start only after payment of full compensation. Another request was to carry out compensatory afforestation in the same area as where trees are being cut.

13. Women particularly expressed satisfaction at the road widening project. They observed that the existing road was narrow and uneven at many places and hence risky, particularly for their children. They also stated that a wider road will be much easier and safer for travel. There are 10 households headed by women that shall be affected as a result of the Project.

Resettlement Policy Framework

14. The Resettlement Framework has been formulated in discussion with State Government and the ADB and is in compliance with the national policies of India and the ADB Safeguard Policy Statement, 2009 (SPS-2009). The Policy Framework forms the basis of provision of entitlements and other rehabilitation measures proposed under the project. This Entitlement Matrix has been included in the RP. It further describes the additional assistance for the vulnerable APs and other rehabilitation measures.

Institutional Arrangements

15. For resettlement activities, the Executing Agency i.e. MDONER will do the overall coordination, planning, implementation, and financing. The MDONER will create a Resettlement Cell to ensure timely and effective implementation of RPs. The MDONER will coordinate with State PWDs/PIUs for project level RP related activities. The Project Director at PIU will be responsible for overall implementation of R&R activities according to the Plan. The PIU will have a Resettlement Unit (RU) with at least one full-time Resettlement Officer for the duration of resettlement activities. A well-qualified NGO / or trained field staff from PWD in this field will be engaged to assist the PIU in the implementation of the RP. The Grievance Redressal Committee (GRC) will be constituted at PIU level in order to assist the APs in resolving queries and complaints. The committee will comprise of Project Director, Resettlement Officer, representative from local NGOs, elected representative from *Zila parishad*, representatives of Displaced Persons including vulnerable groups and women in the committee. The GRC will meet at least once in three weeks to resolve the pending grievances.

Monitoring and Reporting

16. Internal monitoring will be the responsibility of the PIUs/RU and NGO/ field staff. An External Monitor will be engaged by PIU for verification of the monitoring information collected by the PIU. The External Monitor will carry out regular monitoring and evaluation, and report on a bi-annual basis to the ADB.

Cost Estimate

17. The R&R cost estimate for this Project road includes compensation for lost assets such as trees and structures, resettlement assistance and cost of relocation of common property resources as per applicability of the policy. It also includes the contingency charges and the cost of hiring NGO and M&E. The replacement cost is determined in terms of the market rate. The total estimated R&R cost of the Project is Rs. 23,778,006/- Rupees Twenty three million seven hundred and seventy eight thousand and six only.

Implementation Schedule

18. The period for implementation of RP has been taken from third quarter of 2013 to last quarter of 2014. Typical RP related activities that require to be performed shall include: planning, surveying, assessing, institution identification, DP participation, and implementation besides monitoring that shall be carried concurrently and will continue beyond the period of RP implementation and culminate with a post-implementation evaluation.

I. INTRODUCTION

A. Overview

1. The total geographical area of the North Eastern region is 2, 62,179 sq km which is nearly 8% of the total area of India. In terms of population, the region has 39 million people residing here which comprises of approximately 3.8% of the total population. The region, though rich in natural resources, remains one of the most economically backward regions in the country. The overall growth rate in the region has remained low over the past decades and has been characterised by lack of infrastructure facilities and basic amenities. The per capita income in the region in the year 2001 was Rs. 6,625 which was much below the national average of Rs. 10,254. In India, around 260 million people are living below the poverty line. In the north east region, around 13 million people live below the poverty line according to NSSO"s 55th Round Survey.

The proposed North East State Roads Investment Program (NESRIP) is a part of 2. Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region's (MDONER)¹ initiative to bring the North Eastern Region into the mainstream of development. The project will assist the eight states of the region to develop their road network and establish reliable road connectivity to the national and sub regional road networks and thus facilitate regional integration and trade flows. The project will also support capacity building of road sector institutions at the state level and contribute to effective and efficient management of the road assets. The proposed subproject road section of Udaipur - Melaghar (20.28 kms) in the state of Tripura is proposed under Tranche II of this Program. The subproject aims to augment the road connectivity in the state so as to facilitate socio-economic development in the area. The subproject would entail upgradation and improvement of the existing road leading to easier access and availability of essential services to the communities living along this road. Improved roads would imply better and frequent transport facilities and increased mobility for the local population. Also the subproject road shall augment connectivity with other MDR and NH 44 which ultimately connects to the State capital, Agartala.

B. Profile of Tripura

3. Tripura is one of the eight states in the north eastern part of India and is surrounded by Bangladesh on the north, south, and west. The Indian states of Assam and Mizoram lie to the east. After independence of India, an agreement of merger of Tripura with the Indian Union was signed on September 9, 1947 and the administration of the state was actually taken over by the Government of India on October 15, 1949. Tripura became a Union Territory without legislature with effect from November 1, 1956 and on January 21, 1972, it attained statehood. The state has a total area 10.492 Sq.km. The capital of the state is Agartala.

¹ Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region (MDONER) was set up in September 2001 to act as the nodal department of the Central Government to deal with matters pertaining to socio-economic development of the eight States of North East India.



Figure 1: Map of State of Tripura

4. As per the Census of India 2011 data, Tripura constitutes 0.30% of the population of India. The total population of Tripura is 3.671 million and the total area of the state is 10,486 sq km. In terms of education, the literacy rate of Tripura is 87.75%, higher than the national literacy rate of 74.04%. The sex ratio in the state is higher than that at the national level. The sex ratio which is the number of females per 1000 males is 961 in Tripura while it is 940 at the country level. **See Table 1** for a brief profile of the state and its districts.

SI.	State/District	Area in	Total	Literacy rate%				Sex ratio(Number of females per
No.		Sq Km	Population	Total	Male	Female	1000 males)	
1.	West Tripura	2,993	1,724,619	88.91	92.91	84.76	964	
2.	South Tripura	3,057	875,144	85.41	90.94	79.64	957	
3.	Dhalai	2,400	377,988	86.82	92.45	80.83	945	
4.	North Tripura	2,036	693,281	88.29	91.77	84.69	967	
5.	Tripura	10,486	3671032	87.75	92.18	83.15	961	
Source:	Source: Census of India 2011							

|--|

5. With effect from January 2012, the State has been reorganised into 8 districts. These include the old districts of Dhalai district, North Tripura district, South Tripura district and West Tripura district while the four new districts are Khowai Unakoti, Sipahijala and Gomati. Since the Census of India 2011, was carried out before the reorganisation of the State, the data available pertains to the old districts only.

6. The economy is primarily agrarian and in 2010-11, total food grain production in the state was 712,348 tonnes². Rice, jackfruit, pineapple, potato, sugarcane, chilly and natural rubber are some of the major crops of the state. Tripura is the second-largest natural rubber producer in the country, after Kerala. In 2010-11, around 65,760 hectares area was under natural rubber cultivation. There are 266 species of medicinal plants in the State.

 $^{^{\}rm 2}$ Sources: Economic Review of Tripura, 2010-11, Indian Horticulture Database – 2011, National Horticulture Board

7. In terms of transportation infrastructure Tripura is connected with the rest of the country through Assam by Broad gauge railway line extending to Lumding and Silchar. The main railways stations are in Agartala, Dharmanagar, Kumarghat. National Highway 44 connects the state to Assam and the rest of India. The airport at Agartala has flights that connect the state to other important centers such as Kolkata, Guwahati, Bangalore, Chennai and Delhi.

C. Project Description

8. The Project road, Udaipur to Melaghar (TR02) which is 20.28 kilometres in length takes off at *Udaipur* village from National Highway 44 at Km 51.200 (from Agartala) with starting chainage 0.00 km. The location map of the road is given in **Annexure – 1.** The road passes through plain and rolling terrain all along the length and lies in East –West direction. Land use along the Project road is mainly agricultural and built up areas scattered along. In rolling terrain the forest area has scanty plantation, except shrubs. The river Gumati crosses the Project road at Km 13. For considerable length the Project road is aligned along the river bank, sometimes close to the river. The Project road ends at *Melaghar* at the junction with another Major District Road (MDR), joining Melaghar to NH-44 and further leading to Agartala. The road passes through eleven (11) villages- *Udaipur, Rajarbag, Khilpara, Rajdhar Nagar, Jamjuri, Dudhpurkarni, Palatana, Kakraban, Shilghati (Kishoreganj), Mohanbhog*, and *Purba Chandigarh*. The road is important for International border trade between India and Bangladesh.



D. Scope and Objectives of the RP

9. The Resettlement Plan for this road section (TR02) from *Udaipur to Melaghar* in the State of Tripura has been prepared based on detailed road improvements proposed and as part of DPR study. The aim of this Resettlement Plan (RP) is to mitigate all unavoidable negative social and resettlement impacts caused due to the upgradation of TR02 by provision of commensurate measures to resettle the displaced persons and restore their livelihoods. The plan has been prepared on the basis of survey findings and consultation with different stakeholders and complies with ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement, 2009 (SPS-2009) to protect the rights of Displaced Persons and communities. The issues/aspects identified and addressed in this RP are:

- Type and extent of non-land assets, loss of livelihood or income opportunities and collective losses such as common property resources and social infrastructure;
- Impacts on vulnerable groups specifically women;
- Consultation with stakeholders and scope of peoples participation in the Project;

- Existing legal and administrative framework;
- Entitlement matrix with provisions for relocation assistance and restoration of businesses/income;
- Estimation of cost for implementation of R&R activities;
- Institutional framework for the implementation of plan including monitoring and evaluation mechanism.

E. Methodology adopted

10. Based on the social screening that helped to identify potential impacts, interactions with Public Works Department (PWD) and the revenue departments of Government of Tripura, and Displaced Persons, tools for the study were devised. At this initial phase clarifications were sought and provided by the PWD on ROW (Right of Way) available. It was clarified that that government land is available for the entire stretch of the road and all structures that exist within the ROW are being used by non title holders (mainly encroachers and squatters). Additionally, in order to reduce the resettlement impact of the Project, upon instructions by the PWD, scope of the survey was limited to:

- requirement of the construction width within the toe line to improve the road up to 2 lane standard; and
- existing building lines particularly at *Kakrabon* market between Km 12.500 & Km 12.700

11. Hence no Land Acquisition Plan (LAP) is required for the project road. The next phase involved mobilization of a team to collect information on socio-economic profile of the affected households and record impacts on their assets. Appropriate instructions were given to the survey personnel both for conducting the survey as well as for carrying out consultations. The social survey team obtained the strip plan and detailed design from the engineering team and carried out a physical verification of the impacted structures along the ROW on the ground. This phase involved the conducting of survey of land parcels and structures and collection of socio-economic details of the Displaced Persons (DPs). Consultations were held at various places with different sections of the communities and were carried out in parallel with the survey. The last phase involved data entry of survey data, collation, data analysis and report-writing (preparation of Resettlement Plan (RP)) to document the findings of the survey, details of the consultations that were held with the different and relevant stakeholders – government departments, Displaced Persons.

12. **Project Improvement Proposal**: The existing road is single/intermediate lane. The existing road pavement is the flexible type with bituminous wearing course. The condition of the existing road pavement is generally fair except in some stretches where the pavement has been damaged due to cracks, depression, ruts and pot holes. It is proposed to retain the existing ROW and carry out upgradation and improvement within the existing ROW. The formation width varies between 7 to 9 m. It is proposed to widen the existing single lane/intermediate lane to 2-lane carriageway lane (7m), with earthen shoulders 2.5 m wide on either side subject to minor variation due to ROW constraints and strengthen the existing carriageway pavement as per design requirements. The ROW for 2-lane section, is proposed as per requirement set forth in IRC:73:1980. The typical cross section of road is given in **Annexure 2**.

F. Project Benefits and Impacts

13. The project would entail upgradation and improvement of the existing road. This would provide easier access and availability of essential services to the communities living along and dependent on this road. Improved roads would imply better and frequent transport facilities and increased mobility. Also the project road connects to other MDR and NH 44 which ultimately connects to the State capital, Agartala.

14. The Project road passes through 11 villages and will be improved and upgraded within the existing ROW resulting in no private land acquisition. However, the census survey brought forth the presence of non-titleholders (mainly encroachers and squatters) mostly running small businesses and shops within the existing RoW. A total of 279 such non-titled households comprising of 1110 persons would be affected as a result of the Project. The main type of loss includes loss of commercial structures, residential, commercial structures, trees, irrigation units and boundary walls. The following table (table 1 A) presents the total number of affected HH along each village and the total number of persons affected:

Name of Village	Number of HH	Total DPs
Chandigar	10	42
Jamjuri	137	546
Kakraban	14	61
Khilpara	41	148
Mohanbhog	53	189
Palatana	2	8
Kishoreganj	16	77
Udaipur	6	39
Total	279	1110

 Table 1.2: Number of Households and Persons Affected by the Project

G. Measures to Minimize Resettlement Impacts

15. Resettlement impacts of linear projects are often less adverse than those of large area projects as linear projects can be usually re-routed to avoid large scale resettlement. Road widening projects invariably impact assets. Measures were taken to minimize adverse involuntary resettlement impacts due to up-gradation of this road section. The key measures are as follows:

- Widening the road within ROW as far as possible subject to technical limitations;
- Planning for widening of road in such a manner as to avoid the impact on built-up properties

16. In order to minimize impacts, the PWD clarified that government land is available for the entire stretch of the road and hence there would be no requirement for acquiring of any private land. All ROW required for the construction of the proposed road is available throughout the entire stretch – Km 0.00 to Km 20.28. Further vide letter nos. F.6(181)-PC(PD-1)/2005/6174-76 dated 30th September, 2009; F.6(179) PC(PD-1)/2009/6749-51 dated October 13th, 2009; F.6 (176)-PC(PD-I)/2009/6902-6904 dated October 19th, 2009 (**Annexure 3)** the PWD indicated that:

- i. To limit survey activities as per the requirement of the construction width within the toe line to improve the road up to 2 lane standard; and
- ii. To restrict survey to existing building lines particularly at *Kakrabon* market between Km 12.500 & Km 12.700.

17. As a result of the above efforts, no land shall be acquired for the Project thereby considerably reducing the involuntary resettlement impacts of the Project.

II. SCOPE OF RESETTLEMENT IMPACTS

A. Involuntary Resettlement Impacts

18. As aforementioned, the project would entail upgradation and improvement of the existing road within the existing Right-of-Way (RoW) so as to minimize the resettlement impacts. Since the available RoW is sufficient to accommodate the proposed road improvement works, the road construction would not entail any private land acquisition. In order to ascertain the Project impacts on local population and establish legality, a census survey was undertaken in the villages and habitations located along the project road.

19. The census survey brought forth the presence of non-titleholders (mainly encroachers and squatters) within the existing RoW in the 11 villages. Majority of these non-titled households are running small businesses and shops within the existing RoW. A total of 279 such non-titled households comprising of 1110 persons would be affected as a result of the Project. The main type of loss will include impact on commercial structures, residential, commencial structures, trees, irrigation units and boundary walls. The following table (Table 1) presents the total number of affected HH along each village and the total number of persons affected in these households:

Name of Village	Number of HH	Total DPs
Chandigar	10	42
Jamjuri	137	546
Kakraban	14	61
Khilpara	41	148
Mohanbhog	53	189
Palatana	2	8
Kishoreganj	16	77
Udaipur	6	39
Total	279	1110

 Table 2: Number of Households and Persons Affected by the Project

B. Types of Impact

20. The Census survey undertaken recorded the following types of impacts that will incur as a result of the Project:

- Loss of residential and commercial structures of encroachers and squatters
- Loss of Trees
- Loss of 'Other' Assets mainly comprising of dug wells, bore wells, water tanks, cattle-sheds, etc.
- Loss of Common Property Resources (CPR)

21. The assessment of Tranche 2 subproject brought forth that this subproject would entail involuntary resettlement impacts that are deemed significant.³ Involuntary Resettlement impact qualify Category this road.4 as А in case of

³ The involuntary resettlement impacts of an ADB-supported project are considered significant if 200 or more persons will experience major impacts, which are defined as (i) being physically displaced from housing, or (ii) losing 10% or more of their productive assets (income generating).

⁴ A project is assigned to one of the following categories depending on the significance of the probable involuntary resettlement impacts: (i) Category A – A proposed project is classified as Category A if it is likely to have significant involuntary resettlement impacts. A resettlement plan, including a assessment of social impacts, is required. (ii) Category B – A proposed project is classified as category B if it includes involuntary resettlement impacts that are not deemed significant. A resettlement plan, including a assessment of social impacts, is required. Category C – A proposed project is classified as Category C if it has no involuntary resettlement impacts. No further action is required.

III. FINDINGS OF THE CENSUS SURVEY

A. Objective of the Census Survey

22. A detailed census was carried out along the road section in 2009. The objective of the census was to identify the displaced persons and generate an inventory of social and economic impacts on the project displaced persons, the structures affected, socio-economic profile of the project displaced people, their perceptions about the project and rehabilitation and resettlement options. A Census Questionnaire was prepared to collect detailed information on the socio-economic status of the displaced persons and households as well as their ensuing losses. All the other impacts including Community Property Resources were also recorded in the Census survey. The form used for census and socio-economic survey questionnaire is presented in **Annexure - 4** while the details of Project affected persons/displaced households is given at **Annexure - 5**. These surveys have led to the creation of the Inventory of Loss.

23. While the project would entail no land acquisition, the project policy framework includes affected non-titleholders who will be compensated for loss of structure and livelihoods affected as as result of the Project The vulnerable affected households and/or persons especially those below the poverty line, the landless, the elderly, women and children, and indigenous peoples, and those without legal title to land will be entitled for additional assistance as per the entitlement matrix.

24. The key findings of the census survey are discussed in the section below:

B. Socioeconomic Profile of the Displaced Households

25. The project road crosses two districts of the state. The road begins at *Udaipur* village in South Tripura District. The other project impacted district is the West Tripura district which is bounded by Bangladesh in the north and west, by North Tripura in the east and by South Tripura in the south. In both the districts agriculture is the mainstay of the economy. The key social and economic profile of the project district and affected households has been discussed below. These include details on the educational status of the AHH, their religion, family type, sources of income, vulnerability status as well as their perception regarding the impacts of the project

1. Religion of the DPs

26. Majority of the affected population were found to be practicing Hinduism followed by Islam. 90% of DPs are Hindus while Muslim DPs were recorded in only three villages of Jamjuri, Khilpara and Mohanbhog (See Table 2). Followers of any other religion were not found along the project corridor.

Table 2 – Religion of DPs by village (%)				
Name of Village Hindu Muslim				
Chandigar	100.00	0.00		
Jamjuri	87.27	12.73		
Kakraban	100.00	0.00		
Khilpara	97.22	2.78		
Mohanbhog	82.93	17.07		
Palatana	100.00	0.00		
Kishoreganj	100.00	0.00		
Udaipur	100.00	0.00		
Total	90.27	9.73		
Source: Socio-economic Survey, 2009				

2. Social Stratification of DPs

27. 48.88% of the DPs belong to General category while 33.18% of the DPs belong to Other Backward Classes and 16.14% are Scheduled Caste. As can be seen from the table, *Udaipur* and *Palatana* are the only villages where all the Displaced Persons belong to the Scheduled Caste and OBC categories respectively **(See Table 3)**.

Table 3 – Social Stratification of DPs by Village (in %)					
Name of Village	Name of Village SC OBC General				
Chandigar	50.00	50.00	0.00	0.00	
Jamjuri	10.00	23.64	62.73	3.64	
Kakraban	33.33	0.00	66.67	0.00	
Khilpara	25.71	40.00	34.29	0.00	
Mohanbhog	4.88	56.10	39.02	0.00	
Palatana	0.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	
Kishoreganj	23.08	46.15	30.77	0.00	
Udaipur	100.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Total	16.14	33.18	48.88	1.79	
Source: Socio-economic Ssurvey, 2009					

3. Family Type

28. Nearly half (49.09%) of the displaced households live in nuclear family system. In nuclear family system, mostly parents and children live together and sometimes grandparents also stay with the family. More than 50% of the impacted households in *Jamjuri, Kakraban, Khilpara* and *Mohanbhog* villages are nuclear households. 41.82% of the total families live in extended families which are characterised by large number of people living together and include extended families of the main patriarch/matriarch. Extended households too constitute more than 40% of the total displaced households (See **Table 4**).

Table 4 – Type of households by village (in %)					
Name of Village Nuclear Joint Extended					
Chandigar	16.67	0.00	83.33		
Jamjuri	50.00	8.33	41.67		
Kakraban	53.85	38.46	7.69		
Khilpara	52.78	5.56	41.67		
Mohanbhog	56.41	5.13	38.46		
Palatana	0.00	0.00	100.00		
Kishoreganj	38.46	7.69	53.85		
Udaipur	0.00	33.33	66.67		
Total	49.09	9.09	41.82		
Source: Socio-economic Survey, 2009					

4. Average Household Size

29. Average household size in the affected villages varies from village to village. *Khilpara* village at 3.8 persons / household has the smallest household size, whereas in Udaipur the average household size is 6.5 persons. Overall, the average size of the affected households along the project stretch is 4.3 (See Table 5).

Table 5 – Average Size of Household by village					
Name of Village	Average Household Size				
Chandigar	4.2				
Jamjuni	3.9				
Kakraban	3.8				
Khilpara	3.5				
Mohanbhog	3.6				
Palatana	4.0				
Kishoreganj	4.5				
Udaipur	6.5				
Average for all villages	4.3				
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009					

5. Vulnerability Status of Displaced Households

30. Scheduled Caste, Below Poverty Line⁵, and DPs headed by are amongst vulnerable groups identified from the survey. The Scheduled Caste DPs were from BPL category. Of the total surveyed households (279 HH), a total of 53 were recorded as vulnerable. 10 households are headed by women and the remaining (43) are households below poverty line (See **Table 6** below).

Table 6 –Vulnerability status by village						
Name of Village	WHH	BPL and / or SC				
Chandi gar	0	4				
Jamjuri	3	13				
Kakraban	0	4				
Khilpara	6	3				
Mohanbhog	0	12				
Palatana	0	0				
Kishoreganj	0	6				
Udaipur	1	1				
Total	10	43				
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009						

6. Displaced Persons disaggregated by sex:

31. In Table 7 below, the percentage of males and females among the affected persons has been given. Of the 1110 DP's, 53.85% of them are males while remaining are females. The percentage of females among DPs is higher in *Chandigar and Khilpara* villages while in *Palatana* village it is equal to the number of males. In all other villages, a greater percentage of DPs are males (See **Table 7** below).

Table 7 – Displaced persons disaggregated by sex (%)						
Name of Village	Male	Female				
Chandigar	48.00	52.00				
Jamjuri	52.44	47.56				
Kakraban	50.94	49.06				
Khilpara	44.88	55.12				
Mohanbhog	52.74	47.26				
Palatana	50.00	50.00				
Kishoreganj	54.24	45.76				
Udaipur	53.85	46.15				
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009						

⁵ As per Planning Commission's Poverty Estimates, 2009-10, a person earning less than Rs. 663.4 per capita per month in Rural areas and Rs. 782.7 per capita per month in urban areas would be categorised as those living below poverty line.

7. Literacy levels of the Displaced Persons

32. Literacy among Displaced Persons is high at 92.61% which is higher than the State and national literacy rates (87.75% and 74.04% respectively). Only 7.39% of the DPs are illiterate. 61.63% of DPs have attained education at least till primary levels. More than 15% of the Displaced Persons in *Jamjuri and Khilpara* villages are graduates, while *Udaipur* is the only village wherein nearly 12% of the DPs are technically qualified **(See Table 8 below).**

	Table 8: Education Profile of DPs by Village (%)								
Name of	Illiterate	Primary	Secondary	Graduate	Technical	Total			
Village									
Chandigar	12.00	88.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	100			
Jamjuri	6.29	45.92	27.04	20.75	0.00	100			
Kakraban	3.77	60.38	24.53	11.32	0.00	100			
Khilpara	7.09	31.50	37.80	23.62	0.00	100			
Mohanbhog	11.64	63.01	17.81	6.85	0.68	100			
Palatana	0.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	100			
Kishoreganj	6.78	54.24	25.42	13.56	0.00	100			
Udaipur	11.54	50.00	19.23	7.69	11.54	100			
Total	7.39	61.63	18.98	10.47	1.53	100			
				Source: S	Socio-economia	survey, 2009			

8. Health status of the Displaced Persons:

33. With respect to the overall health of the DPs, it was recorded that 91.07% of DPs reported healthy, while 7.79% have chronic illness and 1.15% of the DPs are disabled (See Table 9).

Table 9 – Health status by village (%)							
Name of Village	Handicap	Chronic Illness	No Illness				
Chandigar	0.00	12.00	88.00				
Jamjuri	1.16	8.58	90.26				
Kakraban	0.00	7.84	92.16				
Khilpara	1.57	7.87	90.55				
Mohanbhog	0.00	4.79	95.21				
Palatana	12.50	0.00	87.50				
Kishoreganj	1.69	10.17	88.14				
Udaipur	3.85	3.85	92.31				
Total	1.15	7.79	91.07				
	Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009						

9. Occupational Pattern of the Displaced Households:

34. The main occupation for majority of the DPs is Business/ Trade. 57.32% of DPs are dependent on business for their livelihood. While agriculture including agricultural labour accounts for 12.74% of the DPs, 8.28% DPs are engaged in non-agricultural labour. 9.55% & 7.01% of DPs are engaged in Govt. service and Private services respectively. The occupational pattern of the working DPs is shown in **Table 11**.

Table 11 – Occupational Pattern of working DPs by village (%)								
Name of village	Agriculture	Agri. Labour	Non Agri. Labour	Business/ T rade	Govt. Service	Private Service	Others	
Chandigar	0.00	9.09	63.64	18.18	0.00	0.00	9.09	
Jamjuri	1.36	2.72	4.76	72.11	6.12	9.52	3.40	
Kakraban	0.00	10.00	10.00	70.00	5.00	5.00	0.00	
Khilpara	2.17	10.87	0.00	50.00	28.26	0.00	8.70	
Mohanbhog	15.79	14.04	8.77	42.11	8.77	5.26	5.26	
Palatana	0.00	25.00	50.00	25.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	
Kishoreganj	0.00	36.84	0.00	31.58	10.53	10.53	10.53	
Udaipur	0.00	0.00	30.00	40.00	0.00	20.00	10.00	
Total	3.82	8.92	8.28	57.32	9.55	7.01	5.10	
				Sou	rce: Socio-e	conomic su	rvey, 2009	

10. Income levels of the Displaced persons

35. As seen from **Table 12**, nearly one-fifth (19.52%) of the Displaced Persons are in the income bracket of less than Rs. 2000 per month, while approximately 45% of DPs have a monthly income of more than Rs. 4000/. Notable outliers are *Chandigar* village where nearly 67% of the DPs have incomes less than Rs. 2000 and *Khilpara* village wherein nearly 60% of the DPs earn income in excess of Rs. 4000 per month.

Table 12 – Monthly Income of DPs by Village (%)								
Name of Village	<2000	2001 to 3000	3001 to 4000	>4001				
Chandigar	66.67	25.00	0.00	8.33				
Jamjuri	14.84	18.71	20.00	46.45				
Kakraban	10.00	60.00	10.00	20.00				
Khilpara	11.11	20.37	9.26	59.26				
Mohanbhog	26.79	10.71	21.43	41.07				
Palatana	25.00	75.00	0.00	0.00				
Kishoreganj	42.86	4.76	4.76	47.62				
Udaipur	9.09	27.27	9.09	54.55				
Total	19.52	20.42	15.62	44.44				
		Se	ource : Socio-econor	nic survey, 2009				

36. **Income sources of DPs:** The average income of affected households is Rs. 6844 per month which includes income from sources such as agriculture, commercial, service, livestock and other sources such as remittances etc. As per Planning Commission's Poverty Estimates, 2009-10, a person earning less than Rs. 672.8 per capita per month in Rural areas. 15.7% (43 HHs) of the displaced households were living below poverty line.

	Table 13 – Average Income by source								
Name of Village	Agric ulture	Commercial	Service	Livestock	Others	Total			
Chandigar	300	2250		350	2940	3367			
Jamjuri	2304	4754	6328	608	3041	6635			
Kakraban	733	2812	12000	340	3750	4818			
Khilpara	3900	5350	13722	2083	3754	9548			
Mohanbhog	2218	3361	6704	715	2260	6098			
Palatana		2500		450	3500	5200			
Kishoreganj	2000	5000	9007		2779	6701			
Udaipur	2000	4500	20000		4167	12000			
Total	2275	4459	8608	708	3038	6844			
				Source: Se	xio-economic	survey, 2009			

37. It is notable that while agriculture and livestock earn the least, service sectors is most rewarding for the DPs as income earned by those employed in service is highest amongst all sources. Variations are noted within sectors across villages too. E.g. Income earned from agriculture is the least in *Chandigar* and *Kakraban* villages, while in the same villages, incomes earned from other sources such as commercial and service are significantly higher. In *Kakraban, Khilpara and Udaipur* villages, average monthly incomes earned by those engaged in service sector are significantly high. **Figure 2** below presents a break-up of the average income earned from different sources.



Figure 2 - Breakup of average income from different sources

11. Average Expenditure pattern

38. The average expenditure of the DPs is estimated to be Rs. 6072 per month per households including the expenses on food, cooking fuel, clothing, transport, medicines, education, electricity, water, social events, seeds/fertilizers./pesticides, agriculture (labour/tools) and other expenditures. Average expenditure on food is highest amongst all other expenditures. Average expenditure is lowest in social events which is only Rs. 119. The average expenditure pattern of the households is depicted in **Table 14 below. Figure 3** below presents a break-up of the average expenditure on different types of items. Expenditure on food (38%) is the major item on which DPs spend their money.

	Table 14 – Average Expenditure on item by village (in Rs.)											
Name of Village	Food	cooking fuel	Clothing	Transport	Medicines	Education	Electricity	Water	Social events	Seeds/fert. /pest.	Others	Agri. (labour/to
Chandi gar	1967	228	67	53	183	225	60		48	175		
Jamjuri	294.2	339	204	346	363	884	187	78	127	432	1283	409
Kakraban	2450	296	131	184	144	525	146	40	81	250	325	200
Khilpara	3476	529	328	332	409	808	244	49	173	400	3317	425
Mohan- bhog	2754	341	194	320	233	764	104	574	76	394	1278	340
Palatana	2500	400	125	150	200	200	110		55			
Kishore- ganj	3008	300	224	409	492	342	134	35	117	213		
Udaipur	5300	288	688	450	1053	400	263	30	180			
Total	2976	363	222	322	346	781	173	106	119	377	1785	373
								Source	: Socio-e	conom	ic survey,	, 2009



Figure 3 - Breakup of average expenditure on different items

12. Additional Skills Possessed by the DPs

39. During the survey, attempt was made to assess the skill set possessed by the DP other than that which they use to earn their income from. Amongst all the DPs, only 2.63% possess additional skills such as computer, carpentry, mechanic, cutting and driving, etc. while the rest of the do not possess any additional skills (See Table 15). Thus the DPs were found to have limited skill set.

Table 15 – Additional skills possessed by Displaced Persons by village (%)						
Name of Village	Possess Additional Skills	Do not possess additional skills	Total			
Chandighar	0.00%	100.00%	100.00%			
Jamjuri	2.08%	97.92%	100.00%			
Kakraban	3.77%	96.23%	100.00%			
Khilpara	3.94%	96.06%	100.00%			
Mohanbagh	2.05%	97.95%	100.00%			
Palatana	0.00%	100.00%	100.00%			
Kishoreganj	1.69%	98.31%	100.00%			
Udaipur	11.54%	88.46%	100.00%			
Total	253	9737	100.00%			
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009						

C. Type and Extent of Project Impacts

40. The main type of loss recorded during census survey include comprises of loss of structures and other assets such as trees, irrigation units, cattle sheds etc. As per the survey, it was recorded that a total of 279 households will be affected due to the Project. Out of these 279 households, 137 (more than 50%) of the impacted households belong to *Jamjuri* village (See Table 16).

Table 16: Number of Households Affected by the Project					
Name of Village	Number of HH				
Chandigar	10				
Jamjuri	137				
Kakraban	14				
Khilpara	41				
Mohanbhog	53				
Palatana	2				
Kishoreganj	16				
Udaipur	6				
Total	279 HHs				



Settlement in Kakraban

41. A total of 59 households were not available during the census. For such households, the total no. of APs has been estimated based on the average household size of each village. It is estimated that in 59 such households, there shall be total of 233 APs. **Table 17** presents the total number of Aps surveyed and the additional absentee APs. The total number of affected persons is 1109. The details of affected persons is provided in **Annexure** – **5**.

	Table 17 : Number of Persons Affected by the Project								
Name of Village	Surveyed Aps	No. of HH for which details were not collected*	Average HH Size	Additional Absentee APs	Total APs				
Chandigar	25	4	4.2	17	42				
Jamjuri	432	29	3.9	114	546				
Kakraban	53	2	3.8	8	61				
Khilpara	127	6	3.5	21	148				
Mohanbhog	146	12	3.6	43	189				
Palatana	8	0	4.0	0	8				
Kishoreganj	59	4	4.5	18	77				
Udaipur	26	2	6.5	13	39				
Total	876	59	4.3	233	1110				

*Details were not collected for 59 HH as the persons from these HH were not available at the time of the survey. Hence total no. of APs has been estimated on average HH size for each village.

In the following sub section, the type and extent of impact on asset has been described.

1. Impact on Structures

42. Permanent structures are defined here as those having RCC roof and brick walls. Semi-permanent structures are those having brick walls and no RCC roof. Temporary structures are those which are neither permanent nor semi-permanent and have temporary roof and wall. Of the total 279 impacted households, 214 households shall experience impacts on structures (including permanent, semi-permanent and temporary). Bamboo fences shall be impacted in two households and one household shall experience impact on its boundary wall. The details of affected properties are given at **Annexure – 6**.

43. Out of total affected structures three fourths (75%), i.e., 162 are temporary structures, 21 nos. of permanent structures and 31 nos. of semi-permanent structures which will be affected due to the project. As shown in **Table 18**, all the 21 permanent structures are located in *Jamjuri* village while temporary structures are found in all villages. In Jamjuri village, permanent, semi permanent and temporary structures have been impacted while in

Kakraban and Mohanbhog villages only semi permanent and temporary structures have been affected.

Name of the Village	Permanent	Semi- Permanent	Temporary	Bamboo Fencing	Boundary Wall	Total
Chandigar			6			6
Jamjuri	21	24	69			114
Kakraban		6	8			14
Khilpara			29	2	1	32
Mohanbhog		1	28			29
Palatana			1			1
Kishoreganj			13			13
Udaipur			5			5
Total	21	31	159	2	1	214
Source: Soc	io-economic s	urvey 2009	1	1	1 1	

Table 18: Type of Affected Structure

44. All the structures are single storey structures. The total area of total affected structures is 2686 sq. m. (See Table 19). Impacts on linear structures such as bamboo fence and a boundary wall were noted and their lengths were recorded. Two bamboo fencings of total length– 30 meters and 1 boundary wall of 13.5 meters would be impacted. However since these structures are built on the ROW and all the DPs comprise of non-titleholders, the APs would be awarded compensation for the affected structure only and not for the land.

Table 19 – Area of Affected Structures (in sq. meter)					
Name of Village	Permanent	Semi Permanent	Temporary	Total	
Chandigar			154.572	154.572	
Jamjuri	149.362	394.176	953.59	1497.128	
Kakraban		46.592	101.508	148.1	
Khilpara			400.653	400.653	
Mohanbhog		6.068	228.744	234.812	
Palatana			18.352	18.352	
Kishoreganj			168.885	168.885	
Udaipur			59.376	59.376	
Total	149	447	2086	2686	
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009					

2. Ownership Pattern

45. Out of the total 279 affected properties, 186 (66.9%) are occupied by encroachers and the rest 93 (33.10%) are occupied by tenants (See **Table 20** below). Jamjuri village was recorded as having the maximum number of owners (68) as well as tenants (69).

Table 20: Ownership Status of the Affected Households					
Name of Village	Encroachers	Tenants (of the encroacher HHs)	Total Affected HHs		
Chandigar	10	-	10		
Jamjuri	69	68	137		
Kakraban	13	1	14		
Khilpara	31	10	41		
Mohanbhog	47	6	53		
Palatana	2		2		
Kishoreganj	9	7	16		
Udaipur	5	1	6		

Total	186	93	279
		Source: Socio-	economic Survey, 2009

3. Relocation Preferences of Affected Households

46. During the survey, the affected hosueholds incurring significant impact on their structures were asked about their relocation preferences. 92% of the respondents preferred to be relocated within their village and only 8% indicated preference to relocate outside the village (see **Table 21** below). Majority of respondents indicated that they would prefer cash compensation instead of land for land based compensation.

Table 21 – Relocation preferences by village (%)					
Name of Village	Within the Village/Town	Outside Village/Town			
Chandigar	100	0			
Jamjuri	87	13			
Kakraban	83	17			
Khilpara	100	0			
Mohanbhog	95	5			
Palatana	100	0			
Kishoreganj	100	0			
Udaipur	100	0			
Average	92	8			
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009					

47. Out of the total of 214 households that are affected, 32 are residential, 174 are commercial and 8 are residential cum commercial. **Table 22** shows the type of use of the affected properties.

Name of the Village	Residential	Commercial	Resi-cum- Commercial	Total
Chandigar	5	1	-	6
Jamjuri	4	104	6	114
Kakraban	-	13	1	14
Khilpara	12	20	-	32
Mohanbhog	5	23	1	29
Palatana	1	-	-	1
Kishoreganj	4	9	-	13
Udaipur	1	4	-	5
Total	11	174	8	214

Table 22: Type of Use of Affected Structures

4. Impacts on Other Assets

48. A total of 1852 trees, 1 dug well, 6 tube well, 1 water tank, 1 hand pump and 3 cattle sheds will be affected due to the project. **Table 23** below shows distribution of affected assets.

	Table 23 – Impact on other assets						
Name of village	Trees	Dugwells	T ube wells	Water Tank	Hand pump	Cattle shed	
Chandigar	78			0		1	
Jamjuri	614		1	1	0	1	
Kakraban			0	0			
Khilpara	96		3	0		1	
Mohanbhog	928		2	0			
Palatana	35		0				
Kishoreganj	92	1	0	0		0	
Udaipur	9						
Total	1852	1	б	1	0	3	
Source: Socio-economic survey, 2009							

49. Out of the 1852 affected trees, nearly 80% (i.e. 1462 trees) comprise of fruit bearing trees with the majority of them being Betelnut trees, followed by Mango and Jackfruit trees.

5. Impact on Community Property Resources

50. In addition to the assets mentioned above, one small temple will be relocated. The detail of affected temple is presented in **Table 24** below.

	Table 24 – Details of Affected Community Property					
S.	Chainage	Type of Cultural Property	Side	Number of	Type of construction	
No.				structures		
1	Km 17597.2 to 17621.5	Small temple	Left	1	Temporary	

51. There are 5 other religious structures, including temples and mosque located close to existing road but the impact on these structures are avoided by making suitable adjustments in road alignment.



Temple at Km 17.590

IV. CONSULTATION, PARTICIPATION AND DISCLOSURE

52. During the detailed survey, community consultations were held in many villages that lay en-route. All relevant aspects of project planning and development were discussed with the affected communities. Consultations checklists were used to cover issues relating to demographic details of each village, economic resource base, perceptions of the community with respect to the benefits, apprehensions of the community and their willingness to contribute and finally their endorsement (or otherwise) of the proposed project. Information was disseminated about the project and its benefits and impacts. Attempt was made to elicit suggestions from them and to incorporate the same in plan document. Also the approaches adopted to minimize impact and timing of construction was informed to them to elicit their response. People were asked about their preference of resettlement during the census and socio-economic surveys.

53. Consultations were held with village community and panchayat members at 6 villages – *Shilghati, Jamjuri, Khilpara, Purba Chandigar, Mohanbhog* and *Kakrabon*. A total of 101 persons participated in these meetings. The attendance sheets are given in **Annexure – 7.** Some of these meetings were conducted in the presence of the PWD engineers. Ensuing paragraphs summarize the details and outcomes of interactions held at different villages



Photo 2: Consultations with Displaced Persons en-route the project corridor

A. Awareness about the Project

54. It was observed though the communities understood such road-widening works as part of the development works that are taken up by the government departments, but were not aware of the details. Very few persons, such as those associated or related with officials of the Public Works Department displayed prior knowledge. The communities were provided details on the project during the consultations. All persons were informed of the total length of the road, actual details such as the width, the road side amenities such as drains, potential impacts and entitlement provisions etc.

B. Willingness to Cooperate

55. The affected households understood that widening of the road would be beneficial to the whole community and would spur development in the area. Impacts such as dismantling of structures– private and community owned were explained to them. They understood the implications and accepted the impacts as being necessary to development.

C. Perceived Project Benefits

56. It was observed that the road was perceived by the communities as a very critical infrastructural requirement in their area and to their lives. They stated a range of benefits such as:

- improved communication and access leading to reduction in savings in time and fuel costs;
- better access to markets for their agricultural produce resulting in less wastage of the produce and more profits;
- improved access to educational and medical facilities;
- improved in safety resulting from a wider and better road;
- growth in business as better access would lead to more traffic and lead to more employment opportunities
- fillip to import-export business resulting from better transportation of goods;
- boost to tourism as more tourists shall have easy access to tourist spots such as *Rudrasagar* and *Matarbari*; and
- overall socio-economic development of the area

57. *Fears and concerns expressed:* During consultations, communities expressed certain concerns and apprehensions. They requested that more emphasis should be laid on these issues by the project authorities at the time of implementation. Key concerns are given below:

- physical and economic displacement due to the road widening;
- impacts on livelihood as widening would impact their structures either partially or fully;
- appropriate replacement of community properties such as waiting shed and parking areas that would be affected;
- impact on the ecological balance as many trees that provided shade to the passers-by would be felled;
- impact on place of worship; and
- inconvenience caused to the regular clientele and resultant impact on businesses. They requested that construction work be carried out in a manner that would ensure that minimum disruption and inconvenience is caused.

D. Views on Compensation and rehabilitation

58. Communities stated that adequate compensation should be paid for all structures that are owned either privately or are used by the communities. Besides, they requested all those who are displaced physically and economically be resettled and rehabilitated in an appropriate manner. Financial assistance for those persons who lose their livelihood was a specific request. Communities requested that any construction should start only after payment of full compensation. Another request was to carry out compensatory afforestation in the same area as where trees are being cut.

E. Other suggestions from the community

59. Communities made a few suggestions as listed below:

- a permanent market shed should be constructed;
- ample space be provided for parking of vehicles;
- bus stand, waiting sheds, urinals, public conveniences and a community hall should be constructed;

- food processing and other types of industries should be set up to generate local employment; and
- construction activities should be limited to the market areas within existing width, particularly in *Kakrabon* market

60. **Table 25** provides details of each consultation with regard to the issues discussed, concerns expressed and suggestions given by the community.

	Table 25 – Consultations with Displaced Persons				
S.No.	Location	Participants	Comments and suggestions from community		
1	Shilghati Village, Venue: Gram Panchayat Office, Shilghati	Panchayat members (2) and village community members (8).	 Time and cost of transportation will be reduced due to better commutation Easy access to markets for agricultural produces. Value of land will increase. Number of accidents will be lesser due to wider road. Growth of business. Livelihood of small businessman running roadside shops will be affected. Waiting shed and parking place may be affected. Permanent market shed should be constructed Parking space for vehicles should be provided Displaced Persons should be resettled and rehabilitated properly. 		
2	Jamjuri Village Venue: Public Library, Jamjuri	Panchayat members (1) and village community members (23).	 Increase in employment opportunity B etter communication Increase in fuel economy A ccess to better health services, education and business opportunities. Improvement in road safety. Impact on livelihood and other assets. Fear of displacement due to road extension Construction of permanent market shed Financial assistance to the people who are likely to lose their livelihood. Construction of bus stand, urinal etc. 		
3	Khilpara Village Venue: Gram Panchayat office, Khilpara	Panchayat members (1) and village community members (18).	 Better communication Cost effective transportation Improvement in road safety Loss of livelihood and property. Ecological imbalance due to felling of old and shady trees. Impact on the local market. Construction of permanent market shed, waiting shed and parking stand A dequate compensation to the Displaced Persons Construction activities should be started only after giving compensation to the Displaced Persons. Trees should be saved as far as possible and if any tree needs to be cut compensatory tree plantation should be done. 		

			Construction of public conveniences and a community hall.
4	Purba Chandigarh Village Venue: Gram panchayat office, purba chandigarh.	Panchayat members (2), P.W.D. official (1), village community members (8).	 Increase in business opportunities Improvement in mode of transportation Social and economic development of the community Impact on property Displacement of affected people Deforestation A dequate compensation to the Displaced Persons Road side amenities should be provided. Compensatory tree plantation should be done to protect the environment. Places of worship should be saved as far as possible.
5	Mohanbhog Village Venue: Gram panchayat office Mohanbhog	Panchayat members (2), village community members (11). P.W.D official (1)	 Improvement in communication facilities Time and cost of journey will be reduced Easy access to markets for agricultural produces. Local market will get affected completely Waiting shed and parking place may be affected. Permanent market shed should be constructed Parking space for vehicles should be provided Public conveniences should be provided. Food processing industry should be set up to provide employment to the local population
6	Kakrabon Village Venue: Kakrabon Community Hall	Panchayat members (6) and village community members (19).	 Improvement in communication facilities Time and cost of transportation will be reduced Easy access to markets for agricultural produces. Import and export to and from Bangladesh will be much easier. Transportation of materials to Monarchak and Palatana thermal power plants will be smooth and easy. It will give boost to tourism industry as the tourist spots Rudrasagar and Matarbari will be easily accessible. Local market will get affected completely Waiting shed and parking place may be affected. Impact on livelihood and assets. Ecological imbalance due to tree cutting. Construction activities should be restricted within existing width in market areas especially in the Kakrabon market. Parking space for vehicles should be provided. Compensatory tree plantation should be done.

61. Meaningful consultation with the affected persons, their host communities and civil society for every subproject identified as having involuntary resettlement impact will be carried out throughout the resettlement plan implementation. The consultation process established for the program will employ a range of formal and informal consultative methods. Different techniques of consultation with stakeholders are proposed during project preparation, viz., in-depth interviews, public meetings, group discussions etc.

62. Particular attention will be paid to the need of the disadvantaged or vulnerable groups, especially those below poverty line, the landless, the elderly, female headed households, women and children, Indigenous People/ Scheduled Tribes, and those without legal title to land. The key informants to be consulted, during the RP implementation, shall include the following stakeholders:

- Heads and members of households likely to be affected
- Affected households belonging to the vulnerable groups
- Host communities
- Women in the affected as well as host communities
- Local voluntary organizations and NGOs,
- Government agencies and departments, and,

63. The resettlement plan will be implemented in close consultation with the key stakeholders. Women's participation will be ensured by involving them in public consultation at various level and stages of project preparation and by arrangements, which would enhance their ability to attend such meetings.

64. The executing agency and implementing agency will ensure that views of the affected persons, particularly those vulnerable, related to the resettlement process are looked into and addressed. The DSC will ensure that groups and individuals consulted are informed about the outcome of the decision-making process, and confirm how their views were incorporated.

F. Disclosure of Resettlement Plan

65. The RP summary will be translated and made available to the affected persons. Hard copies of the resettlement plan will also be made available at: (i) Offices of the PIU; (ii) District Magistrate Office (iii) Block Development Officers' Office (iv) any other local level public offices, as soon as the plans are available and certainly before land is acquired for the project. For non-literate people, other communication methods will be used. A report of disclosure, giving detail of date and location, will be shared with ADB.

66. The basic information in the resettlement plan including subproject location, impact estimations, entitlements, implementation schedule etc. will be presented in the form of a brochure that will be circulated among the APs. These brochures would be distributed to the APs by the PIU with assistance from the NGO at the time of the RP disclosure and prior to submission of PFR. Posters designed to disseminate basic tenets of the plan will be distributed in different localities to generate mass awareness. Additionally, during RP implementation public meetings will be organised by the PIU with assistance from the NGO to disclose the RP in each of the affected villages to inform the APs about the Project, their entitlements as well as the grievance redress mechanism. In case of villages such as Chandigarh, Palatana and Udaipur, which have less than 6 Affected Households, Affected HHs from these villages would be invited to the public meetings organised in the neighbouring villages. The PIU and NGO will pay particular attention to the needs of the disadvantaged or vulnerable groups, especially those below poverty line, the landless, the elderly, female-headed households, women and children, Scheduled Caste etc. Separate focus group discussions and house visits, if needed, shall be undertaken during RP implementation in case of the vulnerable households by the PIU and NGO to follow up on the concerns (related to Project and entitlements) as well as to assess the needs of these households.

67. Electronic version of the framework as well as the RPs will be placed on the official website of the respective State Governments and the official website of ADB after approval and endorsement by IA/PIU and ADB. All RPs will be approved by ADB prior to contract award and then disclosed on ADB's website.

68. Furthermore, a notification on the Project implementation will be issued by the PIU in local newspapers at the time of RP Disclosure. All the costs related to the Consultation and

Participation has been included in the RP budget.

69. In case of change in project design thereby entailing change in resettlement impacts, a re-evaluation and updation of this RP will be undertaken. The updated RP will be disclosed to the affected persons, endorsed by MDONER and will be submitted to ADB for approval prior to award of civil works contracts for the project. The updated RP, not just the summary will be disclosed to the affected persons as well as uploaded on the ADB and MDONER and PIU website and after ADB review and approval.

V. IMPACTS ON WOMEN AND INDIGENOUS PEOPLE

A. Gender Impacts of the Project

70. According to the provisional results of 2011 census of India, Tripura has a population of 3,671,032 with 1,871,867 males and 1,799,165 females with a sex ratio of 961 females per thousand males. Of the total number of workers in the state, female workers constituted 18.5% of the number of total workers. Similarly, while the overall workforce participation rate was 36.25, the female workforce participation rate was limited to 10.25.

71. The Gender-related Development Index (GDI) incorporates differentials in achievement between men and women. As per the Tripura Human Development Report 2007, the estimated value of GDI for Tripura was 0.56, which is lower than the Human Development Index of the state on account of gender inequalities. In comparison, the West and South districts of the state, have a GDI of 0.58 and 0.55 respectively, almost at par with the state level scenario.

72. Women in the region are largely involved in households' work, collection of forest products, firewood collection, cultivation and other agricultural activities. They use the road for their routine households activities and economic activities such as agriculture and marketing etc. Availability of all weather roads with safe connectivity with better transport services will benefit the women in the area. Their mobility will be augmented both in terms of access to social services, higher levels of schooling and better health facility etc. Consultations were carried out with women in different places along the Project road.

73. The augmentation of road network and services, as per the women participants, will have far-reaching impacts on them and their lives. Firstly, they expressed that their mobility will be greatly enhanced. The Project would definitely augment the frequency and quality of the transport, thereby further improving access of women to various services and by and large women of various castes and communities on each of the project packages expressed the need for the road construction. They were of the opinion that they will especially benefit from the Project, since their mobility will be augmented both in terms of access to social services, as well as access to higher levels of schooling. The road construction would also considerably augment their access to higher levels of health care outside. In other words, the Project will provide both men and women and offer special benefits to women by increasing the opportunity for girls to access higher education, and the access for women and children to improved local services and higher levels of health care. The findings of these consultations are summed up in Table 25 in Chapter IV.

74. Separate discussions were held with women in the Project are to: i) provide information on the proposed road widening project; and ii) to record their views, concerns and perceived benefits arising from the proposed project. During the discussions, women shared that the project shall have positive benefits ensuing from the availability of all weather roads shall be safer connectivity and better transport services. Their mobility will be significantly enhanced both in terms of access to social services, higher levels of schooling and better health facility etc.

75. In terms of resettlement, the Project gender impacts are largely limited in nature. The census survey brought forth that 10 Female Headed household (FHH) will be affected as a result of the project. Apart from compensation for their asset loss, these households will be entitled to additional assistance as per the Entitlement Matrix for this Project.



Photo 3: Consultations with female Displaced Persons en-route the project corridor

B. Impact on Indigenous People (IP)

76. The population of Tripura is characterized by social diversity. Specifically, people of the Scheduled Tribes (STs) comprise about one-third of the total population. People from nineteen tribes are represented in the population of the State, the two largest tribes being the Tripuri and the Reang, which together accounted for 71 per cent of the tribal population. In the West and South Districts the STs comprise 25.3 and 37.7% of the total district population.

77. However, the census survey undertaken along the road did not bring forth the presence of tribal households along the road section. No tribal household would be impacted as a result of the Project. As a result, no Indigenous Peoples Plan (IPP) has been prepared for this project.
VI. POLICY FRAMEWORK AND ENTITLEMENTS

A. Policy Framework - Review of Resettlement Policies and Legal Framework

78. The resettlement principles adopted in this Plan reflect the national and State Land Acquisition (LA) Act, the entitlement benefits as listed in the National R&R Policy, (Government of India) 2007 and Asian Development Bank's (ADB) Safeguards Policy Statement (SPS, 2009).

79. The RP outlines the objectives, policy principles and procedures for land acquisition, compensation and other assistance measures for Displaced persons (APs). The Executing Agency and the Implementing Agency (IA) will endorse the Resettlement Plan prior to Project Appraisal. The RPs will be disclosed to the displaced persons (APs) and submitted to ADB for review and approval prior to commencement of any civil works. Compensation and other assistances will have to be paid to APs prior to any physical or economic displacement of displaced households.

80. The salient features of government and ADB polices are summarized below.

1. Land Acquisition Act (LAA), 1894

81. The LAA provides a framework for facilitating land acquisition in India. LAA enables the State Government to acquire private land for public purposes. LAA ensures that no person is deprived of land except under LAA and entitles affected persons to a hearing before acquisition. The main elements of LAA are:

- Land identified for the purpose of a project is placed under Section 4 of the LAA. This constitutes notification. As per Clause 5 a (1), objections must be made within 30 days to the District Collector (the highest administrative officer of the concerned District)
- (ii) The land is then placed under Section 6 of the LAA. This is a declaration that the government intends to acquire the land. The District Collector is directed to take steps for the acquisition, and the land is placed under Section 9. Interested parties are then invited to state their interest in the land and the price. Under Section 11, the District Collector will make an award within two years of the date of publication of the declarations. Otherwise, the acquisition proceedings shall lapse.
- (iii) In case of disagreement on the price awarded, within 6 weeks of the award, the parties (under Section 18) can request the District Collector to refer the matter to the Courts to make a final ruling on the amount of compensation.
- (iv) Once the land has been placed under Section 4, no further sale or transfer is allowed.
- (v) Compensation for land and improvements (such as houses, wells, trees, etc.) is paid in cash by the project authorities to the State Government, which in turn compensates landowners.
- (vi) The price to be paid for the acquisition of agricultural land is based on sale prices recorded in the District Registrar's office averaged over the three years preceding notification under Section 4. The possession of land is taken, by the Collector, after payment of compensation (Clause 31). If payment of compensation is not paid before taking possession, a interest is to be paid.

The Act has no provision for resettlement assistance and benefits particularly for people without titles or ownership records such as informal settlers.

2. National Resettlement and Rehabilitation Policy (Ministry of Rural Development), 2007

82. A National R&R Policy (NRRP), 2003 was adopted by the Government of India to address the issues not addressed in the LAA Act and also to cover development-induced resettlement. This policy has been revised in the form of NPRR (2007), which is applicable to all developmental projects where 400 or more families' en masse in plain areas or 200 or more families' en masse in tribal or hilly areas are displaced due to project activity. The policy aims to minimize displacement and promote, as far as possible, non-displacing or least displacing alternatives. The policy also aims to ensure adequate rehabilitation package and expeditious implementation of the rehabilitation process with the active participation of those affected.

83. The revised NRRP (2007) covers gaps not addressed in the LA Act. The policy also aims to ensure adequate rehabilitation package and expeditious implementation of the rehabilitation process with the active participation of those affected and recognizes the need for protecting the weaker sections of the society especially members of the Scheduled Castes and Scheduled Tribes.

84. The policy also recognizes non-titleholders such as any agricultural or nonagricultural laborer, landless person (not having homestead land, agricultural land, or either homestead or agricultural land), rural artisan, small trader or self-employed person; who has been residing or engaged in any trade, business, occupation or vocation continuously for a period of not less than three years as affected families. The policy further makes provisions for public disclosures of draft Resettlement and Rehabilitation Plans to the community, grievance redress procedures and monitoring and evaluation.

3. ADB's Safeguard Policy Statement (SPS), 2009

85. The objectives of ADB's SPS (2009) with regard to involuntary resettlement are: (i) to avoid involuntary resettlement wherever possible; (ii) to minimize involuntary resettlement by exploring project and design alternatives; (iii) to enhance, or at least restore, the livelihoods of all displaced persons in real terms relative to pre-project levels; and (iv) to improve the standards of living of the displaced poor and other vulnerable groups.

86. ADB's SPS (2009) covers physical displacement (relocation, loss of residential land, or loss of shelter) and economic displacement (loss of land, assets, access to assets, income sources, or means of livelihoods) as a result of; (i) involuntary acquisition of land, or (ii) involuntary restrictions on land use or on access to legally designated parks and protected areas. It covers displaced persons whether such losses and involuntary restrictions are full or partial, permanent or temporary.

87. The three important elements of ADB's SPS (2009) are: (i) compensation at replacement cost for lost assets, livelihood, and income prior to displacement; (ii) assistance for relocation, including provision of relocation sites with appropriate facilities and services; and (iii) assistance for rehabilitation to achieve at least the same level of well-being with the project as without it. The SPS gives special attention to poor and vulnerable households to ensure their improved well-being as a result of project interventions.

4. Comparison of Government and ADB Policies

88. Annexure 8 compares government and ADB policies and provides gap-filling measures reflected in the entitlement matrix. The National Rehabilitation and Resettlement Policy (NRRP) 2007, represents a significant milestone in the development of a systematic approach to address resettlement issues in India and closes significantly the gap between Indian national policies and those of ADB. The Land Acquisition Act (LAA) of 1894 (as amended in 1984) gives directives for the acquisition of land in the public interest and provides benefits only to titleholders. The LAA does not guarantee compensation at replacement cost for the loss of land and assets. By contrast, the NPRR recognizes non-titleholders, although the basic requirement is for the non-titleholder to have been in the project-affected area at least 3 years prior to the declaration of the area as an affected area.

89. One outstanding difference between the government and ADB policies is with regard to the cut-off date for access to compensation and entitlements. According to the NRRP (2007), the cut-off-date for non-titleholders' eligibility for compensation/assistance is three years preceding the date of declaration of the affected area and for the titleholders it is the date of notification under LAA. To bring this RP in accordance with ADB requirements, this RP mandates that in the case of land acquisition, the date of publication of preliminary notification for acquisition under Section 4.1 of the LAA will be treated as the cut-off date for title holders such as squatters the start date of the project census survey.

90. A significant development in government policy is the submission to the Parliament of the Draft National Land Acquisition and Resettlement and Rehabilitation Bill of 20011 (LAA Bill-2011), which would amend the Land Acquisition Act of 1894 (as amended in 1984). If and when this Bill is adopted,6 it would both complement the revision of the NRRP (2007) and decrease significantly the gaps between the LAA and ADB's SPS, 2009. In particular, the Bill would require social assessments for projects involving land acquisition, although it would set minimum threshold of people affected for this provision to apply, while the ADB does not so require. The Bill also expands compensation coverage of the principal act by requiring that the value of trees, plants, or standing crops damaged must also be included. The bill furthermore would match ADB requirements for all compensation to be paid prior to project taking possession of any land. Lastly, the Bill would expand likely compensation packages, and replacement cost is established as the foundation principle, as it is under the ADB SPS (2009)

91. Taken together, therefore, the NPRR-2007 and the LAA Bill - 2011 would establish near equivalence of the government's policies with those of ADB's SPS, 2009. Adoption of the below principles for the project would ensure that both policies are covered in their application to this project, however only apply to this Program when officially approved notified by the government.

B. Involuntary Resettlement Safeguard Principles for the Project

92. Based on the above analysis of government provisions and ADB policy, the following resettlement principles are adopted for this Project:

(i) Measures will be taken to avoid and minimize involuntary resettlement impacts by means of the following (i) exploring alternative alignments or

⁶ The Land Acquisition Amendment Bill was passed by the Lok Sabha in February 2009 but got stuck in the Rajya Sabha due to opposition to some of its provisions, which are still under discussion. Owing to the recent farmers unrest in the country, the central government in May 2011 has assured of a comprehensive revamp of the current draft of the land acquisition bill, having provisions for better compensation and rehabilitation measures, and introduce the same in the next session of Parliament.

locations which are less impacting, (ii) ensuring that appropriate technology is used to reduce land requirements, (iii) modify the designs, cross sections, and geometrics of components, as far as possible, to maximize the ROW and ensure involuntary resettlement is avoided or minimized.

- (ii) Meaningful consultations with affected persons, host communities, and concerned nongovernment organizations in the project area shall be undertaken. All displaced persons will be informed of their entitlements and resettlement options and their participation in planning, implementation, and monitoring and evaluation of resettlement programs will be ensured. Particular attention will be paid to the needs of vulnerable groups, especially those below the poverty line, the elderly, women, and indigenous peoples, and those without legal title to land, and their participation in consultations will also be ensured. A grievance redress mechanism will be established at the PIU level to receive and facilitate resolution of the concerns of affected persons will be established.
- (iii) Improve, or at least restore, the livelihoods of all displaced persons through; (i) land-based resettlement strategies when affected livelihoods are land based where possible or cash compensation at replacement cost for land when the loss of land does not undermine livelihoods, (ii) prompt replacement of assets with access to assets of equal or higher value, (iii) prompt compensation at full replacement cost for assets that cannot be restored, and (iv) additional revenues and services through benefit sharing schemes where possible.
- (iv) Land acquisition for the project would be done as per the Land Acquisition Act, 1894. The Act specifies payment of adequate compensation for the properties to be acquired. Additional support would be extended for meeting the replacement value of the property. The Displaced persons who do not own land or other properties, but have economic interests or lose their livelihoods will be assisted as per the broad principles described in this document;
- (v) Physically and economically displaced persons will be provided with needed assistance, including the following: (i) if there is relocation, secured tenure to relocation land, better housing at resettlement sites with comparable access to employment and production opportunities, integration of resettled persons economically and socially into their host communities, and extension of project benefits to host communities; (ii) transitional support and development assistance, such as land development, credit facilities, training, or employment opportunities; and (iii) civic infrastructure and community services, as required.
- (vi) Assistance to improve the standards of living of the displaced poor and other vulnerable groups, including women, to at least national minimum standards.
- (vii) The displaced persons without titles to land or any recognizable legal rights to land will be eligible for resettlement assistance and compensation for loss of non-land assets.
- (viii) This Resettlement plan will be disclosed before project appraisal, in an accessible place and a form and language(s) understandable to affected persons and other stakeholders.

- (ix) All compensation and other resettlement entitlements shall be provided to the displaced persons and households in accordance with the entitlements described in this RP, before physical or economic displacement.
- (x) The resettlement outcomes, their impacts on the standard of living of displaced persons, and whether the objectives of the resettlement plan have been achieved will be monitored and assessed by taking into account the baseline conditions and the results of resettlement monitoring.

93. In accordance with the resettlement and rehabilitation (R&R) measures suggested and as agreed in the Resettlement Framework for this Project, all affected households and persons will be entitled to a combination of compensation packages and resettlement assistance depending on the nature of ownership rights on lost assets and scope of the impacts including socio-economic vulnerability of the DPs. The DPs will be entitled to the following five types of compensation and assistance packages:

- i. Compensation for the loss crops/ trees at their replacement value;
- ii. Compensation for structures (residential/ commercial) and other immovable assets at their replacement value;
- iii. Assistance in lieu of the loss of business/ wage income;
- iv. Assistance for shifting and provision for the relocation site, and
- v. Rebuilding and/ or restoration of community resources/facilities.

C. Valuation of Affected Assets

94. The affected properties include the built-up structures encroaching or squatting on government land. These are non-titleholders and thus no land acquisition is envisaged. The impacts will include- shifting of structures, boundary wall or fencing, shifting of water tanks and tree cutting. The compensation for each category of impact is based on the replacement cost for providing alternative structure. The valuation of affected properties shall be governed by the following process:

95. The value of houses, buildings and other immovable properties will be determined on the basis of relevant Schedule of Rates (SoR) by the state PWD as on date without depreciation. While considering the SoR, project implementing agency will ensure that it uses the latest SoR for the residential and commercial structures in the urban and rural areas of the region. Compensation for properties belonging to the community or common places of worship will be provided to enable construction of the same at new places through the local self-governing bodies in accordance with the modalities determined by such bodies to ensure correct use of the amount of compensation.

96. Compensation for trees is based on their market value. Loss of timber bearing trees will be compensated at their replacement cost and compensation for the loss of crops, fruit bearing trees is based on the prevailing market rates. The Compensation will be paid before taking possession of the land/ properties.

97. In order to ensure that the rates reflect current replacement costs, the Valuation Committee will verify and approve the estimates wherever felt necessary. The methodology for verifying the replacement cost for each type of loss will include, but not be limited to, the following:

a) **For built up structures and additional assets** like the water tanks, boundary wall, fencing etc. To evaluate the compensation for structures to find out whether the amount will enable DPs to rebuild or replace their affected structures. This is to be done by consulting asset owners on the following:

- From where they use to buy materials
- Type of shops (private or state-owned)
- Distance to be travelled
- Sources (local or foreign) and the cost of various materials
- Who will built the structures (owner or contractor) and whether they will use the hired labor or their own labor;
- Obtaining cost estimates by meeting at least three contractors/suppliers in order to identify cost of materials and labor
- Identifying the cost of different types of houses of different categories and compare the same with district level prices.
- b) For crops and trees: Compensation to be paid by the DC at [the rate] replacement cost estimated by i) the Forest Department for timber trees: ii) State Agriculture Extension Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees.
 - In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only.
 - Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation.
 - Compensation for perennial crops and fruit trees calculated at replacement cost, and at minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of crops/trees.

98. Even after payment of compensation, APs would be allowed to take away the materials salvaged from their dismantled houses and shops and no charges will be levied upon them for the same. A notice to that effect will be issued intimating that DPs can take away the materials so salvaged within 48 hours of their demolition; otherwise, the same will be disposed by the project authority without giving any further notice.

99. APs receiving compensation for trees will be allowed to take away timber of their acquired trees for their domestic use. Trees standing on the land owned by the government and not belonging to any individual will be disposed off through open auction by the concerned Revenue Department/ Forest Department. APs will be provided with an advance notice of three months prior to relocation. Further, all compensation and assistance will be paid to APs prior to displacement or dispossession of assets. A small temple would be affected as a result of this Project. In line with the community suggestions, the same would be fully restored by the Project in close consultation with the community members.

D. Entitlement Matrix

100. ADB SPS-2009 specifies that compensation should be paid for the lost assets on the basis of current replacement cost and resettlement assistance for lost income and livelihoods should be provided to both titleholders and *non-title holders*.

101. In this project compensation for both land and non-land assets will be provided to all titleholder households being affected. Compensation for non-land assets/structures will be paid to all squatters and encroachers.

102. An Entitlement Matrix has been developed, which recognizes and lists various types of losses resulting out of the project and provides the basic tools and guidelines for preparation of compensation and resettlement packages.

103. The entitlement matrix (refer **Table 27**) has been developed in compliance with ADB Safeguard Policy Statement, 2009.

Type of Loss	Identification of	Entitlement	Details
.,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	Affected		
	Households		
A: LOSSES OF	NON-TITLEHOLDER	S	
A.1 Loss of structure (immovable assets constructed by non- titleholders)	Squatters and informal settlers (defined as a person who appears from no where and occupies vacant government land/structure for living space and/or livelihoods)	Compensation for nonland assets at replacement cost and Assistance	 a) Squatters will be notified and given 60 days advance notice to remove their assets. b) Compensation for affected structures at replacement cost, which will be calculated as per the latest prevailing basic schedule of rates (BSR) without depreciation. c) Right to salvage material from demolished structure at no cost. d) A lump sum transfer grant/shifting assistance of Rs 10,000 (based on the type of house and household assets) per household for shifting households' assets and other belonging to the new area.
	Encroachers (defined as a person who has legal title holding to land but illegally extends his occupation onto the contiguous, vacant government land)	Compensation for nonland assets at replacement cost and Assistance	 a) Encroachers will be notified and given 60 days advance notice to remove their assets. b) Compensation for affected structures at replacement cost, which will be calculated as per the latest prevailing basic schedule of rates (BSR) without depreciation. c) Right to salvage material from demolished structure at no cost.
	Tenants	Compensation (in case, additional structure erected) and/or Assistance	 a) Rental assistance for the tenants as per the prevalent rate in the form of grant to cover maximum threemonth rentals. b) A lump sum transfer grant/shifting assistance of Rs 10,000 (based on the type of house and household assets) per household for shifting households' assets and other belonging to the new area. c) Any additional structures erected by tenants will also be compensated and deducted from owner's compensation amount. d) Any advance deposited by the tenant to the landlord will be deducted from land lord/owners total compensation package on submission of documentary evidences. e) Right to salvage material from

 Table 27: Entitlement Matrix

			demolished structure, erected by tenants.
A.2. Loss of Crops and Trees	Squatters on government land and RoW	Compensation for non-land assets at replacement cost and Assistance	 a) Squatters will be notified and given 60 days advance notice to harvest crops/fruits and remove trees. b) Compensation to be paid by the DC at [the rate] replacement cost estimated by i) the Forest Department for timber trees: ii) State Agriculture Extension Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. c) In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. d) Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. e) Compensation for perennial crops and fruit trees calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of crops/trees.
	Encroachers on government land and RoW	Compensation for non land assets at replacement cost and Assistance	 a) Encroachers will be notified and given 60 days advance notice to harvest crops/fruits and remove trees. b) Compensation to be paid by the DC at [the rate] replacement cost estimated by i) the Forest Department for timber trees: ii) State Agriculture Extension Department for crops: iii) and Horticulture Department for perennial and fruit trees. c) In case of standing crops cash compensation at current market value of mature crops for loss of standing agricultural crops only. d) Grant equal to market value of crop lost plus cost of replacement of seeds for the next season's harvest towards loss of crops before harvest due to forced relocation. e) Compensation for perennial crops and fruit trees calculated at replacement cost, and at a minimum as annual produce value for one season times 1 to 3, depending on the nature of crops/trees.

B: LOSS OF L	IVELIHOOD SOURCE			
B.1. Loss of primary source of income for the tenants and leaseholders	Tenants/ Leaseholders	Transitional Assistance	a) b)	Transitional allowance will be paid to each affected household based on minimum wage rates for semi- skilled labor for three months. Training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly paid by the Project to the training institute.
B.2. Loss of primary source of income for the non- titleholders [wage earning employees, agricultural labour, non- agricultural labour, squatters and vulnerable encroachers]	Agriculture/ Non agricultural labour indirectly affected due to acquisition of land or displacement of employer	Assistance for income restoration	a) b) c)	One-time financial assistance for lost income will be paid to each affected labour based on minimum wage rate for semi-skilled labor for three months. Employment opportunity for such APs in the project construction work, if desired so by them. Training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per affected person's choice at Rs 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly paid by the Project to the training institute.
	Wage earning employees indirectly affected due to displacement of commercial structure	Transitional assistance	a) b)	One-time financial assistance for lost income will be paid to each affected employee based on minimum wage rate for semi-skilled labor for three months. Training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly paid by the Project to the training institute.
	Non-titleholders namely squatters and vulnerable encroachers losing primary source of income including vendors and hawkers	Training Assistance for income restoration	a) b) c)	Vulnerable affected households will be given priority in employment as unskilled labor in the Project construction activities. Training would be provided for income generating vocational training and skill improvement options as per APs choice at Rs 10,000 per household. This cost would be directly paid by the Project to the training institute

			d) Organizational/logistical support to
			establish displaced persons in alternative income generation activity
			e) Consideration for project employment.
C: LOSS OF C	OMMON PROPERTY I	RESOURCES	
C.1. Loss of	Affected community/	Restoration and/or	Cash compensation or Replacement/
Common	Government	Reconstruction	restoration of the affected community
Property	Institution	Assistance	facilities (including temples, shrines,
Resources	responsible for the structure		public water stand posts etc) in consultation with the affected community
D: ADDITIONA	L SUPPORT TO VUL	ERABLE	
D.1. Additional assistance to vulnerable groups	Households categorized as vulnerable ⁷	Lump sum assistance	 a) Additional one-time lump sum assistance of Rs. 10,000 per household to vulnerable households. This will be over and above the other assistance/s given as per this framework. b) Vulnerable households could be given priority in employment as labor in the Project construction activities.
E: OTHER UN	ANTICIPATED IMPAC	rs	
E.1.	Owner/ Titleholder/	Cash	a) The contractor shall bear the cost of
Temporary impact during construction like disruption of normal traffic, damage to adjacent parcel of land/assets due to movement of machinery and plant site for contractor etc	traditional rights of the affected plot Community	compensation for loss of income potential	 any impact on structure or land due to movement of machinery during construction or establishment of construction plant. b) Compensation for standing crops and trees as per the market rate. c) Restoration of land to its previous or better quality d) The contractor will negotiate a rental rate with the owner for all temporary use of land outside proposed RoW. e) All temporary use of lands outside proposed RoW to be through written approval of the landowner and contractor. f) Location of construction camps by contractors in consultation with the PWD.
E.2. Any unanticipated adverse impact due to project intervention			oject will be documented and mitigated upon in this policy framework.

⁷ The vulnerable affected people in this project are defined as the poor, landless, elderly, woman-headed households, Scheduled Tribes and those without legal title to land.

VII. GRIEVANCE REDRESS MECHANISM

104. A project-specific grievance redress mechanism (GRM) will be established to receive, evaluate and facilitate the resolution of affected people's concerns, complaints and grievances about the social and environmental performance at the level of the Project. The GRM will aim to provide a time-bound and transparent mechanism to voice and resolve social and environmental concerns linked to the project. The project-specific GRM is not intended to bypass the government's own redress process, rather it is intended to address affected people's concerns and complaints promptly, making it readily accessible to all segments of the affected people and is scaled to the risks and impacts of the project.

105. The PIUs will make the public aware of the GRM through public awareness campaigns. The contact phone number of the respective PIUs will serve as a hotline for complaints and will be publicized through the media and placed on notice boards outside their offices and at construction sites. The project information leaflet will include information on the GRM and will be widely disseminated throughout the corridor by the R&R officers in the PIUs with support from the NGO engaged to implement the RP. Grievances can be filed in writing using the Complaint Register and Complaint Forms or by phone with any member of the PIU.

106. First tier of GRM. The PIU is the first tier of GRM which offers the fastest and most accessible mechanism for resolution of grievances. The Resettlement Officer in the PIU will be designated as the key officer for grievance redress. Resolution of complaints will be done within seven working (7) days. Investigation of grievances will involve site visits and consultations with relevant parties (e.g., affected persons, contractors, traffic police, etc.). Grievances will be documented and personal details (name, address, date of complaint, etc.) will be included unless anonymity is requested. A tracking number will be assigned for each grievance, including the following elements:

- a) Initial grievance sheet (including the description of the grievance) with an acknowledgement of receipt given to the complainant when the complaint is registered;
- b) Grievance monitoring sheet with actions taken (investigation, corrective measures);
- c) Closure sheet, one copy of which will be handed to the complainant after he/she has agreed to the resolution and signed-off.

107. The updated register of grievances and complaints will be available to the public at the PIU office, construction sites, and other key public offices along the project corridor (offices of the ward members, local Resident Welfare Association offices etc). Should the grievance remain unresolved it will be escalated to the second tier.

108. Second Tier of GRM. The Resettlement Officer in the PIU will activate the second tier of GRM by referring the unresolved issue (with written documentation) to the Grievance Redress Committee (GRC)⁸. The GRC will be established at the PWD level headed by the Chief Engineer, before commencement of site works. A hearing will be called with the GRC,

⁸ The GRC will consist of the following persons: (i) Chief Engineer, (ii) Project Director; (iii) representative of the affected person(s); (iv) representative of the local Deputy Commissioners office (land). The functions of the local GRC are as follows: (i) resolve problems quickly and provide support to affected persons arising from various environmental issues and including dust, noise, utilities, power and water supply, waste disposal, traffic interference and public safety as well as social and resettlement related issues such as land acquisition (temporary or permanent); asset acquisition; and eligibility for entitlements, compensation and assistance; (ii) reconfirm grievances of displaced persons, categorize and prioritize them and aim to provide solutions within a month; and (iii) report to the aggrieved parties about developments regarding their grievances and decisions of the GRC.

if necessary, where the affected person can present his/her concern/issues. The process will facilitate resolution through mediation. The local GRC will meet as necessary when there are grievances to be addressed. The GRC will suggest corrective measures at the field level and assign clear responsibilities for implementing its decision within fifteen (15) working days. If unsatisfied with the decision, the existence of the GRC will not impede the complainant's access to the Government's judicial or administrative remedies.

109. The PIU Officers will be responsible for processing and placing all papers before the GRC, maintaining database of complaints, recording decisions, issuing minutes of the meetings and monitoring to see that formal orders are issued and the decisions carried out.

110. Third tier of GRM. In the event that a grievance cannot be resolved directly by the PIUs (first tier) or GRC (second tier), the affected person can seek alternative redress in the appropriate court of law. The PIUs or GRC will be kept informed by the district, municipal or national authority. Nonetheless, the DP is free to access the country's legal system at any time and stage, and not only after following the Project GRM.

111. The monitoring reports of the resettlement plan implementation will include the following aspects pertaining to progress on grievances: (i) number of cases registered with the GRC, level of jurisdiction (first, second and third tiers), number of hearings held, decisions made, and the status of pending cases; and (ii) lists of cases in process and already decided upon may be prepared with details such as Name, ID with unique serial number, date of notice, date of application, date of hearing, decisions, remarks, actions taken to resolve issues, and status of grievance (i.e., open, closed, pending).

112. Costs: All costs involved in resolving the complaints (meetings, consultations, communication and reporting / information dissemination) will be borne by the Project.

VIII. INSTITUTIONAL ARRANGEMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION

A. Key Institutions

113. For resettlement planning and successful implementation of RP there will be a set of institutions involved at various levels and stages of the Project as listed below.

- Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region (MDONER)
- Public Works Departments (PWD), Government of Tripura
- Non Government Organization (NGO)/ field staff deputed from PWD
- Grievance Redressal Committee (GRC)
- Land Valuation Committee (LVC) only if during detailed design land acquisition needs are identified

114. For resettlement activities, the EA (Executing Agency) i.e. MDONER will do the overall coordination, planning, implementation, and financing. The MDONER will create a Resettlement Cell by hiring a consultant or appointing a resettlement specialist and required support staff for the duration of the Project to ensure timely and effective implementation of RPs. The MDONER will coordinate with State PWDs/PIUs for project level RP related activities.

115. The institutional framework and the roles and responsibilities of various institutions to be involved in the R&R activities of the Project and implementation of RP are described below.

B. Project Implementation Unit (PIU)

116. Project Implementation Units (PIUs) will be established at state level headed by a Project Director (PD). The PD will be responsible for overall implementation of R&R activities according to the Plan including responsible for land acquisition and R&R activities in the field; ensure availability of budget for R&R activities; liaison with district administration for support for land acquisition and implementation of R&R; and selection and appointment of the NGOs/field staff.

117. The PIU will have a Resettlement Unit (RU) with at least one full-time Resettlement Officer (RO) for the duration of resettlement activities, with an academic background in social sciences, and relevant skills and experience in resettlement issues. The PIU will maintain all databases and work closely with DPs and other stakeholders. Based on regularly updated data, a central database will also be maintained by RU.

118. The PIU officials and RO will undergo an orientation and training in resettlement management at the beginning of the project. The capacity development training inputs would include ADB resettlement policy and principles. The training activities will focus on issues concerning (i) principles and procedures of land acquisition, (ii) public consultation and participation, (iii) entitlements and compensation disbursement mechanisms, (iv) Grievance redressal, and (v) monitoring of resettlement operation. The training would specifically focus on the differences between provisions of ADB policy and the relevant country laws. The awareness of these differences and the need to follow the provisions of the ADB policy are critical for successful implementation of the RP. The RO will work closely with the District Collector to expedite the payments of compensation for land acquisition and assistance to APs.

C. Non Government Organization (NGO)/ field staff

119. The NGO/field staff would play the role of a facilitator and will work as a link between the PIU and the affected community. Key activities of the NGO in relation to resettlement planning and implementation include: (i) conduct detailed survey of physically and economically displaced persons based on detailed design, and identify poor, female-headed, and vulnerable households affected by land acquisition and resettlement; (ii) prepare the list of the potential DPs and issue ID cards; (iii) facilitate the process of disbursement of compensation to the DPs - coordinating with the revenue department, informing the affected persons of the compensation disbursement process and timeline; (iv) assist DPs in opening bank accounts explaining the implications, the rules and the obligations of a joint account and how s/he can access the resources s/he is entitled to: (v) assist the executing agency in ensuring a smooth transition (during the part or full relocation of the affected persons), helping them to take salvaged materials and shift. In close consultation with the affected persons, the NGO shall inform the PMU about the shifting dates agreed with them in writing and the arrangements they desire with respect to their entitlements; (vi organize training programs for income restoration; (vii) conduct meaningful, ongoing consultation and ensure disclosure of resettlement plans in an accessible manner to the affected persons; (viii) assist PIUs in establishing grievance redress mechanism; (ix) assist PIUs in keeping detailed records of progress and establish monitoring and reporting system of resettlement; (x) act as the information source center for community interaction with the project and maintain liaison between community, contractors and project management and implementing units during the execution of the works; and (xi) provide advice and other supports to PIUs as required. The detailed Terms of Reference of the NGO are enclosed as Annexure 9.

120. The list of agencies that are responsible for resettlement planning and implementation is presented in Table 28.

Activity	Agency Responsible
Establishment of Resettlement Units in PIU and appointment of	PIU
Resettlement officer (RO)	
Organizing resettlement training workshop	PIU
Social Assessment, Resettlement Plan (RP) as required	PIU through (Design and project
	management Consultant) DPMC
Public consultation and disclosure of RP	PIU/DPMC
Hiring of (Non-Government Organization) NGOs /field staff	PIU
Constitution of grievance redress committee	PIU
Review and obtaining of approval of resettlement	PIU
Compensation award and payment of compensation	District Commissioner
Payment of grants	PIU
Taking possession of acquired structures	PIU
Notify the date of commencement of construction to DPs	PIU
Assistance in relocation, particularly for vulnerable groups	PIU / Implementing NGO
Internal monitoring of overall RP Implementation	PIU/NGO
External Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E)	Agency appointed for external monitoring
	and evaluation

 Table 28: Agencies Responsible for Resettlement Implementation

D. Institutional Capacity Development Program

121. This is the first ADB project in Tripura therefore; the institutional capacity to implement projects in accordance with ADB safeguard requirements is limited.⁹ The PIU also does not have social safeguards personnel, capacity to handle IR/IP impacts, gender and vulnerability issues. In this regard, the Project Management Consultants (PMC) will be responsible for training of PIUs staff on aspects such as resettlement planning/implementation, social protection and gender, including the specific recording, reporting and disclosure requirements.

122. The PMC will provide training and capacity building program on resettlement management for the NGO/agency and other PIU staff on issues concerning - principles and procedures of land acquisition, public consultation and participation; entitlements and compensation disbursement mechanisms; Grievance Redressal and monitoring of resettlement operation. Specific modules customized for the available skill set shall be devised after assessing the capabilities of the target participants and the requirements of the Project.

E. Implementation Schedule

123. The period for implementation of RP has been taken from July 2013 to September 2014. Typical RP related activities that require to be performed shall include: planning, verification of DPs, consultations with DPs, payment of entitlements and implementation besides monitoring that shall be carried concurrently and will continue beyond the period of RP implementation and culminate with a post-implementation evaluation. However, the sequence of activities might require changes and may be delayed due to circumstances. A tentative list of implementation activities and schedule is given in **Table 29**.

⁹ At present, the Agency does not have dedicated human resource or institutional cadre to handle resettlement and social issues and it is mostly the technical team which handles Involuntary Resettlement issues. Other gaps identified comprised of a) limited capacity building and opportunities for capacity building on resettlement and b) social & resettlement handled in a project-centric manner and not institutionalised limited resource allocation.

	Table 29: Implementation Schedule														
	2013					2014									
Project Activities	Jul	Aug	Sept	Oct	Nov	Dec	Jan	Feb	Mar	Apr	Мау	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sept
Establishment of PIU															
Appointment of NGO															
Verification of DPs list by NGO															
Review and approval of RP															
Information Campaign & Community Consultation															
Payment of compensation to DPs															
Payment of eligible assistance and to DPs and income restoration															
Handover of site and commencement of civil works															
Monitoring by PIU and verification by Expert/NGO															

IX. RESETTLEMENT BUDGET

A. Resettlement Budget

124. The R&R cost estimate for this sub-project includes compensation for lost assets and resettlement assistance etc as per applicability of the policy. The cost of project management, institutional arrangement, administrative expenses, and monitoring and evaluation agency, etc., is included in the overall project management cost. The costs are based on field-level information and past experience in resettlement management and will need to be updated following the detailed design. To cover up such updated cost estimates additional provision has been made with 5% contingency.

125. The following has been applied to compute the amounts payable as compensation and assistances:

- a) rates for compensation of private structures and restoration of common property have been taken based on discussions with the officials of the PWD. For temporary structures rate and bamboo fencings, rates have been taken based on discussions with affected communities. These are given below:
 - Permanent Structures: Rs. 7000/ sq. m.
 - Semi-Permanent Structures: Rs. 3770/ sq. m.
 - Temporary Structures: Rs. 2150/ sq. m.
- b) rates of trees have been obtained from the Horticulture department;
- c) rates for other assets such as water tanks, bore-wells and cattle-shed has been determined based on local market estimates.
- d) assistances are determined as per the entitlement framework; and
- e) costs of hiring of services of NGO and M&E expert have been estimated based on previous experience.

126. The total estimated R&R cost of the Project is **Rs. 23,778,006/- Rupees Twenty three million seven hundred and seventy eight thousand and six only**, the details are given below in **Table 30**.

S.No.	Item	Unit Rate	Quantity	Cost (in INR)
••		(INR)	Quantity	
Α	Compensation for Impacted Structures			
1	Permanent Structures	7000/sq.mt	149	10,43,000
2.	Semi-Permanent Structures	3770/sq.mt	447	1,685,190
3	Temporary Structures	2150/sq.mt	2086	4,484,900
4	Bamboo Fencings	Lumpsum	-	5,000
5	Boundary Wall	5000/mt	13.5	67,500
	Sub-Total (A)			Rs. 7,285,590
В	Compensation for Impacted Trees			
1	Banana	150	8	1,200
2	Arecanut (Betel Nut)	600	1242	745,200
3	Amla	500	2	1,000
4	Coconut	500	51	25,500
5	Jackfruit	600	70	42,000
6	Mango	1500	74	111,000
7	Shagun	4000	51	204,000

 Table 30: Budget for Resettlement and Rehabilitation

S.No.	Item	Unit Rate (INR)	Quantity	Cost (in INR)
8	Bamboo	30	181	5,430
9	Gamari	800	39	31,200
10	Guava	500	12	6,000
11	Oliv	500	3	1,500
12	Puma	2500	30	75,000
13	Others*	1000	89	89,000
	Sub-Total (B)			Rs. 1,338,030
С	Annual Produce from Fruit trees for 3 seasons			
1	Banana	150	8*3	3,600
2	Arecanut (Betel Nut)	800	1242*3	2,980,800
3	Amla	300	2*3	1,800
4	Coconut	800	51*3	122,400
5	Jackfruit	500	70*3	105,000
6	Mango	1500	74*3	333,000
7	Guava	500	12*3	18,000
	Sub-Total (C)	1		3,564,600
D.	Compensation for Other Im	npacted Asse	ets	
1	Tube-wells	12000	6	72,000
2	Water Tank	2000	1	2,000
3	Cattle-shed	1000	3	3,000
	Sub-Total (D)			Rs. 77,000
Ε.	Assistance			
1	One-time transitional allowance to HHs losing commercial and residential cum commercial structures at the rate of 3 months (90 days) of Minimum Agriculture wage (Rs. 100) in the state for each person losing income in 182 affected HH	Rs. 100/day for 90 days	182 HHs	1,638,000
2	Transitional allowance of Rs. 3500 per month per household to cover maximum three months of rental accommodation in case of severely affected residential, commercial and residential cum commercial structures.	Rs. 3500/ month for 3 months	100 HHs	1,050,000
3	A lump sum transfer/shifting assistance of Rs. 10,000 per household incurring structural impacts for shifting household assets and belonging to new area.	Rs. 10,000/ HH	214 HHs	2,140,000
4	Rental Assistance to Tenants	3500 for 3 months	93	976,500
5	Assistance to Wage earning employees to be given assistance at the rate of 3 months (90 days) of Minimum Agriculture wage (Rs. 100) for each employee losing income due to impact on affected business	Rs. 100/day for 90 days	18	162,000
6	Additional one time financial assistance of Rs. 10,000 per household to vulnerable households	Rs. 10,000/HH	53 HHs	530,000
				6,496,500
F.	Restoration of Community Property Resources			
1.	Temple (One small temple along the road to be relocated)	12 sq.mt	1	84,000
	Total CPR Cost (F)			84,000

S.No.	Item	Unit Rate (INR)	Quantity	Cost (in INR)
G.	Cost of engaging a RP Implementation NGO for impl	ementation		
	NGO support for RP Implementation (2 Lakh per month x 15 months)	200,000/ month	15 months	3,000,000
2.	Grievance handling cost	300,000	Lump sum	300,000
	Total NGO Cost (G)	-		3,300,000
Н.	Monitoring and Evaluation Consultant		Lump sum	500,000
	Total M&E Consultant Cost (G)		500,000	
Ι.	Total Cost A to G		22,645,720	
J	Contingency (5% of the total cost)		1,132,286	
	Grand Total (Rupees Twenty three million seven eight thousand and six only)	nd seventy	23,778,006	

B. Resettlement Financing

127. The PIU, in consultation with the appropriate Revenue officers, will prepare all the necessary plans and the cost for the land acquisition and resettlement. The approved cost will be allocated in advance in the annual budget of the project authority. All the costs for necessary assistances will also be allocated in advance by the IA and will be disbursed prior to the start of the civil work.

128. The disbursement of money to the DPs for land acquisition will be carried out by the District Magistrate/Commissioner's office. The amount will be calculated by the project authority (through the land acquisition officer (LAO) of the Revenue Office). The PIU will deposit the amount at respective district jurisdictions and the district administration will disburse the money to DPs as per the Law and Ministry procedures.

However, in the case of assistance and other rehabilitation measures, the PIU, with assistance from NGO, will directly pay the money or any other assistance as stated in the RP to DPs by means of a cheque payment into individual accounts of the DPs. The RO will be involved in facilitating the disbursement process and rehabilitation program and will facilitate opening of bank accounts for the DPs, who do not have bank accounts.

X. MONITORING AND REPORTING

129. While effective institutional arrangements can facilitate implementation, effective monitoring ensures that the course and pace of implementation continue as originally planned. It is essential to devise a system that helps to identify problems in a timely manner and enables resolution of these problems. Internal monitoring and external monitoring are two such mechanisms that are essential and need to be carried out in parallel project implementation and at different stages respectively. Monitoring – internal and external particularly assumes significance when linear project such as proposed widening cross administrative jurisdictions and thereby involve different stakeholders with varied capacities. Internal monitoring focuses on the quantitative issue such as quantum of land acquisition, payment of compensation, delivery of applicable of R&R entitlements. External monitoring focuses on the qualitative outcomes and outputs.

130. Under this project, internal monitoring will be the responsibility of the PIUs/RU and NGO/ field staff. The internal monitoring PIU/RU will include:

- i. administrative monitoring: daily planning, implementation, feedback and trouble shooting, individual DP database maintenance, and progress reports;
- ii. socio-economic monitoring: case studies, using baseline information for comparing DP socio-economic conditions, evacuation, demolition, salvaging materials, morbidity and mortality, community relationships, dates for consultations, and number of appeals placed; and
- iii. impact evaluation monitoring: Income standards restored/improved, and socioeconomic conditions of the Displaced Persons. Monitoring and evaluation reports documenting progress on resettlement implementation and RP completion reports will be provided by the PIU to MDONER for review and approval from ADB.

131. A suggestive list of monitoring indicators that shall help to track progress is given in **Table 31.** Final set of monitoring indicators should be worked in agreement with the NGOs and ADB.

Parameters	Indicators		
Physical 1	Number of structures acquired		
	Number of structure owners who have been paid compensation		
	Number of common properties that have been affected		
	Number of households affected		
	Number of households provided with		
	 shifting allowance, 		
	 training, 		
	 rehabilitation 		
	 allowance for construction of residence, work sheds, etc. 		
	Number of common properties relocated		
Financial	Amount of compensation paid for structures, crops and other assets		
	Establishment cost for R&R cell		
	Salaries for staff engaged in R&R cell		
	Amount paid to the contracted Monitoring agency		
Social	Number of times the grievances and district level committees		

Table 31: Monitoring Indicators (Internal)

Number of appeals placed before grievance redressal cell
Number of appeal referred
Number of meetings held with the affected villages
Number of visits by DPs for redressal of grievances
Number of cases that have been referred to courts

For projects with significant involuntary resettlement impacts, such as this one, a 132. qualified and experienced External Monitor with previous experience in monitoring of resettlement activities and familiarity with Government and ADB policies, will be engaged with ADB concurrence to verify the monitoring data collected by the PIU/EA. The External Monitor will monitor and verify RP implementation to determine whether resettlement goals have been achieved, livelihood and living standards have been restored, and provide recommendations for improvement. Monitoring will also ensure recording of DP's views on resettlement issues such as; DP's understanding of entitlement policies, options, and alternatives; site conditions; compensation valuation and disbursement; grievance redressal procedures; and staff competency. The External Monitor will advise on safeguard compliance issues, and if any significant involuntary resettlement issues are identified, a corrective action plan will be prepared to address such issues. The External Monitor will report its findings to the EA on a semi-annual basis. The EA/PIU will prepare semi-annual monitoring report that describes the progress of implementation of resettlement activities and any compliance issues and corrective actions. These reports will closely follow the involuntary resettlement monitoring indicators agreed at the time of resettlement plan approval. The ToR for External Monitor is included in Annexure 10.

133. **Table 32 below** provides an indicative set of monitoring indicators that shall help to evaluate effectiveness of implementation of the Resettlement Plan.

Table 32: Indicators for External Monitoring
--

	¥
	Outcomes and Impacts
•	Satisfaction of structure owner with compensation and assistance
•	Type of use of compensation and assistance by structure owner
•	% of DPs imparted education and provided project employment or otherwise
•	% of DPs with better income than before
•	Types of grievances received
•	No. of grievances forwarded to GRC and time taken to solve the grievances
•	% of DPs aware about the GRC mechanism
•	DPs opinion about NGO approach and accessibility
•	Changes to Household income of vulnerable group
•	% of Displaced Persons satisfied with resettlement site facilities.





_

_

PROJPOSED CORRECT OF IMPACT PROPERTY LINE OF PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY EARTHEN Shoulder-Ivarries) EARTHEN SHOULDER - TWO LANE PROPOSED CARRIAGEWAY DRAIN BC 40 m DBM 50 nm WMM Løyer 125 nm Løyer PCC 3.5 x "A" 30% 30% 3.5 X EXISTING CARRIAGEWAY (BT) EXISTING CRUST (BT) BC 40 m DBM 50 mi WHM Layer 125 nm (II) Layer WMM Layer 125 nn (1) Layer 658 180 m TYPICAL CROSS SECTION (BUILTUP AREA) ABBREMATIONS: 1. B.C.= BITUMINOUS CONCRETE 2. D.B.M.- DENSE BITUMINOUS MALADAM 3. W.H.M.= WET MIX HACADAM 4. 0.S.B.= ORANULAR SUB BASE OND RUD-R A15 SI MILER 5. P.C. - PROFILE CORRECTIVE COURSE 6. GL = GROUND LEVEL 100-THE REPORTS / 125 mm WHH (II) LAYER 125 nm WMM (I) LAYER <u>α 8-30</u> NOTE 180 nn 658 FOR DRAMS UPTO 600 nm DEPTH PCC UNING PROPOSED FOR DEPTHS GREATER THAN 600 nm R.C.C. LINING TO BE ADOPTED 108 @ 150 r/c CC M-20 RTH-S DEVALOR DRAWTON PCL N-15 CARTON CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR DETAIL AT "A" RAINFORCEMENT DETAIL OF DRAIN сан alled Project Report (FINAL) SMEC SMEC SMECTON ATTOR ALL FL BOARD ALL SALE SMART ALL SALE SALE SMART ALL SALE SMART ALL SALE н•з UDA PUR TO MELAGHUR (TROZ) (km6 TO km 2) (TVP EUL CROSS SECTION LESIGN & PROJECT MANAGEMENT SUPPORT 43 ADB FOR THE PROPOSED NOR THEN STATE A size Development Sad 4 3146-2003 H#31 0314 P83 41 ALC: C3 ROALS INVESTMENT PROGRAM DFR TRICE DRV DATE: DECAR. 192 MB OPPORT PETAL2 CEREMONE SMEC 1161 ** * 100 CAS File Ref # Weight gen VERMINE SubTOS TO Citize

٦

Annexure B - Letters received from PWD regarding minimization of impacts

GOVERNMENT OF TRIPURA PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT AGARTALA

No.F.6 (181)-PC(PD-I)/2005/6/74-76

30 +A September 2009

To Mr. Madhusudan Hanumappa R&R Specialist - ADB TA 7134 : NESRIP - 2 SMEC India Pvt. Ltd. 5th Floor, Tower C, DLF Building No. 8, DLF Cyber City, Phase II, Gurgaon, Haryana. Fax : 0124 4380043.

> Subject :- TA 7134-IND Preparing and Enhancing Implementation Readyness of the Proposed NESRIP – Regarding Social and Land Acquisition Surveys.

Sir,

Please refer to your letter No. SMEC/PWDtr/1853 dated 20 August 2009 on the subject at issue. In this context it is to inform you that the intention of the State Government in this respect is to affect the private properties as minimum as possible, if unavoidable. You may therefore limit your survey activities as per the requirements of the construction width within the toe line to improve the road upto 2-lane standard.

This is for your information and further necessary action please.

Yours faithfully, (S-Bhowmik) Chief Engineer Public Works Department(R&B) Agartala

าา

Copy to :

1. The Superintending Engineer, 2nd Circle, PWD(R&B), Agattala.

2. The Superintending Engineer, 3rd Circle, PWD(R&B), Udaipur.

S	MEC
Incomin	g Docyments
Date	0 12 09
S. No.	2272
Mode	Past
Dist	ribution
101	

GOVERNMENT OF TRIPURA PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT AGARTALA No.F.6 (17)-PC(PD-1)/2005/6749-51 AAM October 2009 Te-Mr. Madh Isudan Habumappa R&R Spec IIISt - ADB TA 7134 : NESRIP - 2 SMEC Ind i Pvt Ltd. 5th Floor, J Iwer C, DLF Building No. 8, DLF Cybe City, Phase II, Gurgaon, Haryana. Fax : 0124 1380043. Sub : ADE TA 7134-Social and Land Acquisition Survey - TR 02 Udaipur to Melaghur. Sir, This is with reference to the above mentioned subject matter. You are hereby informed t at due to congestion between chainage 12,500 Km & 12,700 km at Kakraban Market area, the s ctal and land ecquisition survey may be restricted to the existing building lines as these enery tehments will not be disturbed for the construction activities. ry-Gaithfully, (Stanowinik) Chief Engineer Public Works Department(R&B) Agertala Copy to : 1. The Sup rintending Engineer, 3rd Circle, (Project Director), PWD(R&B), Udaipur, 2. The Exc utive Engineer, Udaipur Division, PWD(R&B), Udaipur, SHEP , defid DOC NO: 0845 Filt PROJEC MOY 1236 ond HATEL MILOOQ TEU 012180 A 101 19/10/ Hadley 3 H. Dipon chose Ch teld ' d E 1188 26718/447

			Government	ofTripum	
			Office of the Superi Planning Circle	ntending Enginee	и,
			Agar		
	No.P.6 (17	PC(PD 1)/200	\$ 6902-1914		14 October 2009
	Terro	ı 14dan Honuma			
~	R&R Speci	list - ADB TA	7134 : NESRIP - 2		
	SMEC Indi	Pvt. Ltd.			
	5" Floor, T	wer C, DLF Bu	liding No. 8, lurgaon, Horyana.		
~	Fax: 0124	3\$0043.	and the second second second		
	0-1-100	PA TITA Castel	and I and Acquisitio	so Survey - TR 0	2 Udalgur to Melaghar.
		TA (194-botte	due care require		
	Sir,				
	Market are PO(PD-b):	Please read i in place of C)05/6749-51 dat	h 12.500 Km 直 1	n Ch. (2.390 K 2.790 Km indica	m & 12.500 Km at Kakraban ated in our lettar No.F.6 (179)-
					Yama Rithfully.
					Allallachanga
					(Sukamal Bhattischarys)
					Superintending Engineer &
					State Quality Coordinator , PWD(R&B), Tripurs,
1	(1)				Agartala.
Copy	y to :	to an dian Prants	and The Circle (Pro	lect Director), PV	VD(R&B), Udalput.
2	The Est	utive Engineer,	Udaipur Division, P	WD(R&B).Udaig	pur.
					Jan Joh
					100 Maria
SMFC			1		1.00
	5844	e.,			and the second
000 NC			1		2M 591
	NO II	36			last last
000 NC	14	the second se	1		1. 11. 40 1
PROJEK	ri -DM	9			1 halvel
DOI NO PROJEC DATE	14	the second se		C	pand maline
DOL NO PHOJEC DATE DOL RH	14	9		C	period in following
DOL NO PHOJEC DATE DOL RH	19/10/0	9	Mallan ile	C	and polyphone
DOL NO PHOJEC DATE DOL RH	19/10/0	9	Maller	C	send malint
DOL NO PHOJEC DATE DOL NOT	19/10/0	9	Madher	C	send million

					Census	:/Soc	io Econo	mic Surv	rey Qi	uestion	aire			
	Date	,			C	hainag	ne No.	Road N	ame					
		· ·	0 0	9	Start		End	Village			Side Nu			
Inv	estigato	or N	ame		Saj	ervisc	r Name		Res	pondent Nat	ne		AC/	вс
Type of Us	e				<u> </u>							1		
Residential		1	Com	nercial		2	Residential	cum Comme	ercial	3		No of Sto	TRAVE	1
Open Land/	Plot	4	Plant	ation/ (Orchard	5	Graveyard			6		G	1	1
School		7	PHC/	Hosp./	Dispensary.	8	Industrial			9		_		-
Mazar		10	Temp	le		11	Masjid			12		G+1	2	
Church		13	Shrir	ie.		14	Vill Com/ P	anchyat/Gov	rt. Land	15		G+2	3	
Agriculture		16	Waste	e/ Graz	ing/ Barren	17	Others (spe	cify)		99				-
A. IDEN	TIFIC	ATB	ON											
A.1 Gener														
	State				D	istrict			Block			Точ	wn//Vill	age
A.2 Type		erty												
Private Government Trust							Commun	ity			Others			
1					3		4				5			
A.3.1 Ownership Owner 1 Tenant 2 Non- 3				3	Share		76	-		Terre				
Owner	1	1 10	enant	2	Titlehol		3	cropper	4	Jhum land	5		Lease	
A.3.2: If N	on-Titl	leĥo	Ider:	1.	Encroache		I	2. Squatter			1	1		

A.3.3 Name, Address, Phone Number and LANDMARK

A.3.2 Occupiers Name:

A.3.4 If Tenant; Name, Address and Phone Number of the Owner

A.3.5 Please provide with an ID Proof (Ration card, Voter Id, PAN Card, Driving Licence, any ONE) Record the details:

A.4 Utilitie	A.4 Utilities on the Property												
SLNo	Utilities			SLNa	Utilities								
		Total	Impacted			Total	Impacted						
1.	Trees			8.	Water supply pipeline								
2.	Dug wells			9	Retaining wall								
3.	Tube wells			10	Pond								
4.	Water Tap			11	Stone Crusher								
5.	Water Tank			12	Pig Sty								
б.	Hand Pump			13	Others (SP)								
7.	Cattle Shed												

Son/Wife of:

A.5 What are the types of trees that are likely to be affected?

Tree type											
No.											

1. Mahogany, 2. Timber, 3. Palm, 4. Rattan, 5. Bamboo, 6. Apple, 7. Pear, 8. Peach, 9. Others (specify).

B.1 ASSET DETAILS

B.1.1 Measurem	B.1.1 Measurement of the Land: (In mts.)													
L	ength:	Brea	adth	A	rea	Distance from Edge of the Road								
Total	il Affected Total		Affected	Total	Affected	_								

Age o Structu		Le	ngth:	В	readth:		Area			Fype ol Istructi			l'ypolog structu	*	No. of Rooms	Distance from Edge
		Total	Affected	Total	Affected	Tou	al Affec	ted	R	W	F					of the Road
												P	SP	K]	
											_	1	2	3		
Typolog	v of th	e Structu	DIE:													
	~	Roof				Wall				I	loar				Bounda	ry
RCC/RB	SC		1	Bri	ck		1		Concrete	e.			1	Brick		1
Thatche	d		2	W	Wood		2		Muđ				2	Barbe	d Wire	2
Mud				Mu	ıd		3	Stone					3	Woo	ł	3
GI / Asb	I / Asbestos 4			As	pestos		4		Wood				4 (Others (specify)	
Bamboo					stic		5		Others (s	s (specify)			9			
Others (Specif	y)	9	Ot	hers (specify)		9									
B2. In c	ase of	commerci	ial use, details	of busine	55											
Tea Stall	_			1		Kabari S	-		9		Blacks	mith				17
		ia)/Genera	al Store	2			onal Institu			10	Butch					18
Vegetab				3			lestaurant/N	lotel						19		
Cloth/G		ts		4		Electric				12	Medic		nop			20
Tailor sh	-			5		Furnitu				13	Winc					21
Pan/ Cig		Shop		6		Petrol F				14	STD P					22
Garage/				7		Handici				15	Photo					23
Lubricar				8			arlour/Cybe	er cafi	- 1	16	Any o	ther,	please s	pecify		99
B.2.1 - C				- B E - 1		Y	8		1				No			2
			partners? (l e have you er	n Nos.)												
		~	e nave you er 1 prefer to mo	- <i>(</i>	1 (D 1)		<i>c</i>	1.0.	1)							
S.No.	v nere ·		i preier to mo Place	venomi	tere: (Reside	itiai and	Where (Sp						Diete	naa fra	m Current I	antion
3.1NO. 1	With	in Villago					where (ap	eeny	,			+	Dista	mee iro	a current i	ocation
2		ide Villag														
		<u>U</u>	native land/st	nucture												
	-	nd (in big														

B.3 AGRICULTURAL DETAILS

B.3.1 Do you own a	gricultural land	d				Yes	1		No	2	Uni	t (in ac	res)		
Type of land	Irrigated		1		Un-ii	Un-irrigated 2							e Land		3
Price/Per Bigha	ce/Per Bigha														
B.3.2 Do you have a	B.3.2 Do you have any land taken on lease						1 - Yes / 2 - No U					nit (in acres)			
Type of land	Type of land Irrigated 1					Un-irrigated						Wast	e Land		3
Price/Per Bigha	Price/Per Bigha														
B.3.3 Duration of le	ase:							B.4	.5 . Amo	ount of I	ease:				
B.3.4 For how many	years you/you	r ancesto	ors are cu	ultivating th	us land?										
B.3.5 Crops Grown	Bajra	Jowai		Whe	cat		Barley	Fr	uits	Vegetabl	les	Others (Specify)			
Quantity per Bigha															
(in one year)															

B.4: LIVESTOCK DETAILS

TYPE	Cows	Buffalo	Sheep	Goat	Pig	Poultry	Others
Nos.							

C.1. HOUSEHOLD DETAILS

C.1.1. Religion	Hindu – 1	I	Muslim – 2		Sikh 3			Christian 4	Others 9
C.1.2. Caste	ST (hills) ST (Plai		n) SC		M	ОВС	OBC	General	Others
	1 2			3		4	5	6	9
C.1.3 Name of Tribal Group									
C.1.4. Vulnerability Status	BP	Ľ.		1		T.	WHH		2
C.1.5. Type of Family	Nuclear		Joint		Extende	đ	Si	ling	Live in
	1		2		3			4	5
C.1.6. No. of Persons in HH	Above 15 yrs (in nos.)				Below 15 yrs (in nos.)				

C.2. Family Profile. (Start from Head of the Household)

Member Number	1	n Head of 2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	
C.2.1 Name													Write names of all persons who live and eat together in this household but exclude persons under the age of 15 years.
C.2.2 Relationship	НĦ												Codes given below
C.2.3 Sex	1	l I	I	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Male
CL23 DEX	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Female
C.2.4 Age													Age on last birthday
	1	1	1	1	I	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Married
C.2.5 Marital	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Unmarried
Status	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Divorced
Status	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Separated
	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	Widow/Widower
	I	1	1	1	I	1	1	1	I	1	1	1	Illiterate
	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Primary (class 4)
C.2.6 Education	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Secondary (5 - 10)
C.Z.O Education	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Higher (graduate)
	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	Technical
	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	Vocational
	1	1	1	1	t	1	1	1	I	I	I	I	Handicap by birth
C.2.7	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Handicapped later
Health	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Chronic illness
1	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	No illness/ healthy

Codes for Relationship

Conco Ini Indiano initi							
Head of the House Hold	нн	Wife	2	Husband	3	Son.	4
Daughter	5	Son-in-law	6	Daughter-in-law	7	Grandfather	8
Grandmother	9	Grandson.	10	Grand daughter	11	Grandson-in-law	12
Grand daughter-in-law	13	Brother	14	Sister	15	Brother-in-law	16
Sister-in-law	17	Fether	18	Mother	19	Father-in-law	20
Mother-in-law	21	Uncle	22	Aunt	23	Cousin	24
Nephew	25	Niece	26	Any other (specify)			

D.1. EMPLOYMENT STATUS OF THE FAMILY MEMBERS

D.1 Employment	I	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Yes
Status	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	No
	t	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	1	Agriculture
	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Agri Labour
D 2 O	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Non Agri Labour
D.2 Occupation (Main	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Business/Trade
(main occupation)	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	151	5	5	5	5	Govt. Service
occupation/	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	Private Service
	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	7	Maid Servant
	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	Others
	L	1	I	1	1	1	Ι	1	I	1	1	1	No work available
D.3 Non-	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Seasonal inactivity
Working Status	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Household duties
(Give main	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Old/young
reason)	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	Handicapped
Teasony	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	6	Student
	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	9	Others
	Ľ	1	L	1	1	I	I	1	L	1	1	1	Less than Rs.2000
D.4 Income per	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	2	Rs.2000 - 3000
month	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	3	Rs. 3000 - 4000
	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	4	Above Rs 4000
D.5 Skills													This may have
													Multiple answers

D.6 HAVE YOU AVAILED ANY BENEFIT UNDER CENTRAL OR STATE GOVT, SCHEME? 1. Yes 2. No

Scheme	CSS or State Govt.	Purpose	Amount Availed	Training
SGSY				
JGSY				
NREGA				
PMRY				
DWACRA				
Others (Specify)				

D.7: INCOME AND EXPENDITURE

Income			Expe	nditure	
Sources	In Rupees	Items	In Rupees	Items	In Rupees
Agriculture		Food		Electricity/Utilities	
Commercial		Cooking fuel		Water	
Service (Pvt./Govt.)		Clothing		Social events	
Livestock		Transport		Agriculture (labour/tools)	
Remittance (money order, etc)		Healthcare Medicines		Seeds/fertilizers/pesticides	
Others (Specify)		Education		Others (specify)	
Total				TOTAL	

D.8 PROJECT RELATED INFORMATION

DIGITICO/DGT MEMITIND HILL OF							
Are you aware of the	Ye	15		1	No		2
proposed project							
If yes what is the source	TV - 1	Newspaper	r - 2	Govt. officials - 3	Other villagers – 4	Oth	1er - 9
Positive impac	ts perceived.			N	egative Impacts Perceived		
Increase in employment produc	tivity	1	Los	s of land			1
Increase in vehicle speed		2	Pre	ssure on existing infras	tructure		2
Increase in business opportunity		3	6 Mo	re visitors/population			3
Increase in land price		4	E Con	nflict with outsiders			4
Better reach /access to towns		5	Inc	rease in road accidents			5
others		9	oth	ers			9

D.9 REHABILITATION OPTIONS

OWNER	Land or structure		Commercial structure	
What is preferred	Cash compensation at replacement value	1	Cash compensation at replacement	1
rehabilitation measure			value	
	Equivalent Land for land and construction	2	Shifting, and rental allowance and	2
	allowance		training	
	Rehabilitation grant	3	Others (specify)	9
	Others (Specify)	9		

TENANT	Land or structure		Commercial structure	
What is preferred	Shifting, and rental allowance	1	Shifting, and rental allowance and	1
rehabilitation measure			training	
	Others (specify)	9	Others (specify)	9

D.10 Provide a hand-sketch drawing indicating the dimensions of the property (Structure/Land) in this blank space along with the land mark)

5. N No. II	/illage D	Side		fected Pers C1.1 Religion	C1.2	1	C1.4 Vulnera- bility status	C1.5 Type of family	C1.6 Persons above 15 years	C1.6 Persons below15 years	Name	Relatio nship	Sex	Age	Marital status	E duca- tion	Health	E mloym ent status	Main occu- pation	Non working status	Income	Skills
67 F	1.P						-				GOPAL	14	1	41	0 2	3	4	1	2	2	1	MECHANICAL NO
68 H	ар ар	L	16	- ¹	6			2	5		SANTOSH MOHAN DEY RATNA DEY	HH 2	2	51		2	4 4 1 4		۴	4 1	•	NO
70 1	α.P										SWAP NA DEY	5			5 2	3	1 4	2	1	6		NO
71 4	Ω.P										JYO TS NA DEY	15		6	5 5	1	4	2	2	4		NO
72 4											BAPAN DEY	25	1	20		3	<u> </u>	2	2	1		NO
73 4		L	17	- ¹	5			- ·	2		NIKUNGA BIHARI DEVNATH Shivani devnath	HH 2	2	7:		3	1 J 1 J	2	1			NO NO
75 4		L	17.1	1	5			3	3		PINTU DEB NATH	нн 🕹	1	3			i i	1	5	5		NO
76 H	Ω.P										BASHANA DEB NATH	19	2	61	<u> </u>	2	4	2	2	3		NO
77 H											RATNA DEB NATH	2	2	20			. 4	1	5	5		NO
78 H 79 H		L	17.2	1	5			3	3		TITU DEBNATH SA REINI DEY	нн	1 1	4:			+ •		5	5		NO NO
80 1											DEEPALIDEY	21	2	5				2	2	3		NO
81 F	۹D	L	17.3	1	5			1	2	1	LITU DEBNATH	нн	1	- 4°	1 1			1	5	5	4	NO
82 F				<u> </u>	-						PRINAMA DEBNATH	2	2	31			4	2	2	3		NO
4 E8	10	L	18	¹	5		2	g 3	•		SHEPHALI MAJUMDAR Sukanta Majumdar	нн	2	5	5 5	2	4					NO NO
85 4											TAPASI MAJUMDAR	5	2	20	5 2	3		2		3		NO
86 4	Ω.P										NAGENDRASHARMA	18	1	8	5 5	2	2 3	2	2	4		NO
87 4		R	1	1	3		2	2 3	5		BISHAKHA DAS	нн .	2	5		1	4	2	2	3		NO
4 88	10										SUKUMAR DAS PRATIMA DAS	4	1 1	21	() 1 11 1	2	4		4	4		NO NO
90 1	0.P										KESHAB DAS		1	2	1 2	3	· ·					NO
91 F	Ω.P										SANKAR DAS	4	1	11	8 2			1	9		2	NO
92 H	1.P	R	З	1	6			3	4			нн	1	51	0 1		4	1	4			NO
93 H 94 H											BINA DEY Shanti Bala dey	2	2	45		2	4	2	2	3		NO NO
95 4						<u> </u>					PUJA DEY	19		1		2	4 1 1		1	•		NO
96 1		R	4	1	6			3	3		BIJAY CHAKRABORTY	нн	1			2	1	1	•	-		NO
97 H	⊈P										BABY CHAKRABORTY	2	2	3:		3	4	2	2	3		NO
4 8e	<u>1</u> P			ļ			ļ	<u> </u>			MALATICHAKRABORTY SAMIR CHAKRABORTY	19 HH	2	7		1	4	2	2	3		NO NO
100 1					•	<u> </u>	'				SIPRACHAKRABORTY	nn 19	2			~	· ·		•	4		NO
101 1	1.P										PRANATI CHA KRABO RTY	2		1:	9 1	3	i	2	2	3		NO
102 1		R	6	1	5			2	9		KAJAL NEUGI	нн	1	31	0 1	3	4	1	4			NO
103 4											SUJATA NEUGI DULAL NEUGI	2	2			3	1 i	2	2	3		NO
104 1						<u> </u>					SAJAL NEUGI	14		41		3	1 4		4			NO NO
106 1	1.P										SWAPAN NEUGI	14		4		3			1			NO
107 H	⊈P										MISTU NEUGI	17	2	3:	2 1	3	1 4	2	2	з		NO
108 1											SUSMITA NEUGI	17			4 1		4	2	2	3		NO
109 1											SUJATA PAL NEUGI GITA NEUGI	17		25	9 1	3	4	2	1	3		NO NO
111 1		R	7	1	5			1	2		DULU NEUGI	HH 13	1	43		3		1	9	,		NO
112 1											MISTU NEUGI	2	2	3:	2 1			2	2	3		NO
113 4		R	8	1	6			3	5		GOPAL CHSAHA	нн	1	4:		2	2 4	1	•	_		NO
114 1	1.0										ANITA SAHA SUMAN SAHA	2	2	3	oj 1 2 7	3	4		1	3		NO NO
116 4	αP										SEPALISAHA	5	2	1	7 2		i		1	6		NO
117 1	Ω.P										PUSPA RANI SAHA	19	2	6	5 5			2	2	4		NO
118 4		R	9	1	6			3	3		NANDAN SAHA	нн	1	31		-	2 3	1	4	_		NO
119 H											SHIKHA SAHA CHAPALA SAHA	2	2			-	: 3 / 3	2	1	3		NO NO
121 1	1.P	R	10	1	6			1 1	3		MANIK DEY	нн	1	4		-	i i	1	•	· · · ·		NO
122 1	1.P										NUPUR DEY	2	2	3:	5 1	2	4	2	2	1		NO
123 k					-			L .			MANISHA DEY MANIKLAL NEUGI	5	2	1:		2	4	2	· · ·	6		NO
124 H		IN .	11	'	6	<u> </u>		'	5		MANIKLAL NEUGI FOLAN NEUGI	HH 2	1 2	51	<u> </u>	3	y 3		+	3		NO NO
126 4	1.P										MAUMITA NEUGI	5	2	1			i	2	1	6		DANCE
127 F	1.P										ANKITA NEUGI	5	2	19	5 2	3	4	2	2	6		NO
128 H	<u>∎</u> P	_									GAUTANI BHOUNIK	16	1	2		3	4	1	2			NO
129 H	0.P	R	15	1	5	<u> </u>		1	•		JOGENDRA MAJUMDAR Charu bala majumdar	нн	1	6: 5:	5 1	2	4	ļ!	+			NO NO
13U P					<u> </u>	-					HAREKRISHNA MAJUMDAR	4		31			1		2	1		NO
132 F	Ω.P										ANITA MAJUMDAR	5	2	2	8 2	3	i	2	2	1		NO
133 H	ΩP	R	17	1	3		2	2 1	2		GITA MAJUMDAR SUKANTA MAJUMDAR	нн	2	55 31 51	5 1	2	4	2	2	3		NO
134 14																						NO

													1		1							
Anne	(ure 5:	Details	s of Af	feated Pers	ons													L .				
S. No.	Village ID	Side	No	C1.1	C1.2		C1.4 Vulnera-	C1.5Type	above 15	C1.6 Persons below15		Relatio			Marital			ent	Main occu-	Non working		
136	110	-		Religion	Caste	group	bility status	of family	years	years	Narne Gita dhar	nship	Sex	Age		tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	Skills
130	KLP		<u> </u>								MANAK DHAR	5		22						6		NO
138											SAGAR DHAR		1	19			4	. 2		6		NO
139 140		-	19		5						SA KITE DHAR Shyamlal Bhadra	нн		19		-		2		6	ļ.,	NO NO
141		<u> </u>	1 13	<u> </u>		·		, · · · · ·	· · ·		PRATIBHA BHADRA	2	2 2	60							•	NO
142	K1.P										PARTHA BHADRA		1	35	5 1		4	. 2		1		NO
143		-	<u> </u>								SUSMITA BHADRA Santunu Bhadra	7	2	22	2 1	3		2		3	ļ.,	NO NO
145	KLP	R	20	1 1	5			3	3	2	GANESH SUTRADHAR	нн		35	<u> </u>	2		1	•			NO
146	K1.P								-		SHANTI SUTRAHAR	2		28	3 1		2 4	2		3		NO
147		-									MUKTA BALA SUNDARI SUTRAD		2	65			1 3	2		•		NO
148 149		ĸ	21	2				'	3		KAJI NASIRUDDIN AHMED Manihar Begum	нн		39				1 2	•	1		NO NO
150											NOUSARA KHATUN	19		70			2	2		i		NO
151	K1.P	R	22	! 1	5			1	3		MALLIKA DEY	нн	2	40	1 1		4	1	5	_	2	NO
152 153			-								PRIYANKA BHADRA Kirit Bhadra	5		17				2		6		NO NO
153		L	1	1	3			1	3	і <u>п</u>	HARIDAS	нн	1	10				1 1		- · · ·		NO
155	J IIU	Ĺ			Ľ				Ľ		BIDHU BHUSAH		i	17	2	3		1	3		1	NO
156											SUDARSAN KAMAKER	•	1	16			2 4	. 1	3			NO
157 158		<u> </u>	2	1	6	' 		¹	3		JUGANGSHU KUMAR RANIDEV	HH 2		65 50				1				NO CRAFT MAI
159		+	<u> </u>								ABHIKDEV	1	1	20				1	6	ľ ľ		NO
160 /	J IIU	L	3	1 1	6			3	7	1	KESHAB CHAKRABORTY	нн	1	32	2 1			. 1	4			NO
161 162											CHAMPACHAKRABORTY Karnimay Chakraborty	2	2 2	28			1	. 2	6	3		NO NO
162		+	<u> </u>								SHIP RA CHA KRABORTY	17		32		3			•	3		NO
164	J MU	+	<u> </u>								SUKANTA CHAKRABORTY	14	1	28	3 2	i i	i i	1	•	, v	1	NO
165											KALIPADACHAKRABORTY	18		63			2 4	. 2		۱		NO
166		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>				ļ			GOURICHAKRABORTY Uttam Shingha	19 H H	2 2	9 38 1 40				2		3		NO NO
168		<u>r</u>	⊢ •			'		<u> </u> '			SAMA SHINGHA	2	2 2	30					•	3		NO
169	J II.U										MILAN SHINGHA	19	2	68	3 5	1	i 3	2				NO
170		L	5	1	5			3	6	1	HARADHAN SUTRA	нн	1	65	5 1			. 2		4		NO
171			<u> </u>								MANJURISUTRA Shyamalsutra	2	2 2	55				2	3	3	· ·	NO NO
173		+	<u> </u>								AMAISH SUTRA			26				2	- ·	1	•	NO
174	J II.U										SA NG ITA SUTRA	5		20	2 ונ			. 2		6		NO
175					-						PINKISUTRA	7	2	21		-	2 4	2		3		NO
176		<u> </u>	6	'	5			·	•	1	SWADESH SUTRADHAR LAXMISUTRADHAR	нн		60 52			2 3			9	3	NO NO
178											RUPALISUTRADHAR	5	5 2	20		^	i i	2	,	6		NO
17.9											PINKISUTRADHAR	5	5 2	16			2 4	. 2		6		NO
180		L	7	1	5		1		2		ADHIR SUTRADHAR SUCHAR SUTRADHAR	нн	1	30	1 <u>1</u>			1	•		2	NO
181		L.	8	1	1			1	5		SANTO SH SUTRADHAR	<u>2</u> НН		45		2		1 1			- I	NO
183 .	J III.	Ĺ	Ľ						Ľ		ARATISUTRADHAR	2	2 2	40	1 1	2	2	2		3		NO
184											CHANDAN SUTRADHAR		1	22	2 2			2		1		NO
185											RAJU SUTRADHAR PAYEL SUTRADHAR		1	20						6		NO NO
187		L	9	1	6	1		1	2		HIRU DHAN DEV	нн	1	68				1		°		NO
188 .	100								_		BINA DEV	2	2 2	65	5 1	2	2 4	2		3		NO
189 190 J	JIIU	L	10	1	5			1	3	1	KAMALPAUL Jharna Paul	нн		48			4	1	3			NO
190		+	-								JHANNA PAUL Kanika Paul	5		42				2		1		NO NO
192	JILL	L	11	1	6			3	5	1	SUNIL PAUL	нн	1	39	5 1			1	4		3	NO
193 .	J MJ										KUTTIPAUL	2	2 2	33	1		1	2		1		NO
194 195					<u> </u>						SHUDHIR PAUL Puspa Paul	18		80				2		4		NO NO
195		-	-								SHIKHA PAUL	19		39						5		NO
197	J IIU	L	13	1	6			3	<u>ا</u>	1	KA LACHAND SA HA	нн .~	1	68	3 1			1		Ľ,	4	NO
198											SABITA SAHA	2	2 2	60	1			2		3		NO
199				l	 						RAJIB SAHA Shima saha	4	· ·	36		· · · · ·			5			NO
200		L	14	1	6			3	6	п	HARADHAN BANDYO PA	п п	1 1	30 66				1	1	, J		NO
202	J II.L	Ľ			Ľ			Ľ	Ľ	<u> </u>	PATHOLBANERJEE	2	2 2	55	1			2		3		NO
203	J II.U										TAPASH BANERJEE		1	55	3 1		•	. 2		1		NO
2014 2015					<u> </u>						RATNA BANERJEE PARTHA BANERJEE	7		28	3 1		4	2		3		NO NO
	4 M 4	1	1	1	1	1		1	1	1	PARINA DANERJEE		H 1	1 31	u 1	1 3	4 4	4 2		1 1	1	1 NO

													<u> </u>		1		1					
S. No.	Village ID	Side		fected Pers C1.1 Religion	C1.2	1	C1.4 Vulnera- bility status	C1.5 Type of family	C1.6 Persons above 15 years	C1.6 Persons below15 years	Name	Relatio nship	Sex	Age		E duca- tion	Health	E mloym ent status	Main occu- pation	Non working status	Income	
207		L	15	1	1 3			1	2	1	UTTAM SHIL IRATNA SHIL	нн	1	32			2 (•		3	NO NO
2009		L	16	1	6			1	2	2		нн 🕹	1	50			2 3	1	5			NO
210											SABITA BANERJEE	2	! 2	40			4	2		3		NO
211		L	16.1	· · · ·	<u>н</u> в			'	3		CHANDRA SHEKHAR BANERJEE BABLI BANERJEE	нн 2		50			1 3		5	3	•	NO NO
213	J IIU										NILUTPAL BANERJEE	i	1	16	5 2	2	z i	2		6		NO
214		L	17	1	1 3			3	6	. 0		нн	1	60			2	2		4		NO
215											MAMATA DAS RAJIB DAS	2		50 23			2 3	<u>ין 2</u> ער 1	6	, ,	2	NO NO
217	J II.L										PUJA DAS	7	2	18	3 1		2 0	2		1		NO
218											MANAB DAS		1	26	5 2		3 (1	6			NO
219		L	18	1	6			3		1	BISMAJIT DAS KARTIK DUTTA	нн •		20 52			2 3	1 <u>2</u> 1 1	1	• •		NO NO
221	JIILI	-									SANDHA RANI DUTTA	2	! 2	48	3 1		2 3	2		۱		NO
222 .											DEBASISH DUTTA Sutapa dutta	4	1	28	<u>5 1</u>			1	•			NO NO
223		L	19	1	6			1	2	1		г НН		48				1		1		NO
225	JIU										SHIKHA SARKAR	2	2	35	5 1	3	3 0	2		З		NO
226 227		L	20	1	6		l	1	2	1	JAG ADISH DUTTA Moushumi dytta	нн		47 37			2	1	<u> </u>		3	NO NO
228		L	21	1	6			1	2	2	DIPAKBARDHAN	нн	1	37			2	1	•		з	NO
229	J ILLI										PRABHATI BARDHAN	2	2	29	9 1		3 (4 2		3		NO
230 J		L	22	1	1 3			3	4		PARITOSH MAZUMDAR Giri Bala Mazumdar	нн		39	5 1				•	ļ.,	•	NO NO
232 .	JIU				<u> </u>						GITA RANI MAZUMDAR	19		55	5 5		z i	2		3		NO
233 .	J II.J										NAMITA MAZUMDA R	2	2 2	30	1 1		2 0	4 2		3		NO
234 . 235 .		L	23	1	1 <u>5</u>			2	3		KAJAL CHOUDHURY SAJAL CHOUDHURY	HH 14		36	5 2		2 0		6			NO NO
236					<u> </u>						PO TO L RANI CHOUDHURY	17		23			2	2	· ·	з		NO
237		L	24	1	6			1	2			нн	1	60			2 0	1	4			NO
238 . 239 .		1	25		6						ILA RAHA PRASENJIT RAHA	2 HH	2 2	50			2 0	u 2		3		NO NO
240			- 20		<u>+</u> − °			'			MUKTIRAHA	2	2	26			i	2	•	3		NO
241		L	26	1	6			1	2	!		нн	1	36			3 (1	+		3	NO
242		1	27		6			3		1	MANIDAPA KARMAKAR (RAHA) Jayanta das	2 HH	2 2	30				2		3		NO NO
244		-			<u> </u>			Ť	· · · · ·	' '	HARINARAYAN DAS	18	1	58			i i	2			- ·	NO
245	J II.J										APARNA DAS	19	2	52	2 1		3 (4 2		3		NO
246			28		6						RINTI DAS HARINARAYAN DAS	2 HH	2 2	25				2	<u> </u>	3	<u> </u>	NO NO
248		L	20		<u>₩</u>			- · · ·	•	· · · · · ·	APARNA DAS	2	2	53			2	2	•	3	•	NO
249											JAYANTA DAS	4	. 1	30			4 4	2		1		NO
250 . 251 .			29						1 7	1	RINTU DAS Shankar Sutradhar	7 НН	2	31					<u> </u>	1	<u> </u>	NO
252	J II.J	-	- 23		l °				1		PURNIMA SUTRADHAR	2	2	43			3 3	1	6			NO
253										_	ANGALI SUTRADHAR	15	2	45		-	2	2		1		NO
254 . 255 .		L	31	¹	9			+ ¹	5	· 0	SANKAR RAKAHIT Gouri Rakahit	нн 2	1	62 50			2	1 7	<u>۰</u>	3	۰	NO NO
256	JIU										KA KULI RAKSHIT	5	2	25	5 2		2	2		6		NO
257	J II.I										TAMA RAKSHIT	5	2	29	9 2		2 0	2		6		NO
258 259		L	31.1	-				· · · · · ·			RATNA RAKSHIT SALABALA RAKSHIT	<u></u> 5 НН	2	20		-		2		6		NO NO
260 .	JILI	-									SANKAR RAKAHIT	4	1	38	3 1		4	1	•	Ľ Š		NO
261	J II.L										GOURIRAKAHIT	7	2	32	2 1		3 (2		3		NO
262 263		L	32	-	5			3	6	3	TAPAN RAKSHIT Ananda Roy	нн •	1	30 70	D 2		2 7	1 2 1 7		1		NO NO
264	JIU				Ľ			Ľ`	Ľ	Ľ	PRABIHA ROY	2	2	62	2 1		2 3	2		i		NO
265											KHOKAN ROY	4	1	42			4	1	4	_	3	NO
266 . 267 .			-								RATNA ROY GAUTAM ROY	1		: 36 35	5 1			2		3	3	NO NO
268					1						REKHA ROY	7	2	25		· · · · · ·	3 3	2	· ·	3	t ľ	NO
269	J II.L	L	33	1	6			3	l s	1	RATAN BARDHAN	нн	1	3(4 1	3	3 0	1	4		3	NO
270.			<u> </u>								SHIP RA BARDHAN Sunil Bardhan	2	2	21			3 0					NO NO
272			-			<u> </u>					AMIYA PRABHA BARDHAN	10		0L 8 60			z i	2			<u> </u>	NO
273	J II.J										JHUMA BARDHAN	15		21	7 2		2 0	2		3		NO
274	J II.L	L	34	1	1 5			3	1 6	. 0	DWIJENDRA CH BHOWMIK	нн	1 1	50	미 1		4 3	9 1	5		4	NO

0		D-4-11-	4 . 0.4												1	1	1	1	1			
Anne S. No.	village ID			fected Pers C1.1 Religion	C1.2	Tribal	C1.4 Vulnera- bility status	C1.5 Type of family	C1.6 Persons above 15 years	C1.6 Persons below15 years	Name	Relatio nship	Sex	Age	Marital status	E duca-	Health	E mloym ent status	Main occu- pation	Non working status	Income	Skille
275	JIIU			realigion		group			Jouro		RINABHOWIUK	2	2 2	2 40	4 1	1	4 0	2	2000	2		NO
276											DIPTANU BHOWINIK		4 1	16			3 (2		6		SINGING
277		<u> </u>	35		5						PURNASHASI BHOW MIK Shudhir Ch dey	19 H H	1 2	2 80			2 3	2				NO NO
279		<u> </u>			<u> </u>			· · · ·	•		PRAMILLA DEY	2	2 2	2 55			2 0	2	!			NO
280	JIILI										SUKANTA DEY		1 1	32		2 0	4 4	. 1	4			NO
281											SUSMITA DEY		5 2	22		2 2	2 1	2		5		NO
282 283	100	L	37	1	6			1	2	2	MANIK BARDHAN Nilima bardhan	нн		38				1	<u>۱</u>			NO NO
284		L	39	1	6			1	2	2	ASHISBARDHAN	нн	<u> </u>	40			4 3		4			NO
	JIU										SUJATA BARDHAN	2	2 2	2 35		1 3	3 (. 2	1	3		NO
	JIU	L	39.1	1	6			3	3	2	PINTU BARDHAN	нн	1	31		-	2 (. 1	4			NO
287	JIU	l. –	40	<u> </u>	6	-					CHAYARANI DAS BARDHAN Nandan bardhan	<u>2</u> НН	2 2	28			2 0	2	!	1		NO
289		<u> </u>			•				•		JAYASHREE BARDHAN	nn 2		25			2 3		•	2		NO
290	JIU										CHANDAN BARDHAN	10	i i	33	3 1		2	1	•			NO
291											BABLI BARDHAN	17	1 2	2 22		-	2 (. 2		2		NO
292 293		L	41	1	6			3	3		DILIP BARDHAN Angali Bardhan	нн		71			2 3		•	,		NO NO
294		<u> </u>	-								JOSHINA BARDHAN	21		2 62			1 7	2				NO
295	JIU	L	42	1	6			1	2		PRASHANTA BARDHAN	нн		32			2 3	1	4			NO
296											TRIPTI BARDHAN	2	2 2	20	4 1	1 2	2 (. 2		3		NO
297 298		L	43	1	6			1	2		AJIT BARDHAN Artibardhan	нн		60 2 50			2 3		1	,		NO NO
299		<u> </u>	••	1	9			1	-			нн	4 4	(DL 45						•		NO
300		-	<u> </u>	· · ·	1 - 1			· · ·			GITA DEV	2	2 2	2 37			2 0	2		3		NO
301											SUBRATA DEV		L 1	18			3 (. 2		5		NO
302											SAMRAT DEV		4 1	15			2 (2	-	1		NO
303	J 100	Ľ	46	1	5			1	•		SUDHIR CH PAUL Ratna Paul	нн		6 (2 58			4 3		5			NO NO
	JIII	<u> </u>	<u> </u>								SUDEEP PAUL			31				2		1		COMPUTER
306	JIU										ANJAN PAUL		4 1	28	8 2	2 0	4 4	. 2		1		NO
	JIU	L	47	1	5			1	3	1	SHIBHA PRASAD PAUL	нн	1	49			3 3	1	1			NO
308	JIILI		<u> </u>								TAPASI PAUL ANUBRATA PAUL		2 2	2 37			2 0	. 2		2		NO NO
310		L	51	1	6			3	5			нн	1	52			3 6	1	4	·		NO
311											RANILODH	19	9 2	2 75	5 6	5 1	1 3	2		9		NO
312	JIU										PRITILODH	2	2 2	2 45			3 (. 2	!	3		SINGER
313 314	100		<u> </u>								SARBARILODH SAGAR LODH			21			3 (6		SINGER
315		L	52	1	6			3		1	PARIMAL DAS GUPTA	нн		70			2	1		• •		NO
316	JIU	-			_						SANDHA DAS GUPTA	2	2 2	2 58	8 1		2 0	. 2	1	Э		NO
317			<u> </u>								BIJOY DAS GUPTA		4 1	35	5 1	4 3	3 (1	•			NO
318	JIILI	<u>. </u>	53								BIPTIDAS GUPTA Anil Kakrmakar	т НН		27			3 0	2		3		NO NO
320	JIU	<u> </u>			<u>+</u>			- · · ·	· · · · · ·	· · · ·	MADHABI KARMAKAR	2	2 2	2 50			2 0	2		3		NO
321	JIU										UTTAM		1	30	1		2	1	9		3	NO
322 323	JIU										MITHU	1		2 26	5 1		2 0	2		3		NO
323						-					GOUTAM Bapi	10	4 1 1 1	25						1 6		NO NO
325		L	54	1	6	1		3	7	5	ASHISH BARDHAN	нн	1	6			1 1	1	•	l		NO
326											SUJATA BARDHAN	2	2 2	38			3 (- 2		3		NO
327											CHAYARAMABARDHAN	19		2 65			2 3	2		9		NO
328	JINJ	<u> </u>	<u> </u>			-					PINTU BARDHAN Chyarani bardhan	10		38				1	+ •			NO NO
330	JIU				<u> </u>	<u> </u>					MINTU BARDHAN	10		20		il É	1	1	5			NO
331	JIU										ALIBARDHAN	17		2 20	4 1		3 0	2		3		NO
332	JIU	L	55	1	6			3	4	1	PARIMAL DASGUPTA	нн		70			2	1	4	_		NO
333 334		-	<u> </u>								SANDA DASGUPTA Bijoy dasgupta			2 58						3		NO NO
335					1	<u> </u>					DIPTI DASGUPTA	7	· ·	21			1	2	•	3		NO
336	JIU	L	57	1	6			3	4	1	KAMALDEV	нн		38	8 1		2	1	4		2	NO
337											ANIL DEV	18		68		2	2	2		2		NO
	JIU	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>	l					DIPALI DEV RINKU DEV	19	1 2	2 60			1 2	2		5		NO NO
	JIU	L	58	1	6			1	3	n	NARAYAN BARDHAN	нн	1 1	2 32			2	1 1		J		NO
341	JIU	Ĩ.			Ľ				Ľ		SUKLABARDHAN	2	2 2	2 30	1 1		2	2	Ĺ	З		NO
342											UTPAL BARDHAN		4 1	23	3 2	· · · ·	3 0	1	4			NO
343	J III.	<u> L</u>	59	1 1	I 6	1		1 3	5	2	RATAN BARDHAN	нн	1 1	1 30		U 2	2 (il 1	1 4	I	3	NO

B B D																							
D D	Anne	(ure 5: [Details	s of Af	fected Pers	ons I									<u> </u>								
B B	s.	Village		I						1			L				L.		-	1			
N Refu Carbo Gue Junt Norm Norm <th< th=""><th>No.</th><th>ID</th><th>Side</th><th>No</th><th>C1.1</th><th>C1.2</th><th>Tribal</th><th>Vulnera-</th><th>С1.5 Туре</th><th>above 15</th><th>below15</th><th></th><th>Relatio</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>ent</th><th>oc cu-</th><th>working</th><th></th><th></th></th<>	No.	ID	Side	No	C1.1	C1.2	Tribal	Vulnera-	С1.5 Туре	above 15	below15		Relatio						ent	oc cu-	working		
No. No. <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Religion</th> <th>Caste</th> <th>group</th> <th>bility status</th> <th>of family</th> <th>years</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>nship</th> <th>Sex</th> <th>Age</th> <th>status</th> <th>tion</th> <th>Health</th> <th>status</th> <th>pation</th> <th>status</th> <th>Income</th> <th>Skills</th>					Religion	Caste	group	bility status	of family	years			nship	Sex	Age	status	tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	Skills
No. No. <th></th> <th>18</th> <th>3 1</th> <th>80</th> <th>ן 1</th> <th>2</th> <th>2 3</th> <th>2</th> <th></th> <th>9</th> <th></th> <th></th>													18	3 1	80	ן 1	2	2 3	2		9		
Name Name <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>60</td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>2</td><td></td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></th<>				<u> </u>											60		-		2		3		
Name Name <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td> </td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>26</td><td>5 2</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></th<>				<u> </u>		<u> </u>									26	5 2					3		
No Partial No Partia No Partia No Partia			L	60	1	3		1	1		0			1	23	3 2		i	1	•	-		
Si Day Si Day<															7:	5 1		2 4	. 2				
Set Mu C S <td></td> <td>2 4</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td>																		2 4	2		3		
Dip Mo Dip Mo <thdip mo<="" th=""> <thdip mo<="" th=""> <thdip mo<="" td="" th<=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>61</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>5</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>20</td><td>J 2 J 1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></thdip></thdip></thdip>				61						5					20	J 2 J 1							
Xi Mu I M<			-	<u> </u>		⊢ ĭ			°					3 1	60	1			2		•	- ·	
SS. HAU I I I I I IO IO<													19) 2	5	5 1	1		. 2	1	Э		
Bit M C G Image M S M S S M S S M S S M S S M S S M S S M S <th< td=""><td>365</td><td>J II.L</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>22</td><td>Z 1</td><td>2</td><td>2 4</td><td>. 2</td><td></td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></th<>	365	J II.L													22	Z 1	2	2 4	. 2		3		
SD AU I					ļ,									1	25	5 2		2 4	1	9			
No. No. <td>301</td> <td></td> <td>L</td> <td>62</td> <td>1</td> <td><u>ه</u></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td>J</td> <td> •</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>32</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td>•</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	301		L	62	1	<u>ه</u>	<u> </u>		J	•					32			-		•			
ND ND <th< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>2</td><td>1</td><td>Ĵ</td><td></td><td></td></th<>																			2	1	Ĵ		
35 Ju L 66 1 6 1 1 3 Depted with set of set	360	J II.L										BADALDAS	14	1	26	5 2	2	2	1	3		1	NO
35 Ju L 66 1 6 1 1 3 Depted with set of set	361	J NUJ													22	2 2		2 6	2		2		
85 84 <th< td=""><td>362</td><td>100</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td></td><td>ļ</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>4 1</td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>2</td><td></td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td></th<>	362	100				<u> </u>			ļ					4 1	2				2		2		
85 84 <th< td=""><td>364</td><td></td><td>L</td><td>- °*</td><td><u> </u></td><td>ہ ا</td><td></td><td>1</td><td>¹</td><td>- ³</td><td>U</td><td>JUGESH SUTRADHAR</td><td>12</td><td></td><td>63</td><td>2 2 2 1 1</td><td></td><td></td><td>1 7</td><td>+ +</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></th<>	364		L	- °*	<u> </u>	ہ ا		1	¹	- ³	U	JUGESH SUTRADHAR	12		63	2 2 2 1 1			1 7	+ +			
Sec Jul L RS Jul L RS Jul H <th< td=""><td>365</td><td>JIU</td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>PUSHPARANISUTRADHAR</td><td>19</td><td></td><td>5</td><td>5 1</td><td></td><td></td><td>2</td><td></td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></th<>	365	JIU		<u> </u>		<u> </u>						PUSHPARANISUTRADHAR	19		5	5 1			2		3		
88 MU A<	366	JIU	L	68	2	6			3	8	2	SAHIDUL ISLAM		1	60	1 1		i i	1	4		4	NO
SO JUL Image Imag													2	2 2	55	5 1		2 4	2		4		
TO MU A I A I A I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I C I	368	1001		<u> </u>									4		38				2		1		
T MU	309														3						3		
37 JAU Lo C G Lo Lo <thlo< th=""> Lo Lo L</thlo<>	371			<u> </u>		<u> </u>							7	2					2	· ·	з		
To MA L 68 1 S 1 3 1 AAUT SHL HI 1 S 1 4 1 4 3 0 78 JAU 0																					1		
TO JUL L L L L L RATMA SHL 2 2 36 1 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 2 4 1 <				_										2							3		
To JUL L T JUL L T JUL L T S JUL JUL L T S JUL JUL JUL L T S JUL L T JUL			L	69	1	5			1	3			нн							•			
37 JUL L 11 3 3 3 2 MAD HAG DHOSH HH 1 38 1 2 4 1 4 38 0 75 JUL - - - - - JUL 15 65 1 4 2 4 0 3 6 2 14 1 16 1 2 4 1 9 4				<u> </u>		<u> </u>							4								6		
TO INU IN INU IN INU IN INU INU <thinu< th=""> <thinu< th=""> <thinu< th=""></thinu<></thinu<></thinu<>			L	71	1	5		1	3	3	2		нн	1 1				2 4			·		
380 JUU L 75 1 6 1 2 4 1 9 4 NO 381 JUU L L L L L 1 1 1 1 2 4 1 9 4 NO 382 JUU L L L L L RAUD DAS 4 1 3 4 1 4 3 NO 381 JUU L L L L L S L S L 1 4 4 4 1 6 2 3 CUTING 381 JUU L T6 1 6 2 2 6 HINGAR DAS BARG 4 1 6 2 3 2 4 4 1																					4		
31 JUL 0														2 2				2 4	2		Э		
322 JUL IV <			L	15	1	6	<u> </u>		J	ь	2		нн						1	9			
333 JUU IUU IUUU IUU IUU	382													2 2	30	2 1					•		
384 JILU I <td>383</td> <td></td> <td>; ;</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td>- T</td> <td>з</td> <td></td> <td></td>	383												; ;	2					2	- T	з		
355 JMU L 75 1 6 2 2 6 DHRAN PRABHASARKAR HH 1 85 5 2 3 2 0 4 4 100 378 JMU SAPAK RSARKAR 6 1 2 5 1 2 6 1 0<	384	J II.L										RAMU DAS			28	3 1			. 1	6		1	NO
377 JUN 0 <td>385</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td>	385					<u> </u>								2					2		3		
378 JNU Image: Start St			L	16	1	6		2	2	6			нн					4 3			•		
378 JNU Image: state of the state o			<u> </u>	<u> </u>		<u> </u>							7										
391 JUL 0 <td>389</td> <td>J IILI</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>PATHAMAYASARKAR</td> <td>10</td> <td>1 1</td> <td>3.</td> <td>1 1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td>COMPUTER</td>	389	J IILI										PATHAMAYASARKAR	10	1 1	3.	1 1			1			3	COMPUTER
392 JUL L 77 1 3 4 1 4 1 NO 394 JUL L 77 1 3 4 1 4 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 2 6 1 1 7 1 3 1 6 1 1 6 1 1 6 1 1 0 1																		•	2		1		
393 JUU I Image: Constraint of the second sec						-			· · · ·					1 1				2					
394 JUU L 78 1 5 3 5 1 ADHERICH FAUL HH 1 60 1 4 4 1 4 6 1 4 4 1 6 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 60 1 1 0 1 0 <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>L</td><td><u> </u></td><td>1</td><td> ³</td><td></td><td></td><td>¹</td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td>0.0</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>1 2</td><td>+ •</td><td>7</td><td></td><td></td></td<>			L	<u> </u>	1	³			¹	2			0.0						1 2	+ •	7		
395 JUU - - - - NAIITA PAUL 2 2 49 1 2 4 2 3 NO 336 JUU - - - - ALAK PAUL 4 1 32 1 4 4 2 1 NO 337 JUU - - - - ANITA PAUL 7 2 24 1 4 4 2 1 NO 338 JUU - - - - - ANUK PAUL 4 1 29 2 4 4 1 4 4 0 1 4 4 1 1 4 4 1 1 4 1 1 3 1 3 ANUK PAUL 4 1 18 2 4 2 3 1 0 1 4 1 1 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td>394</td> <td>JIU</td> <td>L</td> <td>78</td> <td>1</td> <td>5</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td>5</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>нн</td> <td>1 1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1 1</td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	394	JIU	L	78	1	5			3	5			нн	1 1					1 1	4			
396 JUL - - - - - 1 32 1 4 4 2 1 NO 396 JUL - - - SANITA PAUL 7 2 2 1 4 4 2 3 NO 398 JUL - - - - ANUK PAUL 7 2 2 4 4 1 4 4 NO 398 JUL R 1 2 6 1 1 3 15&AFAR ALI HH 1 4D 1 4 4 4 4 1 4 4 1 4 4 1 4 4 1 4 4 1 4 1 4 4 1 4 1 4 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <td>395</td> <td>JIU</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>NAMITA PAUL</td> <td>2</td> <td>2 2</td> <td>49</td> <td>9 1</td> <td>2</td> <td>2</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td>NO</td>	395	JIU										NAMITA PAUL	2	2 2	49	9 1	2	2	2		3		NO
398 JUL Image: Constraint of the constrant of the constraint of the constraint of the constrain	396	J II.U											•	1							1		
399 JIU R 1 2 6 1 4 6 1 4 0 1 4 0 1 4 0 1 4 0 1 4 0 1 4 0 1 0 4 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 <td>397</td> <td>JULI</td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>ت </td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td>	397	JULI		<u> </u>		<u> </u>							ت						2		3		
MDD JNU Image: Constraint of the symbolic constrating of the symbolic constraint of the symboli			R	1				1	1				ч	+ +					1	•			
MD1 JNU Image: Constraint of the system				+ <u>'</u>		t °		'	' '				2	2 2					2		Э		
403 JNU 100 101 <	401	J II.J										JAKIR ALI		1 1	18	3 2	3	i i			6		NO
404 JIU R 3 1 6 NO 405 JIU R 3 1 6 3 6 2 16 2 3 4 2 6 NO 405 JIU R 3 1 6 3 6 2 1 1 1 3 4 2 4 4 NO 405 JIU R 3 1 1 1 3 4 2 4 4 NO 407 JIU I Image: Set of the s	402	JUU	R	2	1	6			1	3	1	BALA RAM DEB		1					1	4			
405 JUU R 3 1 3 6 2 4 4 0 405 JUU R 3 1 7 1 7 1 3 4 2 4 4 NO 406 JUU Image: State of the state	403	JILL		<u> </u>		<u> </u>								-					2		3		
405 JNU 407 JNU 104 MATA SEN GUPTTA 2 2 58 1 2 4 2 3 NO 407 JNU 580 SEN GUPTTA 4 1 33 1 3 4 2 1 NO 408 JNU 6 6 6 6 1 33 1 3 4 2 1 NO 409 JNU 6 6 6 MANNA SEN GUPTTA 7 2 2 1 2 4 2 3 NO 409 JNU 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 33 1 2 4 2 1 NO 409 JNU 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 33 1 2 4 2 1 NO 409 JNU 6 6 6 6 6 6 1 33 1 2 4 2 1 NO 400 JAYSRIGUPTTA 7 2 2 1 NO NO			R	-		6				6				2					2		6		
407 JNL 3 1 3 4 2 1 NO 403 JNL 3 1 3 4 2 1 NO 403 JNL			<u> </u>	<u>⊢</u> "	'	⊢ °			, °	• • •			2	2 2					2		3	· ·	
403 JUL Imanika Sen G UPTTA 7 2 28 1 2 4 2 3 NO 409 JUL Imanika Sen G UPTTA													i i	i î					2		1		
409 JNU 410 JN	408	J II.L										MANIKA SEN G UPITTA	7	2	28	3 1		2 4	2		3		
														1	33	3 1		2 4	2		1		
				 .	<u> </u>	- 1	 		-	-	-	JAYSRIGUPTTA Joynal Khan	<u>7</u> НН	<u> 2</u>	2		+	4	2		3	<u> </u>	NO
Nerver Nerver<							1		1	1	-			1		1		1	-		-		
---	------------	--------------	----------	----------	-------------	------------------	----------	---------------	-----------	----------	---------	--------------------	-----------------	-----	-----	---------	---------	--------	------------	--------	---	--------	----
No No No L.1 Title Winder Cl.5. ye about 5 percet percet percet percet	Anne	xure 5: l	Details	of Af	fected Pers	ons																	
	s	Milane																	-	1			
Image: Probability alory Grad Party Par	No	ID	Side	No	C1.1	C1.2	Tribal	Vulnera-	C1.5Type	above 15	below15		Relatio			Marital	E duca-		ent	OC CU-	working		
D D <thd< th=""> D <thd< th=""> <thd< th=""></thd<></thd<></thd<>					Religion	Caste	group	bility status	of family	years			nship	Sex	Age	status	tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	
10 N													2	2 2				3 (2		3		
10 100				<u> </u>										L 1				3 (1		
Open Content Open Content<			<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>						5	5 2						!	3		
	416	1 III.										SALIM KHAN	4	L 1				4 4	4 2	!	6		
100 100 <td>417</td> <td>1mi</td> <td>R</td> <td>5</td> <td>1</td> <td>I 5</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td>5</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>нн</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2 (</td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	417	1mi	R	5	1	I 5			3	5	2		нн	1				2 (2				
Box Box <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				<u> </u>														2					
G MA P	420	1 IUI										SAWRATI KAR	7	2	29	9 1		z i	2	1	3		NO
CD MA I													4	L 1			:	Z (1 2		1		
C D	422	JIM	R	6	2	2 6			3	5			нн	2	50			3 (4		
CD UA I	424	JIU											- í					3 (•			
C A	425	1 IUI										MUKTAAKTAR	7	2			:	3 (1 2	!	3		
b b b b b b b b b c			_	<u> </u>	ļ	<u> </u>			ļ,				5	5 2				4 4	4 2	· .	1		
Co MA N			15	⊢ ′	· · · · ·	4 <u>9</u>	1		'	2			2 2	2 2				2		•			
00 0.0	429	1 IUI	R	8	2	2 6			1	4		MAFUULISLAM	нн	1	55	5 1			1			1	NO
20 10. 6 2 6 1	430	1 IIII										ROSANA BEGAM	2	2 2				1 3	2		ILL	9	NO
OC DAU B S C DAU DAU C <thc< th=""> C<!--</td--><td>431</td><td></td><td></td><td><u> </u></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>4</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>+ +</td><td>2</td><td>l 1</td><td>4</td><td></td><td></td><td></td></thc<>	431			<u> </u>									4				+ +	2	l 1	4			
St N	433	1 IUI	R	9	2	2 6			3		1	SAHIDUL ISLAM	нн •	1 1					1	5			
SK Lu L Lu Lu <thlu< th=""> Lu <thlu< th=""> Lu</thlu<></thlu<>	434	1101										LHA MPA BEGAM	2	2 2	55	5 1		2	2		3		NO
OF LU F 10 2 6 11 4 1 160 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 </td <td></td> <td>-</td> <td>1 1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>4 4</td> <td>1</td> <td>•</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>													-	1 1				4 4	1	•			
OR Du O O DU O DU/LECALL 2 2 3 1 4 3 2 0 0 CH DU C DU DU <thdu< th=""> DU DU DU<!--</td--><td></td><td></td><td>R</td><td>10</td><td></td><td>. 6</td><td></td><td></td><td>- 1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>г НН</td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></thdu<>			R	10		. 6			- 1				г НН	2							3		
440 JAU M. 11 1 S I I A </td <td>438</td> <td>1101</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>· · ·</td> <td>· · · ·</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td>2 2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>4 3</td> <td>1 2</td> <td>1</td> <td>3</td> <td>· ·</td> <td></td>	438	1101				<u> </u>			· · ·	· · · ·			2	2 2				4 3	1 2	1	3	· ·	
441 HU R 11 1 6 DRATM SHL HH 1 66 1 2 4 1 6 DR NO 442 JUU A <td>439</td> <td>1 III.I</td> <td></td> <td>5</td> <td>5 2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>4 4</td> <td>1 2</td> <td>!</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	439	1 III.I											5	5 2				4 4	1 2	!			
442 JUU J I <td>440</td> <td>1111</td> <td></td> <td>- 11</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3 (</td> <td>4 <u>2</u></td> <td>· · ·</td> <td>6</td> <td></td> <td></td>	440	1111		- 11									4					3 (4 <u>2</u>	· · ·	6		
443 JUU I <td>442</td> <td>3 M.G</td> <td>n -</td> <td><u> </u></td> <td>· · · · ·</td> <td>1 - ³</td> <td></td> <td>· · · ·</td> <td>'</td> <td>•</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>nn 2</td> <td>2 2</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>2</td> <td></td> <td>•</td> <td>3</td> <td></td> <td></td>	442	3 M.G	n -	<u> </u>	· · · · ·	1 - ³		· · · ·	'	•			nn 2	2 2				2		•	3		
445 JUU A I A I C A A I C C A <td>443</td> <td>1 IUI</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>IMJITE SHIL</td> <td></td> <td>L 1</td> <td>28</td> <td>3 2</td> <td></td> <td>3 (</td> <td>1 2</td> <td>!</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td>NO</td>	443	1 IUI										IMJITE SHIL		L 1	28	3 2		3 (1 2	!	1		NO
446 JUM 4 13 2 3 4 2 3 4 2 5 4 0 447 JUM 4 1 15 2 4 2 4 2 4 3 4 0 448 JUM 4 4 0 SKFR B5ML 6 2 4 4 2 4 4 2 4 3 4 0 448 JUM 4 1 4 4 4 1 6 4 1 0 </td <td></td> <td>4</td> <td>L 1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3 (</td> <td>1 2</td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td>													4	L 1				3 (1 2		1		
447 JUU R 13 2 6 1 4 DSRPAUSSIAN H1 1 59 1 3 4 1 4 MO 445 JUU - - - - MO MARAR ESAN 5 2 21 2 4 4 2 1 NO 445 JUU - - - MARAR ESAN 5 2 21 2 4 4 2 6 NO 451 JUU - - - - JANARAR ESAN 5 2 21 2 4 4 2 5 6 NO 452 JUU - - - - - AACAR ESAN 7 2 20 1 4 4 1 6 2 3 NO 454 JUU - - - - AACAR ESAN 7 2 2 1 4 4 1 6 2 1 NO 455 JUU - - - AACAR ESAN 7 2	445																				6		
H9 Mu A			R	13	2	2 6			1				нн	1 1				3 0	1	•	· · ·		
450 July 6 14 2 6 160 160 160 160 651 July 6 6 0 3 3 28AHDU ISLAM 11 1 6 4 1 5 6 4 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1													2	2 2			:	z (1 2		3		
451 JAU R 1 2 6 3 3 3 2 SMIDU 1 55 1 4 6 1 5 3 4 6 1 5 1 4 6 1 5 3 1 6 6 1 5 1 6 6 1 5 1 6 6 1 5 5 1 6 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 1 6 1													5	5 2							1		
462 JUL I <td></td> <td></td> <td>R</td> <td>14</td> <td>2</td> <td>2 6</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>3</td> <td>8</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>нн</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>5</td> <td>• •</td> <td></td> <td></td>			R	14	2	2 6			3	8			нн	1						5	• •		
454 JUL Image: Signame and Si	452	100							-	-	-	СНАМРА ВЕСАМ	2	2 2	50	ן 1	:	2 0	1 2	!	3		NO
des Jul a a a b <td>453</td> <td>JIII</td> <td></td> <td>4</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>- ·</td> <td>4 4</td> <td>2</td> <td>!</td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td>	453	JIII											4				- ·	4 4	2	!	1		
665 JUL 0 0 FERDOUSIANTAR 7 2 22 1 6 4 2 3 NO 657 JUL 0 0 0 ATRULSIAN 4 1 2 21 1 6 4 2 3 NO 658 JUL 0 0 0 ATRULSSAN 1 1 6 4 2 3 NO 658 JUL 0 0 0 0 0 PARAR MISSAN 1 1 0 2 18 1 4 4 2 0 3 4 1 0 2 18 1 4 0 1 0 1 0 10 1 1 0 2 2 1 3 4 2 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 3 0 0 0 3 0				<u> </u>										2					4 <u>2</u>		3		
655 JIU R 15 2 6 1 1 2 181 1 4 6 2 3 NO 650 JIU R 15 2 6 1 1 2 2AATAR HUSSAIN H 1 4 1 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 1 4 1 4 1 1 1 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 <t< td=""><td>456</td><td>11U</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>7</td><td>2</td><td>22</td><td>Z 1</td><td></td><td>i</td><td></td><td></td><td>3</td><td>-</td><td></td></t<>	456	11U											7	2	22	Z 1		i			3	-	
659 JUL R 15 2 6 1 1 1 2 2AKTAR HUSSAIN HH 1 40 1 4 2 NO 661 JUL R 17 2 6 1 4 1 55 1 3 4 1 4 3 NO 661 JUL R 17 2 6 1 4 1 55 1 3 4 1 6 3 NO 662 JUL R 18 2 6 1 4 1 6 1 4 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 6 1 <	457	1 MU											4	L 1	25	5 1		4 4	L 2	!	1		
460 IUU R 17 2 6 M M FARDOSHARA BEGAM 2 2 28 1 3 4 2 3 NO 462 IUU R 17 2 6 M H H 1 55 1 2 4 1 2 2 4 1 2 2 4 1 2 2 4 1 2 2 4 1 2 2 4 1 2 2 4 1 2 2 4 4 2 3 NO 465 JUU M M M M 1 10 1 2 4 4 2 6 NO 465 JUU M M M M 1 10 1 2 4 2 3 NO 465 JUU M M M M 1 10 1 2 4 2 3 NO 467 JUU M <td< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>15</td><td>ļ,</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>7 00</td><td>2</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>1 2</td><td>!</td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></td<>				15	ļ,								7 00	2			-		1 2	!	3		
661 IIU R 17 2 6 1 4 0 0 0 9 0 1 4 1 4 1 4 1 1 4 1 <th1< th=""> 1<td></td><td></td><td>15</td><td>- 's</td><td><u> </u></td><td>+ •</td><td>1</td><td>'</td><td> '</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>2</td><td>2 2</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>•</td><td>3</td><td></td><td></td></th1<>			15	- 's	<u> </u>	+ •	1	'	'				2	2 2						•	3		
463 JMU - - - - PANNA HAMID 4 1 23 2 4 4 2 6 MO 465 JMU R 18 2 6 - - - MANA HAMID 4 1 19 2 4 4 - - 6 MO 465 JMU R 18 2 6 0 3 A 2 MANA HAMID 4 1 70 1 2 4 2 1 A - 3 NO 465 JMU - - - - - - LUTFA BEGAM 2 2 1 2 4 2 1 NO NO NO 465 JMU - - - - - AZO RA HANAN 4 1 3 1 6 0 NO	461	1 IUI	R	17	2	2 6			1			YO UNUCH MIHA	нн	1	55	5 1		3 0	1	4			NO
664 JNU R 18 C Image: Constraint of the state of the st	462	JIU											2	2 2				2 0	2		3		
465 JNU R 18 2 6 3 4 2 MAMIN MINA HH 1 70 1 2 6 1 4 3 NO 465 JNU - - - - - - 3 NO 467 JNU - - - - - - NO NO 468 JNU - - - - - AZAD RAMINAN - 1 3 1 2 4 2 1 NO 468 JNU - - - - - - LIU/FA BGSAN - 7 2 23 1 2 4 2 3 NO 468 JNU R 19 2 6 - 3 6 100 NO	464	JIU		<u> </u>																			
467 INU 1 2 4 2 1 NO 468 INU R 19 2 6 3 6 ILUFA BGAN 1 2 2 3 NO 468 INU R 19 2 6 3 6 ILUFA BGAN HH 1 55 1 4 4 1 5 4 NO 470 INU A	465	1 IUI	R	18	2	2 6			3		2	MAMIN MIHA		1	71	1		z i	1	4	, in the second	3	NO
465 INU R 19 2 6 1 10 1 2 2 3 1 2 6 2 3 1 0 470 INU R 19 2 6 3 6 1800LHVSRM HH 1 55 1 3 4 1 5 1 0 1 0<	466	1 III											2	2 2				2 (2		3		
469 INU R 19 2 6 3 6 1 ABDUL HUSSAIN HH 1 55 1 4 4 1 5 4 10 5 1 1 6 1 5 1 6 1 5 1 6 1 5 1 1 6 1 5 1 3 4 2 3 NO 471 JNU 1 1 1 1 1 1 2 2 45 1 3 4 1 4 2 NO 472 JNU 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 4 1 2 1	457	3 MU 1 MU		<u> </u>									7				+	4	1 2 1 2	1	1 1		
470 INU - - - AILENA BEGAN 2 2 45 1 3 4 2 3 MO 471 INU - - - - NO NATENA BEGAN - 1 25 1 3 4 2 3 MO 472 INU - - - - NO NATENA BEGAN - 1 25 1 3 4 1 4 2 3 NO 473 INU - - - - NO NATENA HUSSAN 4 1 25 3 NO 473 INU - - - - NO	469	1 MU	R	19	2	2 6	1		3	6	1	AB DUL HUSSAIN	нн	1 1	55	5 1	1		1	5	- ³	•	NO
472 INU - - - PAKH1EBGAM - - - - 3 + 2 - 3 + 0 - 2 NO 473 INU - - - - MIRAN HUSSAIN - 1 2 4 1 5 2 NO 474 INU - - - - ROMANA AKTAR 7 2 18 1 3 4 2 3 NO 475 INU - - - - ROMANA AKTAR 7 2 18 1 3 4 2 3 NO 475 INU - - 1 4 DJAGA DEN CHARABORTY HH 1 80 1 4 NO 475 INU - - - - BHMAYLY MOO CHARABORTY 4 1 35 2 4 4 4 4 0 473 INU - - - - BHMAYLY MOO CHARABORTY 4													2	2 2			;	3 (2		З		
473 JIU - - - III AN HUSSAIN - 1 24 1 - - 2 100 474 JIU - - - ROMANA AKTAR 7 2 18 1 3 4 2 3 NO 475 JIU R 2 1 6 1 4 0 JAGA DEN CHARABORTY HH 1 80 1 2 4 2 3 NO 476 JIU - - - - REKHA CHKRABORTY 2 2 70 1 2 4 2 3 NO 477 JIU - - - - BIMAYLY MOO CHKRABORTY 4 1 35 2 4													4					3 (4			
674 INU 3 4 2 3 NO 475 JNU R 22 1 6 1 4 DJAGAALTAR 7 2 18 1 3 4 2 3 NO 475 JNU R 22 1 6 1 4 DJAGAADSH CHAKRABORTY HH 1 80 1 2 4 2 3 NO 477 JNU REKHACHKRABORTY 2 2 70 1 2 4 2 3 NO 477 JNU 8 INU 4 1 35 2 4 <						1	1											1	1	5	- [,]		
476 JIU IIU IIIU I	474	11U										ROMANA A KTAR	, ז	2	18	3 1	;	1	2		З		NO
471 JNU			R	22	1	6			1				нн	1				2 (2		4		
478 JNU GOUTAM CHAKRABORTY 4 1 32 2 6 4 1 6 6 ND 479 JNU R 23 2 6 1 1 3 1 FULMA HH 1 55 1 1 6 4 ND 480 JNU CHAKINA BIB1 2 2 46 1 7 1 ND 481 JNU 1 7 1 ND 1 1 7 1 ND	476			<u> </u>									2	2 2							3		
479 JIJU R 23 2 6 1 1 3 1 FULNIA HH 1 55 1 1 4 1 2 1 100 480 JAU 1 1 6 1 2 1 100 480 JAU 1 1 6 1	478	JIU										GOUTAM CHAKRABORTY		i 1					l 1	1			
481 JAU AMENA BEGAM S 2 17 2 2 4 2 1 NO	479	JIU	R	23	2	2 6		1	1	3		FULMIA	нн	1	55	5 1		1 1	1			1	NO
<u>*** MM 24 1 6 2 5 1 MM 24 1 6 2 5 1 MM 10 24 1 1 5 3 3 2 4 4 2 1 MM 10 24 1 1 6 2 5 1 1 10 24 1 1 6 2 5 1 1 10 24 1 1 6 2 5 1 1 10 24 1 1 6 2 5 1 1 10 24 1 1 6 2 5 1 1 10 24 1 1 6 2 5 1 24 1 1 6 2</u>	480	JIU											2	2 2						7	<u> </u>		
	481 482	. 100.1	R	24	-				-	1			<u></u> 5 НН	2				4 4			1		

Anne	kure 5: [Details	of Af	fected Pers										<u> </u>								
s.	Village					C1.3	C1.4		C1.6 Persons	C1.6 Persons								E mloym	Main	Non		
	vinage ID	Side	No	C1.1	C1.2	Tribal	Vulnera-	C1.5Type	above 15	below15		Relatio			Marital	E duca-		ent	oc cu-	working		
NO.	ID I			Religion	Caste	aroun	bility status		vears	vears	Name	nship	Sex	Ane	status	tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	Skille
483	JIL	R	26	Religion	5	group	Drifty oracido	3	3		DURLAV BHOWMIK	нн	1	1 33		1011	1 4	1	paron (acacaa		NO
484					Ť			Ť	ľ		RANU BALA BHOWMIK	19		2 65			il i					NO
485											PAREATIENOWWIK	2	2 2	2 25		1 3	1	2	2	3	1	NO
486		R	28	1	6		1	1	4		GANESH DUTTA	нн		63			2 3	1	4		2	NO
487	JIILI										KANAN DUTTA	2	2 2	2 48	1	2	2 4	. 2	2	3	1	NO
488	JIILI										JAYANTA DUTTA		1	1 22	2	1 2	2 4	. 1	4		1	NO
489	JIU										SO NALI DUTTA		5 2	2 26	2	1 3	1	. 2	2	3		NO
490	1 II.L	R	31	1	6			3	4		SUDAN CHISA HA	нн	1	1 61	1	2	2 4	. 1	۱		3	NO
491											DILU RANI SAHA	2	2 2	2 50		2	2 4	. 2	2	3		NO
492	1 III.										PRADIP TA SA HA	-	L 1	1 30	l 1		4	. 1	4		3	NO
493											MOUSUMISAHA	7	1 2	2 22			3 4	. 2	2	3		NO
494		R	32	1	6			3	6	2	HARIPADA BANDHUPADYA	нн	1	1 75	1		L 4	. 2	2	4		NO
495											PO TUL BANARIEE	2	2 2	2 58		2	2 4	. 2	2	3		NO
496											TAPASH BANARJEE			1 38			4	. 1	4			NO
497											RATNA BANARJEE	7		2 25		2	2 4	2	2	3		NO
498											PARTHA BANARJEE			1 33			4	. 1	4			NO
499											DIPALI BANARJEE	7	1 2	2 22		2	2 4	2	2	3		NO
500		R	33	1	6			2	4	2	DILIP DAS	нн	1	1 41			4	. 1	4			NO
501											RUPALIDAS	2		2 38			4	2	2	3	1	NO
502											DIPAKDAS	10		1 36		2	2 4	2	2	1		NO
503											RUPA DAS	17	1 2	2 30		2	2 4	2	2	3	1	NO
50 t		R	34	1	3			3	6	4	AMRITALAL MANDAL	нн	1	1 80		1	4	2	2	4		NO
505											RADHA MANDAL			2 70			4	4 2	2	3		NO
506											RANJIT MANDAL		1	1 50		4	4	1	4			NO
507											PUSPA MANDAL	1	2	2 35			4	2	2	3		NO
508											RABIND RA MANDAL			44			4		•			NO
509 510		_			<u> </u>			,			MANISHA MANDAL	···· ·	4 2	2 30			4	4 2	<u> </u>	3		NO
		ĸ	35		•	l	1	1	•	L	SAPAN DEB	нн		1 58			-		•	_		NO
511 512					I	l					DIPALI DEB Roma deb		-	2 42 2 20			<u> </u>	4 2		3		NO
512						<u> </u>								2 20			<u> </u>			6		NO NO
514		-	36	· · · ·							RATAN SUTRADHAR	нн	4 4	1 40					<u> </u>	°		NO
515		n	30		+ °			- 3	• • • •	4	PRAKASH SUTRADHAR	18	1	1 72		+		+	•	· · ·		NO
515					<u> </u>	<u> </u>					HIRAN BALA SUTRADHAR	19		2 65		<u> </u>		1 4	-			NO
517						<u> </u>					BULTI SUTRADHAR	2		2 35					 			NO
518					<u> </u>	<u> </u>					SUNIL SUTRADHAR	10	-	1 43		+ +		1 1	1 7	- °		NO
519					<u> </u>	<u> </u>					PALSI SUTRADHAR	17		2 36		1 3			1 3	3		NO
520		R	37	-	6		1	1			INDIRACHOWDHARY	нн "		2 40								NO
521					+ °		· · · · · ·	'		<u> </u>	ABHUITCHOWDHARY		d f	2 40		-		1	i	- °		NO
522		R	39	-	3				3	1	UTTAM KR.SARKAR	нн		I 41		+ - 1			1			NO
523					1 - [*]	<u> </u>			ľ		DAVIESARKAR	1 2	1 6	2 35		1 2			; •	3		NO
524					1	<u> </u>					SUJAN KR. SARKAR	1		1 30		1 2		1 1		ľ		NO
525		R	40	1	5		1	2			LITAN SHIL	нн		28		1 3						NO
526					Ť		· · · · ·	<u> </u>	· · · · ·		SANKIRESHIL	2	2 2	2 20		1 3		1 3	1	3		NO
527					<u> </u>						TITAN SHIL	1		2 22		1 3		1		ľ		NO
528					<u> </u>						SHILPISHIL	17		2 19		1 3			i i	3	d – Ť	NO

							1						1	1	-	1	1					
Anne	kure 5: D	Details	of Af	fected Pers	ons																	
						C1.3	C1.4		C1.6 Persons	C1.6 Persons								E mloym	Main	Non		
S.	Village	Side	No	C1.1	C1.2	Tribal	Vulnera-	C1.5 Type	above 15	below15		Relatio			Marital	E duca-		ent	oc cu-	working		
No.	ID			Religion	Caste		bility status		vears	vears	Name	nship	Sex	Ane	status	tion	Health	status	pation	-	Income	Skille
529	JIU	R	41		6	group	unty status	1	yours (нн	1	60		1011		1	5			NO
53D	JIU										SANTI BAL SAHA	2	2 2	48		2	2 0	. 2	!	3		NO
<u>531</u>											JAYANTA SAHA		1	28			1 0	. 1	•			NO
533 534		R	42		6			1	· · · · ·		ARINDAM SAHA UMESH DAS	нн		20				. 2	<u> </u>	6		NO NO
535			**	· · ·	⊢	·		'	•		MANTASAHA	2	2 2	50		1 1			•	3		NO
536											UTTAM SAHA		L 1	25		:	L (. 2	!	6		NO
<u>ସ</u> ୍ଥ୍ୟ		-	1								MONMONSAHA	6	5 2	20			3 0	. 2	!	6		NO
538 539		м	42.A	<u> </u> 1	6	·		1	•	, 1	UMESH DAS MAMTA SAHA	нн	1 2 2	60 50					•			NO NO
540			<u> </u>								UTTAM SAHA			25						6		NO
541											MONMONSAHA	i i		20					1	- Č		NO
542		R	43	1	6			3	5		KANAN CHAKRABORTY	нн	2	48		-	2 (. 2		3		NO
543						<u> </u>					SUMAN CHAKRABORTY			32					<u> </u>	1		NO
544			-								SUJAN CHAKRABORTY Ruma Chakraborty			29					+ •	3		NO
546	JIU					1					TAPASH CHAKRABORTY		-	25	5 2		i i		!	5		NO
547	JIU	R		1	5			1	2	2	RAKHALSHILL	нн	1	42			2 (. 1	•			NO
548		_	- 10	<u> </u>	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	,		RATNA SHILL	2	2 2	9 JC		-	2 (!,	3		NO
549 550		R	46	1	3			1	1			нн нн	+	27					+ +			NO NO
551			- • ·	· · ·	l – ť	1		'			ANJANA DEVNATH	2	2 2	28		1 3			•	3		NO
552	JIU	R	48	1	3	1		1	2		SUJIT SUKLA DAS	нн	1	31		2	2 0	. 1				NO
553	JIU .	-									BIPULA DAS	2	2 2	22		2	2 0	2	!	3		NO
554 555		R	49	1	5		1	1	3		SAPAN CHISHILL Maleka rani shill	нн		48 42					<u>ا</u> ۱			NO
556											SAMALSHILL			17			2 0			6		NO
557	JIU	R	51	1	6			3	6		BIMALCHAKRABORTY	нн	i i	65			2 3		•			NO
558											LAXMIRANICHAKRABORTY	2	2 2	45		1	2 0	. 2		3		NO
559 560	1 IU		<u> </u>								BISHAWJIT CHA KRABO RTY Munna chakraborty			28				4 2		1		NO
561	3 MG 1 ILI		<u> </u>		<u> </u>						RUPALICHAKRABORTY	7				1 - 1	2 1		1	5		NO
562											SAFILE CHAKRABORTY	ė	5 2	19						6		NO
563		R	52	1	6			1	5	; D	NITALDAS	нн	1	45		2	2 (. 1	•			NO
564											ARCHANA DAS	2	2 2	33		1 2	2 0	. 2	!	3		NO
565 566			<u> </u>		<u> </u>						RUPAN DAS Kashab das			23				· 2		6		NO
567			<u> </u>								MITHAN DAS			17						6		NO
568	JIU	R	54	1	6			3	5			нн	1	52			i i			Ň		NO
569											PRITE LODH	2					L (. 2	!	3		NO
<u>ទា០</u> ទា1											RANILIDH	19		75						6		NO
572					<u> </u>						SO RAVARI LODH SAGAR LODH			18						6		NO
573	JIU	R	55	1	6			3	4		GOPAL SAHA	нн	1	63				l î		ľ		NO
574											MAMATA RANI SAHA	2	2 2	53		1	2 0	. 2		3		NO
ទាន											ASHISSAHA			32				2		6		NO
ទា6 ទា7		R	56		6						BO LAN SAHA PINTU BARDHAN	г НН	2	25					<u> </u>	3		NO
578	JIU	<u> </u>	1 30	'	t °	1		· · · ·			SAYA RANI BARDHAN	2	2 2	28		1			•	3	· · ·	NO
579	JIU	R	58	1	5		2	3	7		CHINU MAYEE DEY	нн	2	75	5 5		2	2	!	i		NO
580											TAPAN KR.DEY			53				1	•	_		NO
581 582			<u> </u>								APARA DEY PARTHA SARATHI DEY	10	-	40 19						3		NO
583	JIU		-		-	1					SUBRATA DEV	10		17						6		NO
584	JIU										KHUKAN KR.DEY			45	5 1		l i	1	4	-	ť	NO
585		_			_			_			PANNA DEV	7	2	35				. 2	-	3		NO
586 587		R	1	1	5			3	4		GOURANGA DEBNATH Gita devnath	нн		55		+ +		1 1	2			NO NO
588			<u> </u>		<u> </u>						JIBAN DEVNATH			30 30					3	,		NO
589	PLT										DEVIT DEVNATH	1	2	22	2 1		2 0	2	: :	3		NO
590		R	3	1	5			3	4			нн	1	70		1 2	2 (1	4			NO
591											MALATISHIL	2	2 2	9 6D			2 2	2	-	5		NO
592 593			<u> </u>								RATAN SHIL AP URATSHIL	+ +		39					3			NO NO
594		L	2	1	-	-	1	3				нн	1	39		1 1	i i	1	1	- °		NO
354	14 W 1	15	- 4				I I		•	u U		p		, 33	a 1			1	•			1100

App≈	VIEQ 5-	Detail	= of M	ffected Pers	005								1	1								[
S. No.	Village ID			C1.1	C1.2	1	C1.4 Vulnera- bility status	C1.5 Type of family	C1.6 Persons above 15 years	C1.6 Persons below15 years	Name	Relatio nship	Sex	Age	Marital status	E duca- tion	Health	E mloym ent status	Main occu- pation	Non working status	Income	Skills
595	KKB					-					SANTI BALA DAS	10	2 2	2 61	1	:	2 0	4 2	!	4		NO
596 597	14/18										RATNA DAS RATAN DAS	2	2 2	2 3I 3I	1 1 2			4 2	!	3		NO SINGER
598	KKB	1.	3	3 1				1	5		PRADIP SHIL	нн	•	4			1 1			9		NO
599	KKB	-									LAXMIRANISHIL	2	2 2	2 33	3 1	1 2	z i	i 2	!	З		NO
600											BULTI RANISHIL	5	5 2	! 1!			3 (4 2		6		NO
601 602			-								MOUSOMI RANI SHIL Raju shil	5	5 2	2 10			3 0			6		NO NO
603		L	-	4 1	6			1			SATTARANJAN DEB	нн	• ·	6			2			°		NO
604	KKB										ANJALIDEB	2	2 2	4	5 1		Z (4 2	!	3		NO
605											BISHMAJIT DEB		4 1	2) 2: 4	5 2		3 (4 2	-	1		NO
68 68 69		<u> </u>	+ -		6						DEBASHISH DEB Uttam deb	нн	4 1	2	2 2			4 2	!	6		NO NO
608		<u> </u>	-		0			'	•	'	GITA DEB	2	2 2	2 3	5 1		2		· ·	3		NO
609	KKB										MUNNA DEB	5	5 2	2 13	3 2		2 (i 2	!	6		NO
610											MANNA DEB	5	5 2	! 10			z i	4 2		6		NO
611 612		L	6	4 1	6			1	2		NETALDEVROY ROMA DEVROY	нн		41 2 31			1 1		4			NO CUTTING
612		L	6.1	1 1	6			1	2			<u>ин</u> 2	+ ²	3	3 2		1		1 1	<u> </u> '	2	NO
614	KKB	1									DIPIKA DEVROY	2	2 2	2 31	2	!	4	4 2	!	2		NO
615	KKB	L	62	2 1	6			2	2		SHIMU DEVROY	нн	1	3	7 1		2 (4 1	4			NO
616 617	14/18	<u> </u>	 ,								NAMITA DEVROY MANIK SAHA	2 HH	2 2	2	5 1 2 1		2 3	3 2	!	1		NO NO
618		<u> </u>	+ - '	· · · ·	0		'				TULSHI SAHA	2	2 2	2	5 1		2 3	3 2	•	1		NO
619	KKB	L	1 8	3 1	6				4	0	PRASENJIT DEV	нн	1	2	5 1		3 0	i i	4			NO
620											RATNA DEV	2	2 2	! 1!			Z i	4 2	!	2		NO
621 622	KKB	-									NEPAL DEV MAMATA DEV	18	3 1	6: ! 51	5 1		2 3	3 2		<u>+</u>		NO
622	1/1/18	<u> </u>	-		3			- 2	5		NITAL DAS	19 HH	9 2	5			2 0		2	•		NO NO
624		1°	-	1	Ť						MALATIDAS	2	2 2	1	3 1		z i	i 2	1	з		NO
625	KKB										RAJU DAS		4 1	31	1		Z (4 1	3			NO
626	KKB										JUNALI DAS	7	7 2	2	5 1		3 (4 2	!	3		NO
627 628		-l	1		3				5	1	BISHWAJIT DAS NITAI DAS	нн	4 1 1	20	5 2 5 1		2 0	4				NO NO
629		<u> </u>	+ "	1	<u> </u>					· · · · ·	MALATIDAS	2	2 2	1	3 1		2			3		NO
ഔ	KKB										RAJU DAS		4 1	31	1		2 (4 1	4		2	NO
<u>ଗ</u> ୀ											JUNALI DAS	7	7 2	2			3 (4 2		3		NO
ଟ୍ଡ ଅ	KKB	-l	11		6			ļ	· · · · ·		BISHWAJIT DAS BIPAD BHANJAN SAHA	нн	4 1	20	5 2		2 0	4	4			NO NO
ន៖	1/1/18	<u> </u>	<u> ''</u>	1	-			1			MALLIKA SAHA	nn 2	2 2	2 43	3 1		1 1		5	3		NO
ଇ ଟ	KKB	+	+								BIMALESH SAHA		4 1	2	2 2		3 0	i 2	!	6		NO
6 56	KK8										POULAMISAHA	5	5 2	! 1!	9 2		3 (4 2	!	6		NO
នា		L	10	4 <u>1</u>	3		1	2	4		SWAPANA RABIDAS	нн	2	2 41	<u> </u>		1 1	4 2	!	3		NO
ឌ្ល			+								SA NJA Y RABIDAS Joy deb robi das			2	5 2		2 0		<u> </u>	<u>ا</u>		NO NO
640	KKB	+	+	1	<u> </u>						BULTI ROBI DAS	1 6	5 2	1 1	9 2		2	i 2	•	6		NO
641	KKB	L	15	5 1	3		1	2	6	1	NARESHRABIDAS	нн	1	71	1 1	1 :	z 3	3 1	•		2	NO
642	KKB LAAR										KUSUM RABI DAS	2	2 2	2 61			2 0	4 2	_	3		NO
643 644	KKB	-	+								PA REHATI RABI DAS Bikram rabi das			2	0 4 5 1				3			NO NO
645	KKB	+	+	1	<u> </u>						MONIA RABIDAS	, i		2	3 1		z i	i 2	t °	3		NO
646	KKB										JOGAL RABIDAS		4 1	2	1 2		Z (4 2		5		NO
647	SGT	L	1	1 1	6			3	5	0	NEPALESIMAR DAS	нн	1	6	3 5		3 3	3 1	9			NO
648 649	SGT SCT	+	+	-							BIJOY KRISHNA DAS BABY DUTT(DAS)		4 1 7 7	43			2 0		5			NO NO
660	SGT	+	+								BISMAJIT DAS	10		2			z	i 2		1		COMPUTER
651	SGT										AVUIT DAS	10	1	21	2	!	Z O	4 2		1		NO
652		L	2	2 1	6		1	3	5		JOY DEVSHOM	нн	1	4			2 (4 1	2			NO
663 654		-	+		 						KAJAL SHOM SANJUKTA SHOM	2		2 30 2 1				1 2				NO NO
655		+	+								RITASHOM	5		1			2			6		NO
656	SGT	-	+	1							MALATISHOM	19		2 6:	2 5		1	1	9	Ľ	1	NO
657	SGT	L	3	3 1	5		1	1	3		BIMAL KANTI DUTTA	нн	1	5	3 1		4 3	3 1	•			NO
658											PUTULDUTTA	2	2 2	4			2 (4 2		3		NO
669 660		-	+		-		ļ	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		MANTIDUTTA NARAYAN MOHOTTAM	<u></u> нн	5 2	11			2 0	4 2		5		NO NO
661			+ *	<u>'</u>	5		¹	1	•		KARONA MOHOTTAM		2 2	5					2			NO
ωı	<i></i>	-	-	-					+				- 4		- I	· · ·	-	<u> </u>		J		

A		n - 1 - 11													1		1					
Anne× I	ure b: I	Uetail: T	sofA1	ffected Pers T	ons I	C1.3	C1.4		C1.6 Persons	C1.6 Persons			-					E mloym	Main	Non		
s. 🕨	/Ilage	Side		C4.4	64.2		1	CALT	1			Deletie			Marita I	Eduar			1	Non		
No. I	D	aue	INO .	C1.1	C1.2		Vulnera-		above 15	below15		Relatio			Marital			ent	oc cu-	working	_	
66.0	<u>от</u>			Religion	Caste	group	bility status	of family	years	years	Name Krishna ch.Mohottam	nship	Sex	Age 1 29		tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	Skills NO
662 S	ST ST		+											1 29					2			NO
664 5	GT	L	6	5	1 5			3	6	2	RAMANIDEVNATH	нн	1	1 61	1 1		2 3	1	2		1	NO
665 5											SORASHIDEVNATH	2	! 1	2 57		2	2 3	2		3		NO
666 S	ST ST				 						GOP PAL DEVNATH APARNA DEVNATH	4		1 40					2	1		NO NO
668 5	ST ST		+								DILIP DEVNATH	4		1 30					2			NO
669 5	GT										BULTI DEVNATH	7	1 2	2 21	1 1	2	2 0	1 2		З		NO
តា០៖		L	7		1 5			3	4	2		нн		1 40 2 30		1	2 3	1	2			NO NO
តា1 ទ តា2 ទ	SCT SCT		+		<u> </u>						KUSUM MOHOTTAM Ashu bala mohottam	19		2 31						3		NO
673 5			+		<u> </u>						SABITA NOHOTTAN	15		2 26						2		NO
តា. ខេ	ЭGT	R	2	2	1 3			2	3	1	GOPAL DAS	нн	1	1 62	z 5	2	2 0	1 2	1	i i		NO
តាទ ទ	GT		_								PINTU DAS	4		1 30		2	2 (1 1	•			NO
<u>តាត ទ</u> តារ ទ	<u>ыт</u> от	R	+		<u> </u>						BRITHY DAS SUJIT SARKAR	7 HH	1 - 1	Z 26 1 35	5 1				<u> </u>	3		NO NO
678 5		l"	1		<u> </u>			'			MANIKA SARKAR	2		2 25					• •	3		NO
679 5	GT	R			і <u>з</u>		1	1	5		SUJANA RANIDAS	нн		2 50	1 5			2	!	3		NO
680 \$											INDRAJIT DAS	4	. 1	1 30		3	1	1	6			NO
681 S			-		 						RANAJIT DAS BISMAJIT DAS	4		1 27 1 29		<u> </u> ;			ļ.,	1		NO NO
683 5		-	+		-				-		PANAJIT DAS			1 20					•	1		NO NO
684 5		R	5	5	1 6		1	3	5	1	BISHNU PADA SAHA	нн		1 60					!	i		NO
685 5											GITA SA HA	2	! 2	Z 55		2	2 (L 2	!	ť		NO
686 S											AB HIJIT SA HA Mili saha	4		1 30 2 25		2	2 4	2		1		NO NO
688 5			+		<u> </u>						SANJIT SAHA			2 25		2						NO
689 5		R	7		1 6			1	2	1	BABULSAHA	нн	1	1 30			2	1	i			NO
690 8											RUMA SAHA	2	! 2	Z 23		3		L 2	!	3		NO
691 5 692 5		R	8	3	1 5			3	9		HARENDA BHADRA	HH 2		1 80				2		4		NO NO
693 5	ST ST		+		<u> </u>						PATUL RANI 8 HADRA KANTI 8 HADRA	4		2 66 1 32	2 1					1		NO NO
694 5			+								RUPALIBHADRA	7		2 20						3		NO
695 5											BIBUTIE BHADRA	4	. 1	1 26				L 2	!	1		NO
696 S											TAPAN BHADRA Manisank Bhadra			1 22 1 21		2	2	2		1		NO
698 5			+		<u> </u>						DAYA NANDA BHADRA			1 40					5	· ·		NO NO
699 5			+								STAKHA BHADRA	7	_	2 32				1 2	, i	з		NO
700 \$	ют	R	10	1	1 5			3	6	3	SADHAN KARMAKAR	нн	1	1 48	3 1			L 1				NO
701 \$											RUPILE KARMAKAR	19		2 40				1 1				NO
702 5	ST NT										RANTBALA KARMAKAR Anjan karmakar	2		2 7C 1 42								NO NO
704 5	ST ST		+								MANIYE KARMAKAR	7		2 39		1 3				3		NO
705 5	GT										MIDULA KARMAKAR	15		2 18	3 2			4 2		6		NO
706	IH B	L	1		5			2	3	2	CHANTA HARAN NANDI	нн		1 89	5 5	2		2		4		NO
707 708	111 B		+								SANKAR NANDI Purnima nandi	4		1 39 2 30				1 1 1 2	ا ا			NO
709		L		. ·	1 5			2	3	1	PRADIP CH.GOSE	нн	1 1	1 36		1		1	2			NO
710	JH B										RAKHIRA NIGOSE	2		Z 23	3 1	2	2	2	-	З		NO
711										_	MANJU BALAGOSE	19		2 50				2		4		NO SO
712	111 B	Ľ	+ *	1 2	4 6		1	1	3		SA HEBALI HASHA MIBHAN U	HH 2		1 45 2 32					1			NO NO
714		<u> </u>	+		<u> </u>						LHIDDIK MIHA	1 1	i f	2 32					6			NO
715	JH 8	L	6	5 2	2 6		1	1	2		JAFAR ALI	нн		1 36	5 1			1	2		3	NO
716											JAMIL BIBI	2	! 4	2 25				2		3		NO S
717		Ľ	1 8	1 2	2 6			1	2		RAMJAN ALI Kamala Bibi	HH 2		1 60 2 50				4 1 1 2	1			NO
719		L	9		1 s			3	3	2	BADALSINGHA	<u>нн</u> 2	1	2 51			2		1	,		NO NO
720	AH B	1	1		Ť			Ĭ	Ĭ		BINA SINGHA	2		2 31	1 1		2	2	· · ·	3		NO
721	AH 8										JATANDA SINGHA	18	1	1 90		2	2 (2		4		NO
722	118	L	11		6			1	2	2	ARUN DUTTA	нн		1 38			2 3		•	_		NO NO
723 1	ANTO ANTO	L	12						7	3	SHEP HALI DUTTA SUJIT CH.GHOSH	2 HH		2 32 1 40					I	3		NO
725		r	+ ''		1 - 1		- · · ·	Ĭ	· · · · · ·	l	SABITA RANI GHOSH	2		2 39				i i	;			NO
726			1								KAMALGHOSH	4	. 1	1 36			2	1	3		1	NO

Annex I	ure 5: I	Jetails I	s of Af	fected Pers I	ons I	C1.3	C1.4		C1.6 Persons	C1.6 Persons								Emloym	Main	Non		<u> </u>
	village	Side	No	C1.1	C1.2	Tribal	Vulnera-	C1.5 Type	1	below15		Relatio			Marital	Educa		ent	OC CU-	working		
No. I	D	l'age	10		Caste	1	bility status				Name		6.00	0.00	1		Health	1		-	Income	Cidlio
727	UH B			Religion	Caste	group	Drinty status		years		SHILPIGHOSH	nship 7	2	AUC 30	status			2	pation	status 3	IIICOINE	NO
728	UH B										SHYMALGHOSH	4	1	32	! 1			1	З			NO
729 I 730 I											SAPNAG HOSH Hiru Balag Hosh	7	2 2	26			4	2		3		NO
731	UH B	L	14	1	3		1	1	5		GOPAL DAS	нн	1	60			i i	1	•	•		NO
732											SANDANA RANIDAS	2	2 2	45				2		3		NO
733											SA NJIT DAS PRADEEP DAS			30				1	2			NO
735	UH B										SAJU DAS		1	16	2	2		2	_	6		NO
736		L	16	1	6		1	3	•		SUBHASH BANIK Chabi rani banik	нн		65			4	1	•			NO
737 I 738 I											JAG ADISH BANIK	4	2 2	55 28				1	9	3		NO
739	UH B										BULTI BANIK	7	2	20	1 1		i	2		3		NO
740		L	17	1	6			1	2		DIPULAL DEVNATH ARCHANA DEVNATH	нн		34			4	1	•			NO
742		L	18	2	6		1	1	3		JAFAR ALI	<u>нн</u>		25			1 1	1	i i	3		NO
743	UH B										JAMILA BIBI	2	2 2	45	1			2		З		NO
744			19		6		-				JALAL HOSEN MADHUSUDHAN SARKAR	нн нн		18			-	1	9			NO
746		<u> </u>	- 13	· · · ·	+ °		· · ·		· · · · ·		DILIP SARKAR	4	i i	26				1	2			NO
747 1								_	_		SHIBANI SARKAR	7	2	22				2		3		NO
748		L	20	1	5			3	۲ ا		RAKHAL DEY Kanoun bala dey	нн	1	72			4	1	•	· .		NO
750											JULAN DEY	1	1 1	48			i i	1	•	•		NO
751											LAXMIDEY	7		40				2		3		NO
752											BABPIE DEY BANTY DEY		1 1 2	23			4	2		6		NO NO
754											UTTAN DEY	i i		37				1	5			NO
755		L	21	1	5				3		CHANDAN DEVNATH	нн	1	37			4	1	ł			NO
756		<u> </u>									ADIITE DEVNATH Kamala devnath	2	2 2	32			4	2		3		NO NO
758		L	22	1	6		1	1	1		DHANESWARY SARKAR	нн	2	45			i i	1	3	•		NO
759		L	26	1	6		1	1	5		BIPAD CHAKRABORTY	нн	1	50			•	1	4			NO
760											MADHABI CHAKRABORTY BIDUYAT CHAKRABORTY	2	2 2	48			4	2		1 6		NO NO
762	UH 8										BURAN CHAKRABORTY	5	5 2	15	2			2		6		NO
763		_			-						ETE CHAKRABORTY	5	5 2	22			4	2		1		NO
764 765	<u>UH 8</u>	R	1	1	5			1	2		ANIL CH. GHOSH BHALO BASHA GHOSH	нн		75				1	1			NO NO
766	WH 8	R	1.1	1	5			1	3		ARJUN GHOSH		1	40	1 5	2	1	1	2	v		NO
767											BOLTIGHOSH	5	5 2	16			•	2		6		NO
768 769		R	12	1	5				2		RAKESH GHOSH SAHKAR GHOSH	•		15 32				2	1	6		NO DRIVING
100			11		Ť						GOURIGHOSH	2	2 2	28	1	2		2		з		NO
771		R	1.3	1	5			1	2		ARUM GHOSH	нн	1	35	1		4	1	1	_		NO
772		R	2	1	5			3	5		ALO RAHIGHOSH BHASAN GHOSH			28 50			4	1	5	3		NO NO
774	UH B				Ľ			Ľ	Ľ		JHARNAGHOSH	2	2 2	45	1	2	i i	2	Ľ	3		NO
775											BHASKAR GHOSH Mampighosh			19			4	2		6		NO
777											ABALA SUNDARR	23	2 2	17	~	1	3			4		NO
778	UH B	R	3	1	5			3	3	1	PRADIP CH.GHOSH	нн	Ĩ	34	. 1		i i	Ĩ	1			NO
779 I 780 I											MANIOBALA GHOSH RAKHI RANI GHOSH	19	2 2	58	5			2		4		NO NO
781		R	•	1	5			3	•		MAKHANGHOSH	нн	1	60				2		4		NO
782	UH 8										MALINA RANIGHOSH	2	2 2	52	! 1			2		4		NO
783 784											MAHIK GHOSH SEWALIGHOSH	4		31	1	2	4	1	2			NO
785		R	5	1	5			3	7		NANIGOPAL SING HA	нн	1	52	1			1	•			NO
786	UH 8										ASHU BALA SING HA	19	2	71	5	2	•	2		3		NO
787 788		<u> </u>									KA NA KIPIRAVA SINGHA SN NJITISING HA		2 2	45			4	2		3		NO
789											PRABIR SINGHA			20	2			2		1		NO
790	UH B										SA RAJIT SING HA		1	22	2 2	3	4	2		6		NO
791 792		P	5.1	-	-			- ·	1 1		BULTI SINGHA Priyalal singha	<u></u> нн	5 2	18 37		3	-	2	e .	6		NO NO
792 1		n	- 3 .1	¹	1 8			'	1 ²		ANAPURNA SINGHA	2	2 2	31				2	5	3		NO

									1					-	-		1	1					
Anne	xure	5: D(etails	of Aft	fected Pers	ons																	<u> </u>
							C1.3	C1.4		C1.6 Persons	C1.6 Persons								E mloym	Main	Non		í
S.	Villa	ge (Side	No	C1.1	C1.2	1	Vulnera-	C1.5 Type		below15		Relatio			Marital	Educa		ent	oc cu-	working		i
No.	ID .	!	aue			1	1	1					1			1	1		1		-	_	l
					Religion	Caste	group	bility status	of family	years		Name	nship	Sex			tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	
	MHB	F	R	52	1	5			1	3		MAKANLAL SINGHA	нн	1	48		2	2 (1	•			NO
795	MHB	\rightarrow										GANGA RAHISINGHA HAHDAY SINGHA	2	2	97 18		2		1 2		3		NO
797			-	6	1	5				6		PRIVALALISHARMA	нн	+ +	57		4		1 5		<u> </u>		NO
798		ť				Ť			- · · ·	· · · ·		TAPASHISHARMA	2	1 2	48					1			NO
799	MHB	-+										AB HIJIT SHARMA	Ī	1	29		5		1	5	-		NO
300	MHB											MOUSUMI SHARMA	7	2	20	1 1	3		. 2	!	6		NO
801												BISMAJIT SHARMA	4	1	26				. 1	6			NO
	MHB		_	_		<u> </u>			ļ			BINA SHARMA	5	2	22						6		SINGER
	MH8 MH8		R	r	2	<u> </u>			1	2			нн		60		_			1	3		NO
	MHB			7.1								KAMALA BIBI Yakubali	нн ∠	4 4	50 50				+ +	1			NO
	MHB	ť		- 1.1		† ř			· ·		· ·	RAHINA KHATUN	2	2	25	1	2			· ·	3		NO
	MHB	F	R	8	2	2 6			3	5		M.D. HUR AHMED	нн	1	25	1	2	2	1	5	-		NO
308	MHB											JUNABALI	18	1	90	1 5		2 3	2		4		NO
809	MHB	\rightarrow										SHALEKHA BEGUM	2	2 2	48	1		2 (2		3		NO
	MHB	\rightarrow				 	 		L			AMINUL ISLAM	•	1 1	26	2	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	2		1		NO
811	MHB					-	l		-			MAHIRUL ISLAM Madho Shil	нн •	+ +	22	2 2			1		1		NO NO
813				3	1	1 °	l	· · · · · ·	1 · · · ·	,		MADHO SHIL MARAN SHIL	18		45					•	9		NO
814		+										DURGA RANISHIL	10		40						3		NO
815	МНВ		R	11	1	5			3	9		ARJUN GHOSH	нн	1	55	1	2		1	4		•	NO
816	шнв											ARATIGHOSH	2	2	50	1 1	2	2	2		3		NO
817	MHB											PRIVA BALA GHOSH	19		80	5	1		. 2		3		NO
818												MAHIKGHOSH	4	1	28				1	•	_		NO
819	MH B MH B	\rightarrow										APARNAGHOSH PRADIP GHOSH	1	2	25	1			4 2		3		NO NO
	MHB	-+										AESHAGHOSH			20		3		1	•			NO
	MHB	-+										KRISHNA GHOSH		1	25	-	1 5				- ·		NO
823	MHB	-+		-								MANTIGHOSH	7	2	20	1 1	3		1 2		6		NO
824	MHB	F	R	12	1	5			1	2			нн	1	27		2	2 (. 1	4		2	NO
825	MHB											MOUSAMIDEBNATH	2	2 2	24		2	2 (. 2		3		NO
	MHB	F	R	13	1	5			1	2		SUBASH SHIL	нн	1	35	1	2	2 (1	4			NO
827 828	MHB	,		16		-				7		SANTANA SHIL NAN IGOPAL SING HA	2 HH	2	27	1	2		2		3		NO NO
	MHB		• •	10	1		<u> </u>			· · ·		ASHU BALA SING HA	10		52					•			NO
	MHB			-								KANAK PRAVA SINGHA	2	2 2	45					-	3		NO
	MHB	-	-									SN NJIT SING HA	Ĩ	1	26		_			1	1		NO
832	MHB											PRABIR SINGHA	i	1	24	. 2			2		1		NO
833	MHB											SA RAJIT SING HA	4	1	24	2	3		. 2		6		NO
	MHB											BULTISINGHA	5	2	18	2			. 2		6		NO
	MHB	F	R	18	1	6		1	1	•			нн	1	51				1	•			NO
836	MH8 MH8	-										SAPNASUTRA DHAR PAYEL SUTRADHAR	2	2	38	1 2			1 2		3		NO
	MHB	\rightarrow										LITAN SUTRADHAR	5		21				- 2		6		NO
	MHB	F	R	20	1	5			3	3			•	1 1	37	1				- L	- ·		NO
840		-ť				t	l		t Š			KAMALA DEBNATH	19		60				1 2	•	3		NO
841	MHB											ADITI DEBNATH	2	2	32	! 1	2	2 0	2	!	3		NO
842	MHB		R	21	1	6			1	2			нн	1	33	1	3		1	6			NO
843	MHB											SO MA SAHA	2	2 2	28	1	3		2		3		NO
844		F	ĸ	22	1	6			3	3	1		HH 10	1 1	40			1	1	2	-		NO
845	MHB	\rightarrow					l					MAKHAN BALA SAHA Rupalisaha	19		2 65 2 30		1		1 2		3		NO NO
847	MHB	-	2	25	1	3		1	1	5	п	SAPAN BARMAN	<u></u>	1 1	40		1		1 1	9	- 3	2	NO
	MHB	ť		~~		t		· · · ·	' '	ľ		SADHANA BARMAN	2	2	35	1	2		1 2		з		NO
849	MHB	+				1			1	İ		BISMAJIT BARMAN	Ĩ	Ĩ	18	2		2	1	3	Ť	1	NO
	мнв											SHILPI BARMAN	5	2	17			2 (. 2		6		NO
	MHB											AJOYBARMAN	4	. 1	15			2 (2		6		NO
852		[i		3	1	3		1	3	5			нн	1	60		1		2		3		NO
863 864	CDG	\rightarrow				-			l			SAWRATI DAS NIRANJAN DAS	2	2	2 50 30		1		1 2	2	3		NO NO
855	ICDG	+										APARNA DAS	+ +		20				+	2			NO
	CDG	+		-								SANJIT DAS		1 1	16		-				1		NO
857	CDG	-h		i	1	3		1	i 3	6			нн	1 1	70		-		1	3	<u>'</u>		NO
	CDG	ſ										MAYARANI SARKAR	2	2	55	1	_	2	1		2		NO
859	CDG											SUNIL SARKAR		1	32	1	2		. 1	3		1	NO
	CDG											LAKHISARKAR	7		22	! 1		2 (. 2		1		NO
	CDG	_										SANDHYA SARKAR	5		35			2 (2		1		NO
	CDG			_						-		REKHA SARKAR	11	2	15			2 3	2		1		NO
863	CDG	l	-	5	1	5		1	1 3	5		NEPALSARKAR NIVOTI RANISUTRADHAR	нн	1 1	65 37	1	1 1		1 2		4		NO NO
	CDG	+										NARAYAN SUTRADHAR	2	2	23				1		3		NO
866	CDG	+				1	 					JHOMASUTRADHAR	7	1 2	23		1 5				1		NO
867	CDG	+										GOBINDA SUTRADHAR	i i	i î	15	2			2		6		NO
868	CDG	1		9	1	5		1	3	3	1	UJJAL KARMAKAR	нн	1	28				1	•			NO

Anne	exure 5	i: Detai	ls of /	¥fe:	ted Perso	ns																	
~							C1.3	C1.4		C1.6 Persons	C1.6 Persons								E mioym	Main	Non		
s. No.	Innag	^{ie} Side	e No	C	1.1	C1.2	Tribal	Vulnera-	С1.5Туре	above 15	below15		Relatio			Marital	E duca-		ent	oc cu-	working		
	·-					Caste	group	bility status	of family	years	years	Name	nship	Sex	Age	status	tion	Health	status	pation	status	Income	Skills
	CDG				_			-	-	[CHAMELI SHARMA(KARMAKAR)	2	2	22	1	2	4	2	-	3		NO
	CDG											SHAKUL KARMA KAR	19	2	! 55	5	2		2	1	ť		NO
871	CDG	R		6	1	3			1	2	2 0	TAPAN DAS	нн	1	35	1	2		1	3		1	NO
872	CDG											SHIKHA DAS	2	! 2	2 32	1	2		1	3		1	NO
873	CDG	R	1 2	!0	1	5			3	•		NITU PAUL	нн	1	50	1	2		1	3		1	NO
	CDG											SANDHYA RANI PAUL	2	2	45	1	2	4	1	4		2	NO
	CDG											DHANANJOY PAUL	4	1	22	1	2	4	1	3		1	NO
876	CDG											PINKIPAUL	7	2	21	1	2	4	2	!	3		NO

_	_						eched i Yopartu																												
: Sart chan	194 B	nd heinege	hillegi IU	• 3•	dw Me	Karapt	indent nen e	n Xitelion. 1 Xitelion	Nord	Underst	Block	i cana bilingi		GARME-	A32Non 66e holder	Ссорагальны	Son Vene of	A3.3 Address	ingested I ners	Aqu	A-wobard area	Keneria	læer	National I	ika la	:clegy	NC C roomai	υa	82 Gite Desmass Spec defenis	a-y 0		82.2 Pertmena	Engleyee EX3	Positive Inspects perceived	Neg Ing
-	125	16	LOP	╈	+	I DE BOS	SP HOLDHOOR		-	ISOUTH TRIPLE	O HOTO READE	LOSIPLE	P15P= 57	1	1	EI SWEEK DIAL	LOTE-DING BONDING	рынган сиоликих, ро-р. к. рир ри 73908 ри-6112 и			676		+ .			1									+
2	315	36.) 185	-00	÷		JIESIE	8066		2	I SCUTP TRIFUS	6 4016 59165	DESIFUR		1	,	HEJDHOOR RESHEBOOS DINESH NONDI	HEALINDER Lett-Generi Henen des	INDERSE CHUMERY, PLACE VIE / HANDERY - 2017 221 (2017) AND HER HANDER VIE / HANDER VELAS HESH CHUMHEN V, PLACE HANDER (2017) 21 HESH HENDIVELS CHEMISTIC, IN KEDETTELSHE, IN SE 2014 STA HENDIVELS CHEMISTIC, IN KEDETTELSHE, IN SE			16.0 TE	-	<u> </u>			1		66	-	$ \rightarrow $	1				*
1	25.0	192	1 09	T		THOTAL	8 L 8 L F		'	I SOUTH TRIPLE			'	1		CINESP MONDI																			Т
•	35.0	105	F ⁻	ŀ		SHOT 64			2	I SOUTH TRIPLE			'	L		NO RO VON DOG		ng Roman Dog, vill a milper en van Dorparip (D-amilpara		•	13		· ·	2	•	L	'	6	90-42 (2) 04 R	ANNEN ENT					T
1	1195	15.1		Ŧ		120.001			2		10 HE TO 199 OF		1	,		29 JED66	2010 MAH 1065	RE JEDIS, VEL-HALFORN VERALEFORP 2-HALFORD			13		· ·	2	•	1	'	6	'		,				T
4	286.1	19-1	600	P	+	BUPS	14L6 066	-	7	I SCUTP TREUP	10 HO 10 HO 10 HO	DESIROR	1	1	,	NIP SHEEDES	CONTRACT OF SUM OF DES	BUD SURIS DES VILLEZ-TOWNS ONE HERER & PUR PIN-		15	1-7-		<u>†</u> •	1	- 1	1	2	1	2	-+	- 1	'			3
1	265	10.0	100	R	+	3 10 10 10	105V			I SOUTH TRIPLE	6 HOTO READE	LOUIPLE				NO BROW CLUB		T22126 LIFEXHESH BORDING NG BRON CLUBROHESH CHOWHENIP CHROHESH CHOWHENI NG BRON CL		25	16.24		<u> </u>	2	-	L	'	54		-					4
4	20.	902	HP.	╈	+	HOT IN	81881F		1	1 500079	101010-0010	BIRB		1				PIN-TOP 6 PROFESSION CHARGE AND AND TOP TOP STATES OF DO		\vdash	Я	DANECCOFFICIER SPECTED	4		2:	1000 1814				\rightarrow					+
			L														Ro Tola sin L	N-1. PERS PR-SIG-1562-2256-179-50227-19								-				\rightarrow					+
1	4-,-	e de la	I .	Ŀ		3 PINTU:			1	I SOUTH		6417678	1	1		PINTS SHE		рыты 241 ули останициялар 3-янбыя. В 400 та тярыялы мытерия Истария тариял		'	9.12	1		1	<u>'</u>	1	'	5	e e		'				1
*	10	~	[Ŀ		TRING			'	1 20079	1010101000		'	1		191.60 DUTTS	es hanne sourre					FT NC MA SFFTC TTO				dan Ang									'
н 12	15.7	665.7 964.7		+	-	 S048 F8 kull 	DUTTS I SLIKLS DES		1	1 20079	HE TO FEE OF	8-LR-18 18-LR-18	1	1		ANSA MODITA Réfuit sur lédés	GO REATING DETTO LOTT NO FEMORE SEMILODO	ERREMOLITE P. ORIGINAL STREET, PROVIDED AND THE PROVID AND THE PROVIDANT THE PROVIDED AND THE PROVIDANT THE		2L -	61.92		+ .		2	L		6		\rightarrow	- 1				÷
<u> </u>	8 57	961.7	HP.	+		क्रायमह	50618 086		-	1 50079	101010100100	BIRB				SO HER SLINE & DOG	LOTT HORSEON SURLEDS	TRIPURS S VILLEP OS TRIPUPERS, LOGAPLIR S CO. TP. TRIPURS		1	61.92		+ .				<u> </u>	-		\rightarrow					⊹
-	24.7	962	H.P	+	-		50416 065		-	I SOUTH	1010103000	6-17878				DOPEL SLIKES DAS		CANNOL CINER INC. OF LICENSTRUE DURING CONDITION.			113	ACCHORY.			80	14.5				\rightarrow					╈
		ديرو		-[-	+	TOPUTE		<u> </u>	1	I SOUTH		84LP678				CUTS HDES	LOTE NO POL DOS	SOUTH TREVER PR-361 2 AFOR SCROOL CORNER CAUTENDES VEU-DOCTANIDARES SCROOL CORNER TREVEN PR-361 2010 ACCOUNT ARE SCROOL AND AND RESECTES VEU-POSTANIDARES LET-2001H TREVER SCROOL SCROOL PROTECTION AND REPORT AND REPORT SCROOL AND			212	OFFIC TED			W	<u> </u>	<u> </u>			\rightarrow					-
]	975			+	+	1 2221			1	1 20079				- 1		26 264 D/G		TRIPLIES PIN-TWICE SCHOOL AND TRIPLIES THE TRANSPORT		1 1	33				1		<u> </u>		21.00						1
7	1023	913 1197	Яř	Ŧ	+	- SSIR	60776		1	10000	FIGTO FRANCES		1	i	+	SUS CHICK DUTTS	COLOR RECEI DUTTO	SUSPONDER DUTTE IN EFFEC IN OR FOR TV OFFICE PIN IN- TS0126 FM 42-206	-	1 1	68		+	1	*	i	+ +	च							÷
•	186.9	1262.5	MP	+	+	11 560 H 6	H Neorty	1	1	I SOUTH	HOTO RELOFE	641.P678		L	'	Sé Dir éle	SO NTHE CHEEREBOR TY	SOBH ON CHOKROBORTY IN EPORG PLO-INHERORD DIST-SOUT	- и		6		1							-+					4
0	132	116	нp	╈	+	CPORT OF		1	1	1 20079	1010 0000	8-178 FB	1 1	1	,	CHOKROBORTY SEFECTORY	LOTE SCHOOL DEV	TRIPLES PRO21/16 SEPTEMBER VIEL POST-IN EPORT DIST-SCUTH TRIPLES NET SCUTH TRIPLES A DIST-SCUTH TRIPLES		ा	16		+ •	1	- 1	1	, I	4		-+	1			<u> </u>	4
2	201	110	H.P	╞	+	1 284 2	LALIS 0.65	<u> </u>	*	1 500074	1010 1000	6-17678	1 1				20 TERS 5011 0 ESS	is-lear about P.SR. Kove und Pur Sinverse das Vel (Pla-B-lear des R.R. Pvr Loop Les)	<u> </u>			-	+ •	#	- *	1	, I	4		-+				<u> </u>	┽
л	-i liti	i) di	MP	+	+	P PINTL	HOLDHEDOR		*	ISOUTH	HOTO FED OF	N-LPGRS	1 1	1	,	PROOP HEALHDOR	HE HE PROBLE	TRIPLES PIN-TONG NULPERS BUCK PLOG STREAM PRODE HOULDER VILL PLOK MUP OR TREAM PROTOCOL		<u>.</u>	9		+ •	8		1	, I	6		\rightarrow					÷
2	1013	1662.2	HP.	+	+	6 84 P CM			*	16007	1010101010	B-LIS IS		- 1		SO NTOSH HOMON DEV	LOTE CHEMORY HOUSE OF	PH-66126087J 2 Séle TOSIA HORADE DE VISIONER ANDRA HORADE DEV MILL.		- 20	11246		+ .			- 1		57		\rightarrow					┢
8	1825	ui Ji	M.P	+	+	(THELE	14 MH 621	<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	I SOUTH	HO TO FEE OF	6-LP678	<u> </u>					HALPORD PRODUCT SHI MANARA DIVADI DE DIVITA CARADA DA PORTO DA DA					+	$\left \right $	\rightarrow					\rightarrow					+
<u>_</u>	1825			╉	⊢.	ES Sind	no meori Te Distante	<u> </u>	-	1 20079		BIRR				DE DINOTI-	LATE PALLABER DECEMBER	23796 DE TU DECENTS MILLOR CAMMENTS DIN TSCHOOL							\rightarrow					\rightarrow					+
2	1825	118		Ŧ	Ì	7.3 TTTU D 7.3 LTTU D	THE OTHER		1	100000	4676 3969	HERR HERR		- 1	i	THE DESCRIPTION		22796 Phyto Etherne Hiller, Controllegies Phytogenetic The Definition of the Controllegies Phytogenetic Ether Etherne Hiller, Controllegies Phytogenetic Ether Etherne Hiller, Reichter Sterner Phytogenetic Sterfere Lieben Phytogenetic Phytogenetic Phytogenetic Phytogenetic Phytogenetic Physical Phytogenetic Phytogenetic Phytogenetic Physical Physical Physical Phytogenetic Physical Physica					-		=					=					\$
2	200	2183		ŧ	<u>+</u>	10044			1	150000- 150000- 150000-	46 TO 150 CH	81RB		i		SPERFELT HEADER	ACCENDES HEJEHDER LOTE KERTIK DOG	SPERFECTIVE AND AND A CONTRACT AND A					 							=	- 2				\$
•		115	[ľ		1 224424			<u>'</u>	15007		B-LIGID				SO HER DE V	LDIN NOR IN LIDS	TENES TENES EXHIBIT OF VULL & D-HALPING ANSARATIV OFFICIA PA-			16.94		<u> </u>	11	_1		<u>'</u>	- 1							1
1	1025		[I DE V CHORES BORTY		1		HE TO RECO	B-LPG IS	'	,	'	SO HER DE V BLEV CHER BORTV		SCHOR DE VVILL & DAMALPURG MEGRPOTY DEFICIEJ PA- SEGNINGAD (DEGY CHORES BORTY VILL (R. ORMIPURG DIS T-		16			<u> </u>	1			'								
	נופו	13817	нρ	P					`	1 20079			'	,		F=		I BLAN CHARREBORTY VILL (P. CHARLELES DE T- TRIPLES SOUTH I PHONE) (CHARLEN IN- SCHIR CHARREBORTY VILL (P. CHARLEN RS - PHH-TSP) (C		'	5			°	,	1	'	51	,		'				1
•	LIGI	12917	ыp	R			CHORE BORTY		2	I SOUTH	HOTO FRI OFS	6-LP672		L	,	Số HIR CHÉR RORTY	NEPEL CHEMRENORTY	SCHUR CHORNER ORTY VILL (P. CHONE PLURG - PUN-TSO) (G TILLEP ER S PLASSED (GL) (SCHUPEL CHORRESOR TY HEJEL MELGUVEL (P. CHORLELIKE CHARMER RESER PA-		1	τ.		· ·	°	,	L		51							1
5	120.7	12867	нÞ	P		e Rosa			2	1 20079	1010101000	B-LIS IS	'	,		NO AL NEU A	LOTE ALCOPER NELLS	962(4)912		1	51		· ·		1	1	'	51	,		'				Т
ш	1291.7	125.4	[R		100101			2	ISOUTH-	HIGTO FEE OF	6-17678	'	r	'	0010 6603	ad La Divar Ingila	DULU NE DU VILL (P.O.H.) LPS RS DIST-SOUTH TRIPLIRS PH-		1	51		· ·	1	,	L	'	51	3		'				7
*	1813	1973	HP.	P	+		CK-5246		2	1 500/79	101010300	8188	1	1	'	acted on seve	6462.4D 420148 TH	941554219 DORAL CH, SAIRE MILLIP, ORIGINARY, LIFFRIERS BARRY P GROWN CH, SAIRE MILLIP, ORIGINARY, LIFFRIER, BARRY P	1	19	19.57		<u> </u>	•	•	1	'	- 61	,	-	'				す
Е	1843	1113	HP.	F	+	31631626	8 20 HO		2	ISOUTH	1010 131 031	6-17678	1 1	,	,	NO NO CHI SO HO	LOTT PROMACLLOWSONG	NO RECEIVE SELECTION OF CONSTRUCTIONS LINEAR EPO RECEIVE PA- SMA22 (0.5.1)		11	a1		<u> </u>	1	- 1	1	'	- 61	,	-	'				オ
¥	(127.)	112.7	M.P	R	-	-	16 14		2	I SOUTH	46 TO F20 OF	69-1, P6-R5	1	1	'	HENR DEV	LOTE SUPERIORS CHORE	HOW IN DE YVEL (PLO-RHEPORIO PHONE) (6062) (654 RS H		1	224		<u> </u>	•	2	1	· ·	- 45	6	-	2				す
л	128.7	1184	HP.	k	+	II HEAR	141 1100	<u> </u>	*	1 SOUTH	1010101000	B-LR-R	1 1	1	,	HENRI LEL NELLA	NUMBER OF CALLSREE AND CALLS	CORNER HEAR LELINGER VELIDOHO-EFERS LINKING SREEDER		15	1,11		+ •		-	1	<u> </u>	57	SPIRIC STOR	<u>e</u>	'				ォ
	1.06.0	1124		R		U NOT A			2	1 50079		6188		2		80 M 60-064		PHE-50120 PH-56 G15263+ RS-26 GH-564- VEL-P2-H8-EP6 RS			5		<u> </u>	2	2	1		52	STOR	<u></u>					+
-	11164	(112) (14)7 (14)7	MLP MLP	R		HOT &	10 L 09L F		2	1 SOUTH 1 SOUTH 1 SOUTH	HOTO FRI OF	01100 01100 01100		1	~ ~	CHORDON SCHO SUIDE HOCUF ONTO HOULHDOR		Сновае в 2010 VILL (ронно врего алу солто тер иго ало нальноет VILL (ронно все алу терато VILL (р. снитрего ило риг (с) терато на врего волог			5 11.16		+ :	2	- 2			62		\rightarrow					+
"	1111.1	1967	нp	P					'				'	'			LOTE MISSIONS HEADING	: VAL 19.0-KINDERE DOB FOR 151 TRIPORE HEADERE BOOK COMPLEX COMPLEX		31	2136			°	,	1	1	69	9960		'				T
4	1912	1912	HP.	P			ine Heilinge		1	ISOUTH	1010 1000	6-E16-18	,	,		COMPANY HEADING	LOTE HOULD BE HEALENDER	DOLENDER HEILINDER SIDTETT KEILESS-HEILINDER MILIP. DER LIPERE BALTER BEITER		15	63		· ·	°	1	1	'	69	990	*	'				1
4	12-17	7,8-L) 1,541,1	M P M P	8	-	IN THE REAL	I Ó LÓGLE Ló Ling Girð		2	I SOUTH	46 TO FEE 643	641.P678		2		DH HICH DO'S Shivehiol Sheare	LATT DA DA LIVIA TA MAATA	S SPACELLE SHO DEG VILLIPIC- KHLPOES PR-CHEZOZANI I LIF			62 167	S CLARKERY WELL	· ·		2	L		69		=					7
_	121-2	- 643	I .	f	_	a ane o			-	1 20079		BIRB				FS TON DISC R	REVERING ON DIS R	NE OR NOT DE CONCOL ISS TON DECRIVEL & CONSTRUCTION DE LO CONTRACTO DE CONCOLATION DE LO CONTRACTO DE LO CONTRACTO DE LO CONTRACTO ISS TON DE CONTRACTO DE LO CONT				OFFIC TED	-							\rightarrow					-1
_				-[-					<u> </u>								ROJELLAND RESUTRATION						-							\rightarrow					-1
1	1277	LL+31		ľ			e sutreaear S af air sars		1	ISOUTH	HE TO HARDING	BERR B		1		HELLIKO DEVIDEGORE		achesia sutecoace vellegoda des plojohades pa- 9621712-9 Holligo devisione multiplice ployades des t-		10	al al		<u> </u>	1	_1		<u>'</u>	6							1
"			r**				saruoon Saruoon		1			r	'	,	'	HELLIK BOSMEPCORE) REA NESIR LODIN	HOLLING DEVISION OF T	HELLES DEVIGEOREMUL-REIDERE PLAREDERE DE T- SOUTE TREURS PLANESCONTS REJ HESRUSSIN SERIES VILL-REIDERE PLANESCONTS			east		<u> </u>	1			, ,	5							1
	LL 41	1644	[R		2 HEAT NO.	IS MARHAKER		1	1 20079		8-178 B	1	1		NG JI NG SIR LOOM Kining Ng Ri Dag Ng Hakar					12.21			°	1	1		U US	2						1
1	2246	33493	I	ŀ					1	I SOUTH	K) KSREAN	R SAME BROK	1	1		HORI DAG HARHERER	ių BIPRO CHORON MARINE CHORON Ių konon lau datų	READING RINGLE RUDOP LICES TRIPLICE		1	16.74			1	2	1	· ·	τ	r		1				1
2	2260	2269.4	F	ŀ		054	of Hullones		'	1 20079	12 12 R 12 H	READER	1	1		ADDEMISING HE DEV		P.O. 4640018, P.H. 799126, P.4. 80-976-20111																	1
•	2004 J	2612		F		J KESH6 CH6KR	e Seorty		4	i souriv	10 H30 Edw	READER	1	1	1	NE SHORE CHARRES BORTY		VEL-ROADHOR NO GOOD, P.O., IOHAGERI, P.NT20126		1	•1.8			8	2	L	'	54	6		'				1
1	2000	XeJ		Ŧ		- HE CH	SHOPE	1	'	1 50079	65 655 ESA	S HANKI	1	- 1	'	OT TRANSPORTED	SPECIAL SPECIAL	VILL-SCH GURT, P.O. READER CHEGGER, P.H. 759(26, P.H.HO- SH 575(66)	· · ·											-+					オ
1	1370	1270	H.	Ŧ		Sarvar	61 20100 0000	1	'	ISOUTH	60 650 ESA	READIER	1 1	- 1		SP-VEH 81 SD TRS 19-88		VEL-2014 OUR LIND, ROURING ON COOR, PIN 799 UR, PHIND- SND 2020 IS	· ·				1							-+				1	শ
•	1245	15151	н.	╈	-	6 PHINE S	L TROOKE		1	I SOUTH	10 HS 60 H	READIER	1	1	'	SWODESH SUTRODIOR	ILI MEMOR MUHER	VILL-CHADRI, P.O. ROUCH ON COOR, P.M. 759-06, PH NO- SECTION		×	ومقار		<u> </u>		2	1	· ·	- 11	'	-	'				+
4	1321	1259	н.	╈	+	TROME	2010201-02	<u> </u>	+	ISOUTH	62.652.52A	READIER		1		SOME SUTTOPICE		VEL-SHOLRI, P.O. REJONENEOUR, P.M. 799105, PH NO-		$\left \right $			+		-			61		\rightarrow					+
-	1373	12=1	HI.	╈	+	10.040	STRATEGICS.		*	ISCOT!	62 652 EA	READIER		1		Cremoth Gree	1 SCH TOSH SUTTO DACK	926-10440 VEL-26400R, P.O. Routh-Chodder, P.M. 799-06, PH NO-	1	4	2.76		+ •	1	-	1	, I	. 76		\rightarrow					+
+	LIZI	126	н.	╈	+	SHRUD	HOR DEV	<u> </u>	-	ISOUTH	10 150 BOH	READING		1		MRUDININ DEV	U GOMINGO CH.DEV	92610446 VIL-2010LR, P.D. Roldhonodor, P.M. 799126, Ph. ND-22559					+	$\left \right $	+					\rightarrow					\$
1	1391	164.1		+	+	6		 	-	ISOUTH	2002 BA	READING	+ - +	- 1		ISHE FEL	U SCHERTHERE FOLL	VILL-2010URL P.D. ROJO-CHEGOR. P.H. 75906	<u> </u>	+			+	$\left \right $	-+		-	$\left \right $		-+			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	╉
	1641	Jeal.7		╈	+	инатти			*	I SOUTH		READER	<u> </u>	۱,			SPLOP R POUL	MLL-KHOURL P.O. RANDAMANAR, P.M. 73906, PA. NO-		┥╷	1675		+ .	⊢.		1	<u> </u>	тыс		\rightarrow					╁
	101.7	11-12		+	+	UNDER		<u> </u>	-	12007	12 152 EEA		<u> </u>			8461/6185		je se	+				1		_		ا			\rightarrow				<u> </u>	+
1	186.	Uel.		+	+			<u> </u>	1	ISOUTH		ACHAGRI	<u> </u>				U CHENTE HE SOLO	PL. NO-GIA 2022-469 VILL-RS 2014R MODER, POST-2014BUIR, P.SHS MR680H, MS2	4									\vdash		\rightarrow					╣
	-674	-667.5		-[-				 	1	1 20079		ACHAURI	<u> </u>		<u> </u>		IL KUPCOP COCHOYUP	SOUTH, PHINO22359 WILL-RE JOINT HOLER, POST-JOHNSON, P.SHE HROSEN, MIST	1		21-		1	Ļļ						\rightarrow				l	4
				1		MuPe	ING PETE BOIND ISINI		1				<u> </u>	1	'	MuP		IVIL HS LOHER HEALER, POST-IS HEALIN, PIS-HS HEALIN, ISS SOUTH, PH NOMESTIFIC IVIL HS LOHER HEALER, POST-IS HEALIN, PIS-HS HEALIN, ISS	<u> </u>		<i>.</i>		<u> </u>	1	-1	1		[]							\square
-	- 64	- 642		1					1	1 20079		20Habri		1		1	HEMIST SPE	VILLES IDER HODER, POST-BHILDER, PS-HORER, DS- South, VILLES IDER HODER, POST-BHILDER, PS-HORER, DS-		3				1	1	1	'	~							1
°	•873	•163		F			BALL OF		'	1 20079		ACHINE!	'	1		1	I PERSONENDENTRAT																		
"	• # *5	•193		F			ACHE RAFE		1	I SOUTH	10 H20 B24		1	1		DA. HET ET	ng ra dinan da ne rust	Solution Viel - Real Dierr Header, Post-Johnson R., Pis-Honrechen, Dist Solution, Philoder Solution Viel - Real Relation, Post-Johnson, Pis-Honrechen, Dist Viel - Real Relation, Post-Johnson, Pis-Honrechen, Dist	9	1					T										1
-	-15	•195	H,	┢			1959-00776		1	1 500.074	10 16 M 12 M	READIER	1	1	'	KORTIK DIJITIS	U HUNMORSCH.DUTTS		-	1 4	212		· ·	1	•	1	'	724		\rightarrow					オ
1	• ##.7	• 126.7	HI.	Ŧ		17 85 480	066	· ·	1	i souriv	10 H30 SEA	LO HALRI	1 1	2		85 JBD66	HC F20 DH CH D CG	VILL-RE-IDHOR MODOR, POST-IDHIDDUR, P.SHE HROBON, DIST		6	212		· ·	1	•	1	'	726		-+					ŧ
1		- 10	in.	-		OT TALK	20060	<u> </u>	1	(SOUTH	15 65 12 h	READIER	+		-	TEP ON SERVICE	U SURESPICE SERIER	SOUTH, PH-96-2621215 VILL-RE-DIRECTOR, POST-26 HEADIN, PIS-HERRORD, DIST		1.4	a		+ -	- 1	_			I		\rightarrow			-		+
	• 0TS	•74	P**	. Г.								REGER	1 1					SOUTH, PI-CH212676 VILL-RE LIVER REGLER, POST-LE FLIGHTER, PIS-HE REGLER, DIST	1	רי ן		1		1	- 1			21							- 1

5. No. 3		End		1 31da	Nr: I	Auspandent neme	l ype er		Listnet	Heck	I wana billaga	A 2 17 pa A3		n Coupersnene	Son Wene of	Add Address	Ingested	Age -	Americand	Remerica	læer M	al Pico	Interest	No L						823		Negetive
	i la na ga	chenege					u 200	9,02.5				e- Qa property she					lmes	ľ						rec nos		kannaa 3p Mada	wany -	Qamer- ship	Pertners	Englic,ee	mpecta parcaved	inipada parciavad
	•28	•20	11100	1	20	Sense Headings		2	SOUTH	65 163 12k	A FLORI	1		PERTOSP HETUHDER	HE THOPON HEADHOR	VEL - READER HEADER, POST-JE HEADER, PIS-HE HEADER, DIST SOUTH		15	1363		•	*	•	1 1	69							
σ	•25.7	•39	7.144.1	1		NO RO VON CH RO HO		2	ISOUTH-	10 H2 BCH	16 HAURI	'	1	I NO RO VON CHI SOMO	IL ROUBEROFI SONO	VEL-RE-DHER MEDER, POST-JE HERDER, P.SHE HREBEN, DIST SCHUTZ		15	n san		'		•	1	-	999	PORDMOR				5	
-	-74	•39	77 444	+ 1	21	Real Full Refe		1	IS OUTP	16 16 S 12 h	IS FLOORI		1	PROGRAM PAPE	1 Rev 12 16 17 221-0	VEL 45 ZHAR HOLER, FOST-Z HEALIN, FS-45 HROLEH, DIST SOUTH, FM HORE 2001		1 4	••••		-	-	1	1 1	T •	f'						
-	• 23.7+	• 29	7.144.1	+ 1	×,	RORESSVERME		2	1 20079	62 162 12k	SHORI	-	1	PROGRESSIVEROUS	6169 40 HOLE	VEL-SOLDING BROKE, SCOTLIGHTMUS, SALES SCORE, USIT		15	1.72			-	1	1 1	τ.	-						
τ	• 26	•2	- 14 95		7	e von to deg		1 .	2 SOUTH	10 H2 60 H	READING R		-	IS VEN TO DOG	NO FRING REVIEW DISS	SOUTH PHILOGO22001 VILL-PRIDHER HEADER, POST-INHIBUR, PIS-HERREN, DIST		15	1.64			-	-	1 1	6.35							
	- 74	•2	Ne Hi		- 20	40 MINO 120 AN 1266		1	150075	12 162 12k	READING R		1	146 13 166 1297 64 13 66	U HE WORK DES	SOUTH, PHINOSE USAR IS VILLAS SHAR HOUR, POST-SHIDUR, PS-HERODER, DIST		- 15	1.91		-	-	-	1 1	635	200	94.CP					
											M D LADIK					SOUTH, PHINOREEUXPT1											is in can Intil					
•	• 26		100 141			SPONNER SUTRODIER		1	isoum-	15 15 15 15 16 16	16 HADRI	'	1	SHOWNER SUTRODIOR	SU TRA DA ART	VILL-RE-LOHOR MODER, POST-LE HUDLIN, PIS-RE MROBEN, DIST SOUTH, PHINOPHERSTALL	1	16	7521		•	'	1	1 1	5.15	"						
	- 32		en de la compañía de			NOT EAST CALL		2	1 20079		A HADRI	1	1	PROGEP DOS	IL HORESP DOG	SLOTING PERMITSION MILLES DIER RECORD, POST-B HINDUR, PS-REFEREN, DIST SLOTIN		"	7521		•	'		* '	5.15							
	•20		6. jHj	ŀ	- 1	24 KAR BARSHIT		2	IS OUT	62 632 62k	IS HILD RI	1	1	I SOMER REPORT	IL ROSP HOP ON ROAD HT	VEL-READING NEARS, FOST-BHEADIN, FS-HERBER, DIST SOUTH, PH NOMENER I VEL-READING NEARS, FOST-BHEADIN, FS-HERBER, DIST	1	"	(2) 26		•	,		' '	\$15	,						
41	•21		5. HJ			TOPO IN PERSONAL		2	SOUTH	NS 1535 GE M	at Habri	'	'	TOP ON ROACHINT	URIGENICION ROBONT	VILL-RELIDHOR MODER, POST-JE HINDURI, PIS-HE HROBON, DIST SOUTH, PHINOPERATIES (J		"	(2)/26		•	~			5.15	,						
	25.	- 2		Ŧ	<u> </u>	MUTCHROV MUTCHROV		2	1 SOUTH-	12 162 124 12 162 124	A HADRI			ALC: TELECON		VILLES JOINT HOUSE, SCHLIGHTER, SCHRISTER, DIST			6363					8								ļ
	•751	• 21	144			WUENDRO CH.			i sourre	NO 1650 BILLIN	IN HILD RI		-	INT ANDRO CH		SOUTH, PHINOR MORE ANT (THE VILL - RE JOHN MORE, POST-JE HARDIN, PIS-HE MROBEN, DIST		<u>k</u>	1412			-			515							<u> </u>
	763		344		10	er owner: No ten geronen		-	IS OUTP	12 162 12k	BHORI		-	SHOWINK IS TON BORDIG N		SCUTA VILLAS INFORMATICA, POST-IS HIDDIN, P.S. AS REASEN, DIST		- 1	7.8						515		NTS TO A			-	;	<u> </u>
-	.71.9		8.7 44.1	[]	I	NOT 646 L 64L F		_	SOUTH	NS 1655 624	10 HADRI	1	1	PRODETP Des	MIRENDRE DE S	SOUTH, FM NORIER (2005- VILL-RE-DHER NEGER, POST-IE HIGH R, P.SRE REGION, DIST		1	6362				-	1 1	5.15							
			344					1	16000	12 162 12k	ACHAGRI		-	SUPER TO DE V	SUBPR CP BY	SAL THE AREA NOACH, FOST-AR HAMING, P S-HE HERMEN, MAT WELLES ALLER NOACH, FOST-AR HAMING, P S-HE HERMEN, MAT		1			-			1	515		ECC#					
	36.1		570HJ				- '	1	15 COLOR	12 13 2 12 h	ACHAGRI		1	HEAR SOTOHOR		NE L'HE AIRER HEALER, PLAIT & HAMING, PLANE HEALEN, UST SOUTH VEL-RE AIRER HEALER, POST-16 HAMING, PLANE HEALEN, UST	1	1						1	1.15		δuj					ļ
-			27 JHJ		- 1	NOT GAGE GILLE		1	I SOUTH	10 10 0 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	ACHAURI					VEL - 40 BING ROLES, PLAN AD HEADIN, PLAN BROKEN, DAT SOUTH, PL RO-29 JN VEL - 60 BING ROLES, POST- 6 HEADIN, PLANS REGEN, DIST	1	11				-					~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~					 '
	• 26.7					NOT OVOLOGLE SCIPE DE REIGEN		1			ACHAGRI	'	1			Vill-Reliandr Roadr, Post-Johnadin, Pis-Rorrente, Dist South, Phylodizeje:	1	1			•	•	'	1 1	5.15							
2	22)) (注) (注)	+	19.11	SINTL IN DOLLAR		*	ISOUTH ISOUTH	12 10 2 12 h	BHAR	1		FINTU SCIDICS	IL CHILDER GACH	2011 TV, PH-MC-29-14 VEL-2014 2015, P.20-20142015, PM, MC-22264 VEL-2014 2015, P.20-20142015, PM, MC-22264		16	12612				1	8 1	5.15 5.15					2		
	1 1 1			-		ng halan da kalen h Mulip dakaman		2	ISOUTH-	12 162 124 12 162 124	A HADRI		2	NO HOCH BO ROLLON	ACLES MORE FOR			•6 15	7.N 7.N				-		515						_	P
2	38	• 2	226 44 3	F		PROGENTS DE RUHEN SUTT DER DHEN		2	IS CUTH	12 152 124 12 152 124	LA HADRI		-	DOAGA BTA DA DOLA B	SUIT BORDHON NE HEN TO RE BORDHON	чальныя. Ро-Сная. Ри воесстите чальныя, Ро-Сная. Ри воесстат чальныя, Ро-Сная.		16	144			-	1	1 1		2		3				
	-11-2	122	1041	F	-	1696 N 16 V 2016 TP F601		1	ISOUTH ISOUTH ISOUTH ISOUTH ISOUTH	12 16 2 12 h 12 16 2 12 h	E HORI			CUTTECREACE TOP ON LE V 1 RD THE POLE	PUIDINGSPIDEV SUDPRICE FRUI	VEL-241-2617, P.C26142613. VEL-261-2617, P.C26142613.			11.26				1	3 1	636							
	-10				I	IN MARK PROCED POUL		1	ISOUTH					I SHERE PRESED POUL	1	·		D.	1.1100		-		-	1 1								نصل
	•12.5		1417 1417			ET SAGE SEE		1	I SOUTH	10-152-124 10-152-124	ACHARI ACHARI		-	ENDE PELL	IN SOUTHER DE POLL	VIL-241 118,9 О-26 Н118, 94 КО22266 VIL-241 118,9 О-26 Н118,		TP-	11166		'	-1	1	11								1'
18	15.	-12	87443 87443			NOT CASE COLE NOT CASE COLE NOT CASE COLE		1	1 20079	12 132 124 12 132 124 13 132 124	L. LINET	1		STATISTICS OF A STATISTICS OF	PERFSH SHE	VEL-2014-013, P.D-2014013. VEL-201403, P.D-2014013. VEL-201403, P.D-2014033.		1	1110		- :			1 1	-							
161	1773 115	<u>در</u>	8.7 H J	-		NOT EVELEGALE SULT INFLOOD PERSINGLID ES CUPTE			ISOUTH ISOUTH		ACHADRI ACHADRI ACHADRI			SULL SHE	PERISE SEL IU RINCO RIFERILCOF PERIFELDES CUPTE	ML-AHARPO-AHAR		15	1.166						66						\square	
14	• 115.• • 115.•	-15			20 20	PERMICLING CUPTO		2	ISOUTH	12 162 124 12 162 124	A HARI		2	BLICH DES GLIPTE	PERIHEL DES CUPTE	VILL-SHADR, P.OSHADR. VILL-SHADR, P.OSHADR, PHIO-SIG2(7) (53		15	•.115 •.115				-		66							
16	• 114.1	•1•	CHILD.	F	- 20	NATU DO ROHO N			(SOUTH-	62 162 E24	BHAR	i		KARP BORDING N	U CUL BERDICH	VILLEHING, P.D. BHANK, PPRO-22384		15	ISJNS		i	i	1	1 1	66							
100	- 111. 		2444 1444 67444		쐶	NOT CAO LOGLE PERIHAL DAG GLIPTA REHAL DEV		4	I SOUTH- I SOUTH- IS OUTH-	10 100 100 10 100 100 10 100 100 10 100 10	AN HAURI	+ +	*	1 SA BLU CHA READORTY PARHAL DAS DUPTA 1 RAHAL DAY	IU HE MINDRE CH DES KALL DEV	VIL-25H203,P20-25H203, PFMC-25(556-20) VIL-25H203,P20-25H203, PFMC-25(556-20)		15	992 • 36				+		<u>66</u>						1	
10				÷		11241 12401-04		*	15000- 15000- 15000-	12 13 2 12 h	2 HULRI		-	LITPEL DOUDLON	no ko vole no ko kole de			15	53N 1.12			**	*	1 1	5.5		_				$ \rightarrow$	
18	14	•19	14 HJ	+	201	20 TON BORDHON MINISCHIDIGG	-	1	IS OUTP	12 162 124 12 162 124	E HERI		1	1 DO TON DO ROHO N MINTO HIDOG	SUML BERDICH SORGJONIDOS	MI-2H-103, P.O2H-103, PPHO-26222415 MI-2H-103, P.O2H-103, PPHO-26222415		15	1.12			-	1	1 1	5.75 5.75							
112	E4.3	12	11 HI C		- 6 13	MANGRESS		1	ISOUTH ISOUTH ISOUTH	12 152 124 12 152 124	LA HUURI		1	1 MINS HD/G	SOR6 JOHIDOS	MIL-2H 403, P.O. & H403, PPHO-2612#5128 MIL-2H 403, P.O. & H403, PPHO-2062674764		13				-	1	l II	5.75							
15	E 3	-12			- 20	ADT FACE AND DIRE		1	IS OUT	12 132 12 h	LA HOURI	1 1	1	STER OF BECKER	HERE CHIR	MILEHING POLEHING, PHOCHENTER MILEHING POLEHING, PHOCHENTER		휳	ġ			1	1	1 1	-							j
16	• 54 1	•12	NA ANA		6 1	OT 6NO LOGLE		1	ISCUTP	10 HSX 644	#H4RI			PROOP DOG	STUL DOS	VILLEH BR.P.C.BHBR. PPRCARATE		2			- :	1	1	1 1	6.75						<u> </u>	
1.0	- 50d 51d	-16	22443		븱	NOT 646 L 64L F NOT 646 L 64L F NOT 646 L 64L F		3	15007- 15007- 15007- 15007- 15007-	12 16 2 12 h	JAHADRI JAHADRI	1	1	HORD VON DAG 1 MILLING JUNDAR 1 MILLING DAG	Listo Rokutik Dos SIGDI-8 TU-DoR	ЧЕЛЬНЫЯ, РОЛЬНЫЯ, РИНОВСИТСЯ ЧЕЛЬНЫЯ, РОЛЬНЫЯ, РИНОВСИТСЯ ЧЕЛЬНЫЯ, РОЛЬНЫЯ, ЧЕЛЬНЫЯ, РОЛЬНЫЯ, ЧЕЛЬНЫЯ, РОЛЬНЫЯ, ВИНОВСИТСЯ		100	96 X36		-	1	1	1 1	6.75							+
12	101			÷	- áli	SUSTERIOR HAVE		*	IS OUT	12 16 2 12 h 12 16 2 12 h	EHLER		-	202101-049-00	E24-DULE1744	Mill-and and Provadeling.	°		16152				1		66		_					
121	31	•1	13 41) 73 41) 14 41)		- 100 B	Shuff SHL		2	ISOUTH ISOUTH	12 162 12 h 16 162 12 h	A HADRI			PERIT SHE	NU HE HE HERE HE SHILL	MIL-2H 405, P.C. 2 H405, MIL-2H 405, P.C. 2 H405, PPhO-3623(17)			102				-		66							
12	10				망	NOT 646 L 66L F		2	15.000- 15.000- 15.000-	12 152 124 2 152 124	LO HUURI		4	PRODP LODP	MARKADRO U ROLL SHORE	ицен.шя, р.оеншя, рико-акуелт Ицен.шя, р.оеншя, рико-акуелт Ицен.шя, р.оеншя,			1			1	1	3 1	66							
12	19					ET ING LIGHT IF IN HE SOURCE		1	IS OUT	12 16 2 12 h	I HORI			INTERIOUT TE	U PROFULIO CH SORHOR	MILEH 105, P.C. BHANS, MILEH 105, P.C. BHANS, MILEH 105, P.C. BHANS, PROSEC(126)	<u> </u>	13	132			-i	i -		- 58	_						
				$\left \right $	I	ACTION PRESIDENT	<u> </u>	-	k our			<u> </u>	1	66 R 66 R			<u> </u>	11			L 1	_1_	-	1 1								<u>لــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ</u>
12	24		5 1 4 1 1 6 1 4 1 1	t	1	SOLAR OF PELL			ISOUTH	12 102 Igh	ACHAGRI ACHAGRI ACHAGRI		1	I NORE CHIDES	NU KOR CHOMOS DOS NU SONTCELI POUL SEUNDOR OLI	VLL-2H-2H, P.O2H2H, PP-NO-3H2H7F VLL-2H2H, P.O2H2H7, PP-NO-3H268643 22636			111				2		7.9							
1.29	2673		53 1 41	8	1	24-24-2 201		1	SOUT TRIPLES	12 16 2 12 h	BRICHOR	'	'	20 FOR 61.1		алгая аций алангаснаяр с-шныя рыт-ссит тярых мн-тандар ансания		_ ·	-,70			1	1	, ,	113	2						
126	2/79.4		142 HI	R		AN & ROHDER		1	SOUT TRIPLES	NG 1655 GAN	BARENA BRICHAR	'	1	I BOLISHON GLETTO	BOLO ROHDER	de uch en odpate, vil Leeks in en RCH er p. Counour, dist- sout tripurs pin-twi 26 R n sin odpate, vil p. Counour dist-sout tripurs pin-																
111	2362		1.5 54.3			EN SIN OUPTIO		1	SOUT TRIPLES	65 163 124	BERE HE	1	1	I R IN SER OLIPTTS		R N SEN COPTE, VILLE CHORNER DIST-SOUT TREATS PIN- TWO IS	16	1													· · · ·	1 5
u,	সহ	~	- H - H - H	*	•	ener frei		'		65 165 12k	SEEDING SECHOR		1	EVIEL ROOM	LOTE-FEP-CEPET HI-CH	T29116 29met Rich, VII. Bestinger: Per, Po-Johold, DS T6 Cen Tripurs pin-T29124.PP 66 (2002) 2		1	691						-	e.						
ш	254		60 BH 3	8		LITCH KOR		2	SOUT TRIPLES	NS 1635 664	DA KANNA		2	LITCH KCR	nd noik no R	LITCH KOR VILL-BASSINGER CHORE P. CHUMURUDIST-SOUT		1	1500		•	2	2	1 1	τı		CHONGOL					\square
•د،	358	86	110		1	ANGUL BLAN	-	1	SOUT TRIVERS	65 163 12k	BRICHER BERCHER BRICHER	1 1	1	2018/01/12/04	LOTE-GLINDER OU	TREAR PIETONE SECOND STATUTE SECONDER CONTRACTOR CAN THE DEAR DATE TO A CONTRACTOR OF CARDING ST		া	<i>36.62</i> -		- +		•	1 1	- 11		COP CALLYON LIST NT				\$	
18	786.0	89	- 14 C		6	CANAL SHOSEN		2	SCOLT TELEVIS	162 B2 B2 B	26 E4 B5		-	A PERSON REPORTED	OVER LOSSEE	SOUT TRIPLES (FIN-TS) (GPF-0652)(SF) SFRM DR FOSSE IN (HU-SHS) SFREIT CFR (F. O-GH-GR (HST			6.066		•	-	*	1 1	- 11	्रमेव	CF AN COL					
- 14	2007.2	250		R	7	PRATOSH ROV		2	SOUT TRIPLES	10 16 2 GC M	ACHARI ACHARI		-	PRIVIOSE ROV	SO NTE SALLS ON ROA	SOUT TRIPLING PH-SECHIONET PRATOSHROV, VILLE, OKHUP SRADIST-S TRIPLING		+	7.12		- +		2	1	τı	ø		2				<i>↓</i> →
- 17	2999.2	36	8.1 44.2			HER ROSSIN	-	*	SOUT TRIPLES	12 162 124	868-185			HER RUSSER	HEAT OF THE SAME	HER KOUGH / ELECTRIC RECKER / D-DHDR DET-		िक	6.764		- +	-	-	* †				-				. }
	2001.0	20	8.144.1			24-001 61.04		8	SOUT TRIPLES	10 150 BCH	BRICHOR BOERNO		-	2 56 HOLL 61 6H	SUNDER ELI	SOUT TRIPLIES PIN-TSPILIS SOUT DUL KLOH MILLENSPIKERICHOR P. ONDHURLDIST-		6	6712				-	+ +	71	900	20097					<u> </u>
1.00	367				- T	RUTCH MEDICH			SOUT TRIFUES	10 10 2 12 M	ARE HER		-	KHIR HOSSIGN		SOUT TRIPLES PIN-TSP162			674			-	-	1 1				<u> </u>				لي لل
			27141			STON SPE	<u> </u>		IS OUT TRIPLERS		RECIOR DECIMA		-	PS TON SPIL	1017-003-001	SCUT TREURS PINTED IN A MET IN		11				-	-	1								1
			F	ſ			I				RICHOR					TRIPLINE					i jõ		1	1	1	-			1			

S. No. Start		End Milege	Side N	c lèsspondent neme	1 years	Nee	Listad	bleck:	I wan. Wiley	a A 2 17 pa - A3.4	A32 Non	Googlars mana	Son Wene of	A33 Address	Inputed	Age	American	Kenerica	láce-	Nat H	er lypeleg:	Ne e P	αн		Génera	824	822	823	Pastore	Negetra
cher		chenege IV			u seu	962.5				c- Oxmer- property ship	b the Incider				Ines							rec nu		komos kiek	Spectry	QARM-	Pertners	Engloyee	mipsola perceived	inipacts parciaved
	- 20	Salater	┢┼	CHOTOSLOUT	<u> </u>	<u>.</u>	1000111010000	10 10 10 10 h	DO READ	property ship	noow -			HERE HE MILLERSPRESSIONS PORTADISTICS		-					_					shç			parcalver	parca los
			r			· ·			REHOR			[1		-	1										
142	724.9	2605 441	P	P RUSTOHOPHED	1 1	יו	SOUT TRIPLES	NO 1650 BAN	BO SAME BRICHOR BOHEDRI	1 1	1 '	SEMOLI SLEM	SUDER BLI	SALEN BLEMVELGE EFNERENE R.P.O. BHER DET 400 TREDES METTER (SPECIETS) #2 ERTER INSSE MAIL -ENSPIE EREDER PONDHER DET-	1	. "	6 (20)	1	•	11	1	1	τu	1					1 1	1 1
14	26.0	3675 443		IS ORTOR HUSSON		× -	SOUT TRIFLERS	62 162 ESA		1	1	CH TOR HUSSION	FRANK FRE	SKTOR HUSSE IN MILL-BASSING BRIDGER & DOULHARD DET-		15	- 15	-	•	1	1	1 1	-		Seller Rece					1
	Xer	333 40		A HEAD AD C	1 2	× ,	SOUT TRIBLES	65 165 12k	888		1 1	HEHER HERE	LOTT-SURGER OU	SOUT TRIVERS PIN-TSPI (SPI-OISETSE) HEATH HE, VILL-BUSH HEATSCHER, DOUBLER, DIST-SOUT		13	834		•	1	1	1 1	4.		9-00-01-55				<u> </u>	1 8
15	2617.5	262.144	R	ENOT WOLCELS			SOUT TRIPLES	No MSD Bolk	BENCHOR BOISHING			STODE OF HER		TREASE FIRST OF THE SECOND FOR THE PLANT DET-	-	15	145						4.		ON REAL			<u> </u>	<u> </u>	
	2011	85140		MYCONICS HIS			SOUT TRIPLES	12 13 2 12 h	ARE HER		-	NOUNCE HIS	HEHEMITHE	SOUTTREAS PINTSONS VOUNDE HIGHLESS HASERENS PLANDERIDE TE D	_						-		-		OTP CONTOR				└──	
			×			1 '	KONT TRIMER	NO POD MON	REMAR	1	1	1		тария рікторація на саласка на караліна каралена тария ріктора (ріктора) Нанак на за окульта банкая стокар столана каракт	1	1.13	1 210	1		1 1	'	1 1			U IF LEW IER					
1.07	2005	3620, ⁷ 44.1	8	CHEHLIN HUSSON		· ۲			BREHER BREHER	1	4	HEHLIN PLESSON		HEHER MUSSION // LUBS KAN GER KING R/ LO-LINE RIDIST- SOUT TRIVERS MIN-TSOUGH VIEW ALSO HER >		15	6 6.I*		•		1	4	τı	3					1	4 1
14	7663	3527 HJ		2 107 0481 041		× ,	SOUT TRIPLES	65 165 12k	20121-00		1 1	SCHELPISSIN	COLOR P FLOS SAIN	SOUT TREPLES PIN-TSET IS PROBLEM IS NO. SOUTH FLISS ON VIEL BE SET NORMALING RECORDER TO STATE		15	6.IP	•	•	1	1	1 1	71							-
149	394	165.141		2 2 2 2 2 2 2 0-14 2 2 0 CTV	+ · ·	- I	SOUT TRIPLES	66 16 S 12 A	BRICHSR BRIEFING	<u> </u>	1 1	2 424 54	LOTT-40 LOG4	SOLTTREADS (IN TS) 28 2 BENS CIRKES BORTY ALL BOST BENCH & D 2 DESCRIPTION (IN TS) 20 2 DESCR	· ·	22	<u> </u>					+	6.75						SISTING TRANSPORT	
1.95	2000	168.040		22.1 NOT 646 L 66LE	-		SOUT TRIPLES	No MSO BANK	ARKING R			CHERRE BORTY REPUIL BOLD	CHARREN BORTY	ANALEDISTECTIFICS, PHONE SIGNAL INFINIES COMPANIES IN LANGE AND COMPANIES	-					+	_	+ +							11224150-001	
		1781144	r	3 CHENC MOUCH			SOUT TELEVES	No. 100. Date	ARK HOR		1	CHERRE BORTY	CHARGE BORTY LETT-CHERLINE	AHARDS TO TREES. FLI HE, ALLE CHALLES DET SCOT TREUS PINTSHIEF		··	L		200 (H-10)										<u> </u>	
ы			*			'l '				1			LOIN-LPOKU HID	Sen 200 201 Sen 200 201 Sen 200 201 Sen 200 201	"1		. 1120		9		1	1 1								1 7
12	10794	THERE	R	> 20708-0002		' '	SOUT TRIFLERS	12 132 12h	A FLORI	'	, ,	201010-04-064-				"													(°	1 1
152	•245	•221 441	8	2 DURISVEHOWINK		2	SOUT TRIPLES	NS 152 524	as Hab RI	1	2	OURISVEHOWNER	LOTE-PROFULLO BPOWER	тар наружение соно выяли у высокности и соносного дор с тарыя с ру-		15	÷ •.7	-	9	1	1	1 1	62	'						4
19	•543	•251 HI		THOT WE LOLD	+ -	, א	SOUT TRIFLERA	62 162 ERA	IS HILD RI	<u> </u>	+	BRIDE CO-		SHEEL DEEL VILLE DEALHINGTOP STRIPLES	-	15	÷ ••			4	1	1 1	62						<u> </u>	+
	• > >	•284 AHJ		al up you To DUTTO	-	. .	KONT TRIBLES	NY, NY, DAY	ACHAORI		<u> </u>	OFFRETIVE SOUTY	HENDERS BUTTS	DENTER DUTTE MIL HEREPEREP DAEHURUPP ORDISE (7	-	- 10	27.07				-	+ +	240		SOCACIE			<u> </u>	<u>+</u>	
			1				F	[1		-	1	-				99CVCUF Pérty				<u> </u>	1]
126	• 27.T	-222 443	۴T	SHOT WELKER		1 '	SOUT TRIBLES	12 13 2 12 h	AS FLAD RI	1 1	1	HEN TO HEADING R					1 58	1		1	•	1 1	655	2						
19	•32	•2801040		BROT CASE CALL		1	SCUT TRIFLERS	62 652 EA	SHOR!	1	1	RS TRA SP E				13	1 7.7	1		1	•	1	636	6						
131	• 26.4	•2364 441		JI SUDAN CH SANA		× -	SOUT TRIPLES	10 HSO 664	ACHINERI		1 1	5006 N CP-56 H6	LOTE-CHICH TO KR SCHO	аласы сызыке мш. 48 алысыкасар гр. сының дікт-	1	1 14	TRAL 0	1	•	1	•	1 1	646	•						
199	• 364	•2834 441		LI PORTI-O DOMERIET	1 3	* *	SOUT TRIFLERS	10 100 ISA	ACHIER I	+ +	*	PORTHODOMERUE	10 100 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	SOUTTREAR PINTSHIER OF SEAL TO P	-	+ •				 		+ +		,					<u> </u>	1 I
	- 264	-202144	↓ ↓	A RECEIPTION HENDEL	<u> </u>	<u>.</u> ا	SOUT TRIBLES	12 152 124	A HORI	<u> </u>	.			рек тиски сектор, чели денование новек дел 400 т. ТПРИЛЕДИТОТ (1994-04021) - боло на 1990 г. ТПРИЛЕДИТ РЕ СПЕСЕ НЕНСЕ , ЧЕЛИ ДИТИ ДИТИ С ТПРИЛЕДИТ	-	-	151		-	⊢ Ĵ	-	1 1						 	'	J]
			r I		<u> </u>	' '	F	1	L.=		1 '	a share remain		танные неказа, част счаналадат с танаса, че- тан серениета за та Берца Бермана со серениета с така с		1				1	1	1 1	<u>``</u>		CHIRTHT CHIRTHT				<u> </u>	1 1
161	• 29.94	• 2+24 44.5	r T	LI DILIP DAG		1 7	SOUT TRIPLES	10 KS 60 M	at Hab RI	1	1	Dé Dia Dés	LOTE-SREEP DOS	INFORMATION AND A REAL REPORT OF A REAL PLANE AND A REAL AND A		1 3	174	1		1 1	1	4 1	-1	- 20	BOCK STOLL				1	
12	•78	• 282.411		E 52974 050	1	× ,	SOUT TRIFLERS	12 13 2 12 h	SHORI	1 1	1	20 PRH 0510	1015-1881-1046 N 167 B	TRIFLING SEPTIM DER VILLER CHARGENER LIDER STRIP ER OP IM PROMIER IM MAN THE MELLER CHARGENER LIDER STRIP ER OP IM PROMIER IM MAN THE MELLER CHARGENER LIDER STRIP ER OP IM PROMIER IM MAN THE MELLER CHARGENER LIDER STRIP ER OP IM PROMIER IM	-	15	624	'	'			1 1	61	"						
14	• 205	• 281.1 44.1		A POTO N SUTRO DHOR		× -	SOUT TRIPLES	NO INSU BACH	ACHAORI	1	2	RO TON SUTROOMOR	PROVIDE SAN SAN TRADILLOR	PATHON SHITTLE DAVE MILLER ON A READER POLICIES	r-	15	5 54				-	+ +	61	6						
10	. 21		⊾⊢	THE REAL COMPANY	-	<u></u>	SOUT THERE	N. H.Y. DA	2.00.0	<u> </u>	<u></u>	AND CLOWNSON		SCUTTREUFS (F-SIG) 5315 INDES CHOWER REVUEL & EPHONERICIS R. P.C	-						_	 	61	2					<u> </u>	<u> </u>
		1.341	1	IS SLOWER SERVE			SOUT TRIPLES	12 132 EA	ACHINE!				CHOWTH-ORY FORT SHOE OF SORTOR	ALLARIOS TACAT TRPING Size KR. 20 Brog VIL - BUDION NODOR P. C ALLARI DET-		- "	1			<u> </u>		1 1		-					<u> </u>	1
166	-1"		P		· ·	1'	1	1		1 1	1		FORT BACK OR SERIES R	SUIDE KR. SORKOR, VILL-RUIDHOE HOGOR (PLD-ADHADRI), DST- SOUT TREARD (PH-TARI), AND GOISTON		1		1	'	1 1	'	1 1	1.15						1 '	1 1
166	•10	140.641	8	N 144534 5646		2	SOUT TRIPLES	10 KS 20 H	at Hab RI	1	1 1	141534 SA14		ассит тарыяс рін-тарізсря-серакогон цена ала селе міще до алы ва раста тариясерін- тарія на селекані		1	979	-	'		1	1 1	1.15		SORET HE					4 1
12	• 31 • 3	161 60		RUTTER SHIL	-	*	SOUT TRIPLES	262 B2 B2 H	SHOR		*	LITTER STALL	LOTT FROM LAL SPIL	T29126, PH-66223-SHIJ LITCH SHE, VELIX: CP-86576H6, DIST& OUT TRIPLES, PH-		_	235				-	+ +	1.15	0						1 1
14	• 116.4	-14261-		*1 20 YEAR TO 2000	+	, k	SOUT TRIPLES	10 10 10 10 h	IS HADRI		*	IN YOUR TO SERVE	STPEL CH. SEPE	Тариза 18 менто занаущи подинан на дая р. Слиница (1957-200 Подани и подина на дая р. Слиница (1957-200		+ ,	240				-	+ +	1.15		CONFIGER				├ ──	1 9
	•121.•	-1112 441		10 UH ESH 56 H6			SOUT TRIPLES	NO HER BOM	A HARI			141530 S616	LOTE-HONO PO NUCH DOG	TRADE ANT TO THE ASSAULT AND A SECTION LATEN SALE MULTICATION DET STRAD ANT TO TAIL AND SELECT SUBAR CONTRACT BY THE CONSIDER DIST STRAD AND AND SUBAR CONTRACT BY THE CONSIDER DIST STRAD AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND AND A								1 1			SPECT HL				L	
			ľ ['			1'	1			1 1	1			Tan 2019 And a set of the set of		1				1		1 1			SAKE? HE				· · · ·	1 1
18	•121.•	123411	P	U SLENCHREDORTY	1 .	' '	SOUT TRIPLES	62 632 E24	L.=	'	1	SUS IN CHARGE OF TV	LATE-PORCH CHICKNERGEORTY		•		۰. e	1	•	1	1	' '	•18	٤					(°	1 1
i Ti	• 121.•	دام وخذه	8	= RANAMA CINSHILL		2	SOUT TRIPLES	NO 1950 BOW	at Hab RI		2	REMARK CRIMIL	CHICKEREADERTY SETTER CHICKELL			15	6 •.T	-	•	1	2	1 1	6.75		5610W				(/	1 8
170	• <u>191</u> .•	12911	R	SHOT WELSELF	-	, ,	SCUT TRIFURS	62 162 E24	A HAURI A HAURI		*	NRO 565 RES-16556		NRO DEG MULHUR FERENE TA CUT TRIPLES, PR 79916		18	<u> </u>	1		1	*	1 1	1.15 • JS		CHORY					+
в 1			R			· ۲					2	1	646 R 666	NO DECLEVANTLY LENDER HOLES / LAURING LENDER AUTTENDES / HATSONE MRD DES / ML-BURS FREGUE TACILY TRE DER DE MOUT RELEMENTS (ML-BURSE FREGUE TACILY TRE DER DE MOUT TREDER SIN-TSUIZ MRTS DE MONT, ML-BURSE MEMOLINER / CALEGORY, DATA		10	а	1		1	2	1 1	-18	я						4 9
1.0	•1313	-18-44		THIS IS WANTE	1	× -	SOUT TRIPLES	12 H2 12 h	2 HORI		1	NTO DEVISION	LOTT-HEARTER CRUZ VIE TO	NTH DE WATT, HIL -BUSP HEARD OF R. P. CALLAUR, DIST.		- 1	6 657	-	•	1	1	1 1	-35	- 20	COLO SHITP				<u> </u>	4
15	• 116.*	1112 111	R	N Shatshika bis		2 1	SOUT TRIPLES	NO HERE BACH	#H40RI	1 1	2	SUUTSURIA DAS	REMOTISTISTICS DOS	SOUT TREATS PROTOTION OF A STATE		16	6 (2)	-	•	1	2	1 1	•J\$	20	CVAF					1 1
	• 111.2	1840		AN SAR OF CHILL	+	 ,	SCOT TRIBLES	60.690.626	ALLON DI		*	SA THE CHI SHILL	LOTT-DO YHICHON SHU	TRIPLIES PIN-TON CAPPAGE STSCHES SEPTEM CHSTHEL, MELER, COLOPOSIDENT, DIST-SOUT			4 <u>6</u>						• 75		REPEOPERAL				└──	<u></u>
			[SHOT MOLENE			SOUT TEIPLES	Ref. HSTO. Back	IN HILLER		-			BLU CHONTHORY, MLLP, OF SLOTONS, PH 799 (5) IS TA CUT							-			-					<u> </u>	
111	• LI L	-1-17 141	×		1 1	1'			F	1	' '			ALL CHOWENCRY, VILLIP, OF BLOTENS, PR 339 DB/DIS T& CUT TRIPURS	ſ	1	נוג א	1	•	1	1	1 1	•.*5	~	SHOP GAREN ON RENT					
19	-JE	-11-11-1	8	2 KOT CARLERE		· ۲	SOUT TRIFURS	12 H2 12 h	RICE	'	1			TREPARS NO MER BARRINGH MILLIPLO-ADHOLIRI, DIS T-STREP LIRG, PM- TS21,26		16	4		•	1	1	1 1	75							
10	•17	110 211		SI BIHEL CHE HE BORTY		* '	SOUT TRIVES	262 B2 B2 H	SHOR		*	SHELCHORS BORTY	LOTE-446 (1854)	T20126 BIH OL CHO HSO BORTY MILL-PURSO P OLOTOMO, P.D-		1 2		-	•	1	1	1 1	•.75	\$					· · · · ·	1 8
185	• 114.9	-1-12		SI NITH DAS		× ,	SOUT TRIPLES	10 150 BCH	at Hab RI		2	N TH DEG	CHORE READERTY LOTE-CHORE MD & D & S	A HARRINGT SCUT TRIPLICAD IN TORICOPHIC SECOND IN THIRD SAVEL P. COLLING RELIGIST - S. TRIPLICA, PM - 759126, PM -						1	3	1 1	•.TS		TRATICOLE				<u> </u>	1
	• • • • •	-1=1+1	┢┼	SCHATER, LCOP	-	. .	SOUT TRIBLES	10 10 0 10 h	A HADRI	+	-	SULTISE LOOP	1011-01000 0208110002	2665167632 SUUTIRE LOOP / EUP. ONE-EPORE /UST-SOUT TRIPURE / IN-		2	14		-	⊢ ∦		<u>↓</u> ↓	550		100000	<u> </u>			<u> </u>	ا ا ا
			r	5 00FEL SERE		' '	SOUT TRIPLES	12 132 124	IN HIGH		1	10000 S040	LOTE-BOU HOUGH SOUG	тар тектори укалистика и коло коло и тектори уче Тарта, реактория Дарек коно ила не во во коло коло коло кака и тектория та со т		"		1		1	1	1 1		- 1	SHOP MACK				·'	11
			r I		L	1'	1	1	F	1	1	1		INCOME STOLEN AND A REAL PLANE AND A REA			1	1		L 1	1	1 1	555		SHOP MATE ON REAT				L'	1'
141	-1-	1-1-1	R	SE PINTO DO ROMO N		· ۲	SOUT TRIPLES	10 KS 10 M	at Hab RI	1	1 1	PINTU BORDHON	LOTE-CHIL BORDHON	TREPURS PHILTER 2014 PHILTER RELIEVE LIFE CHILLER DIST-S. TREPURS PHIL TOD INFORMATION 2004		••	6 9.*		•	1	2	1 1	565	2					· · ·	
18	- 1-7	103 (4)	<u>e</u>	ST NOT SHE LOLLE ST TOPO N NO. DEV	-	× '	SCUT TRIFLERS	262 B2 B2 H	2 HORI		1 .	6RCP-68605V	All second an address of the	тал женелал (2206) Сканене бау ише алының дет- аткрыкер неген же алып неуттару ишераланық дет-аткрыкер неген же			747		•	1	2	1 1	565							
116	•••		۴T			"	SOUT TRIPLES	2632 BA		1 1	1 7		LOTS-GO SHI BHOSHON DEV	CANNO HEAVEN DEV MILLERIO-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB-SUB	1 3	~1 _	I –			ΙΓ		I T		Т			I –	I –	1 7	1 7
186	•78	• 78- / PL T	8	1 0000 00 10000			SOUT TRIPLES	12 HS 164	PURS		1 1	GEORE HOLE DEVINE TH	COCOCHDING DEVICOTION	TSPIJINE OF LEHALT SCHOOL DEURSHOE DEVNE THVELP LERDE PELETENE P.O.		5 6	i iilis	1	•	20040	3	1 1	63						1	1
	5977	55 57 FLT	k	J HIRS N HAVE SAVE		- I	SOUT TRIFLERS	12 18 2 18 h	POLO TONO PURSO	1	1 .	HROMARVSHI	LOTT THE REAL PROPERTY OF L	2 HARRING PUR STRP IRS, PR 700 HSP HOR 70 H HRS NEV SHEVELF OF GUSTAN, LOOP LES TRPUES PH		28	1			r +		+	-						<u> </u>	4 8
100	10-20	10-2018	↓ +	APROHOD LOL DOG	-		SOUTH TREUBS	No MSD Bath	POLO TOMO			PROHOD LOLDOS	LOTE-PHURCH CHONORD	T20116 SOTO VE ROVEN DEB, VELO, CACHO CHO RO JUDNPUR,	-		- T			⊢ .⊢	_		69			,			<u> </u>	<u></u>
	16-27	16-2-949		100000-0-340		' '	SOUTH TRIPLICS		CHOCKERS	1	Ţ	PRODE CH SH		STOR ROAD STOLES CHILD CHILD COLD CONTRACTOR		"	ì			L I		1 1	-1						<u> </u>	J'
169	10+2		1 1		1 7	1 7	1	1		1	1 7	1		2010 vr rovan dita Jong Songan as dita. Velar. Ordea Deara, Lada er, stra era ara era era era era era 2011 orde una ditavela era ordea era era			1 3	1		1 1	1	1 1		8				· ·	L7	1 1
125	16-2	16-25 685		· SOTTO POINTON DED	1	· ۱	SCUTH TREURS	12 13 12 h	CHECKERS	1	1 3	SO TTOPS NUCH DED	LOTE-COMO SI- DED	SETTERENTER DERVELEN. DA DA CHEREN, S.S. Herre Rein, J. De Fur, S.T. Rin Like, Pin Food S.F. Hones (T. 2006)		2					'	1 1	59		991 STO TIONS RY				· ·	1 4
			\downarrow	SILTINUSER	-				-				WHIT DESCRIPTION	WITCHDER VILLE DADAG CHARGES		1				F.	_				SHOPI STOTIONS RY				<u> </u>	
	idel I S	esti Likebi	1 1		L '	1 '	SOUTH TRIPLICS		CHOCHERS	1	1 '	F		иттениета, на средна среде среде 2000 година. Накта ван дов рид 11 гр се дря 700 година (р. 1996). На так се кесу милеониета ван минаса (р. 1997).		1 18	1 '	1		L '	'	1 1	57	~°	STO TIONS RY	L'			L '	1 1
128	C IC-S	16-45 68.5		CHETCH DEVELO	1	<u>، ا</u>	SCOTH TREGRO	12 13 2 12 h	65 155 ESA	1	1, 1,	NE TRI DE VROV	LOTE-SPIGAL DEVICE			8	5 I.2.4	1		1	2	1 1	66	'				· ·		1
12	6-16-1	10-16-02-0	1	ALL HE HALL DE VERY		4	SOUTH TREURS	10 HS2 BCH	10 KW 864	4	4	NE HAI DEVELOY	LOTE-SPIEML DEVELOP	LETT-SHISHL DEVEOV		1 2	120			8	4	4 1	66					- I	\square	4
12	16-16-1 16-16-5	10-04-04-0	t T	6.2 SPIHE DEVROY THEAK SELE			SOUTH TREURS	10 150 ECH 10 150 ECH	NO 1655 BAN	1	# 3	SPIND DEVROY	LOTT-SPILS ML DE VROV LOTT-REDUCE MONSCHOOL	late-selected de verseon Select de Versonnel de ches reges ap in 365413 Herrik Selec, vel - ferreach de control de cantache mitre-		2	6 (2) 13			1	3	# #	645		STO TICKS RY				-	<u></u>
	- 1			1	1	I .			1	1 1	1			98561-677J	1	1 "	1			1	1	1 1		-1		1			1	1 7
155	d=96	10-93 (MB)	i +	6 PROSE NUT DEV	1	* *	SOUTH TREURS	10 KS 20 H	10 HS 20 H	1	1 2	PROSE NUTL DEV	NO POL DEV	PROSE NUT DEV MULTPLO-NOR REDOK PH-SESSE-97641		10	5 1.02	*		1	2	1 1	645		STO TIONS RY			· ·		1 1
		1 [–]				1		1	1						1	1	1					1 1		-				· ·	1	1 1
197	1672	1672.7888	<u> </u>	S S S WEAT DES	-	* *	SCUTP TREARS	62 162 EEA	DE SENTES	1 1	1 1	assesson tass	NITEL DEG	SINTER MILLER BE SH DIGS HTTE HEART P.C.	1	13	16.91	1		2000	1	1 1	•	6		-				4
									HOODER:					NEW REACH, JUBS PUR, STRP LIKS, PH-799 (65,PH-965)961.305						а									L	
131	679.7	16731.1 688		et Résult Dés		× •	SOUTH TRIPLES	10 KS2 60 H	BIG SEEN TOO		1 1	Réalin Dés	N TH DOG	PS & DOS, VILL-RORDER, BOSCH TOO HOUS R, P.D HOR RE BOH () DE FUR, S.T. RE LIRS, PM FOORS F 1-06-30-51 / 20		6	11.01		•	2124A	2	1 1	•	6	RESTORENT				· · · ·	· · ·
									n clase:																					
129	15-16	164-1.7 68.9		11 SIPED SEEM SHE		' '	SOUTH TRIBURG	62 183 124	62 632 E24	1	1	1996 1998 1998 1998 1999 1999 1999 1999	LOTT-SUPERING CHISSING	ар си анси и и асно, е с. р. Сно на село и ба. 5. тар ца с. ри-тор с. р. н. 262 со			1 353	1		17	1	1 7	636		sans its sents Ri				1	1
38	1198	11929-2 48-10	1 1	P JOYOFE ROLT DOG		× ,	SOUTH TREURS	12 H2 B2 H	NS 1535-526		•	ACY DETE ROBI DOG		2. THE LESS PHILE OF SOLUTION OF SOLUTION OF SOLUTION OF THE S		16	امكر ا	·	•	1	2	1	τ9	20	R SHOF SHOP				/	4
24	1992	112021060	t +	CHARGE STATISTICS		k ,	STOLED THE SUBS	20 KK 1926	60 KS2 KS4		1	535565 535 655	CONTRACTOR NO. 100	TREPUIS PIE-TONICS TREPS OF REAL DE SALLER, ON SHOR READINE-TONICS	-	1 8	a 140					*	70	9	40465660					1 s

2.0	chanege	chanage		208 PC	казропових на на	nam Lifence	apa.A	COMPO.	aco	reast integr	c- Qaner- property ship	bille hidder	Coopersnene		A3.3 A00160	i neu s	~~~	х 1000 0 ИМИ			1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1.3Ecre33	rec e D	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	соных пази Зрасту	Gamer- She	Pertnera	tara Englicijaa	nipacta parcavad	negeore Inipeste perceived
	8 J.F	0 au	10 501		HE POLISS WERE DOG		<u> </u>	SCOTH TREFORM	63 1635 120 M	Sector Sector	tucbaud auto	1 1	NE FOLES WERE DOS	1017-00459-0-065	NE FOLES WER DES MILLINGSFOR DEN ANDR FON CHOVET	15	s 74	- 100			-	*	+ +	- 64	12	aut			parca vaid	parcialitad (
\vdash	u	au	essat l	<u> </u>	A 10Y DEBSHOH		<u> </u>	SOUTH TRIPLES	10 15 2 Edit	HSPORTONIAL		- I	OV DEVSION	LOTE-HEAR OF BUCK SHOP	OFFICEP HANDER THE P LONGEN SHOHN ELNISH CROCK LINES R PENCHEN ST					\vdash			+			+				
\vdash	е пе	പാം	S. SAT		STRUCT FOR THE LEVEL	, I	<u> </u>	SCOTH TREURS	565 BA			, 1	MINEL ROWTI DUTTO	LOTT-SO TRA CILIDUTTO	CEFEC E/P 1-061253-051 BHRLING WIT DUTTE (HILF C-HELFOR DE NU/P21567* 12)	21				\vdash			+			+				
	a	a	- 10 SAT 1		SHORE YOU HOU OTTOM		<u> </u>	SCOTH TRIBURG	65 655 E2 M	Service and		, 1	NOTICE HOLE OF THE	LOTT-SUB-ORCHOOK	NO REVEN HONOTTONY BLD. ON SHORE A PROFESSION	<u> </u>	4 1	5.675				*	+ +	-	20 TU TICH R	84				s
	1. J 20	- S - 1356	64 <u>60</u> 7 L	. -	6 Ró Hélaik da Tó Gé via d'Té			SOUTH TRIPLES	15 KS2 66 M	HSPORTONIA	*	1 2	Ró Hóhi kén Tó Dé VisóTi	ноноттен Lett-Reador on Devise Th	Ró hiếm thiếm thể điện mộ thể (Villie). Chết siện chỉ điểm lự Phi- Shiếc thế san đ		• 22	1.75			1	2	1 1	τi		+	-			
		5 1 136			TOLLAR CHARTER	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	SOUTH TRIPLICS		1000000000		 		SPORFER SHOLEN	SITHO-OTH-VILLE.ORE-ORIGN	ļ.,		8.					┢							
						'	1.				1 1	1.		ноноттен		"	11				1	1	11	"]					(I	
	51. B		7.7 <u>50</u> 7 8	. .	SPINTU DAG	, s	1 '	SCOT TREARS		191031-0003		*	PINTU DAG	acted des	PINTU DES, VILLE, OR SPORTSHIDE THOUT TRADES, PIN- T20164		1	73-1			7	*	4 1	79	"	-				\$
	3L 25		80- <mark>20.1</mark> P		1012102021010		· ·	SOUT TRIFLERS		10001000	1	1 3	10 15 10 0 0 10 0 10 0 10 0	1017-00000100 EP-00120	720166 16 157 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16 16		1	27.76			7	1	4	79	2012-07-0214 09-07-07	<u>ه</u>				,
	110		nssat P		J SU AT SORIO R	2	· ·			HSHORE GOLD	1	2	SIL AT SO REOR	LOTE-TORONINON TO SO RED R	re na na bare de cycle de se conservador de la contra de la TREPLA DE PLATAS Su al 166 Res VIL PLONES-ORDON (DE TA OUT TREPLES, PR Tre 16 PLATE: 1699	ł	1	6591			2		1 1	79	ON RENT SPESTERS					,
	B LI II		US 2017 R		• DESWAT DES		· ·	SOUT TRIFICS		854085 0000	1	1	SISWEDTES	SA RINA R Late and antial days	TSENEG PROBLEM NEEDS SISSES UT DES, VEL P. OR BALL CHER, SIST-SOUT TRIPLIES, PHA- TSENES		1	111			7	-	1	79	99000 SH					
	110		83 <u>50</u> 1 8		5526-175246	,	'	SOUT TRIFLERS		HARDER COMPANY		2	20 NUT 5 64-6	19 59 40 D FO 10 52 4 6	танас Занатолю испронеского рет-сонттрикерин Танас		1	130			1	-	1 1	19	,		1			s
	ibili Ur		писат в		E NOT EVE LEELE	2				NSPORT DOW		2		66 F2 D6 M D 66	T29165 SEETHS HE HE S DAS MILLIPLO-HIS HOR GLENS, DIST-SOUT TRIPLIES PHIN-T29165		1	150		-	2		· ·	τ9	SUTERTION	.c				
	1161 H		8. SAT 8		T 22212 524-5	,		SOUT TRIFLERS			'	2	26 BA 2696	SURE MD6 5 64-6	TRIPURS PIN-TSHAS BOBIL SAMAY LUP, ON SPERACNU JUST-SOUT TRIPURAPIN- TSHAS		1	111		•	2	1	, ,	6	4				1	
	•Li 21		я тдагы 8.1647 р	: :	SHOT WELGELF			SOUT TRIPLES		NSPORT GON		, r	SLIDE PS CHIDE S SATU AN HARD HARD	espotuse de s	720165 2010: Rock in Say Elip C-H 24 CR 0.040 J BST-604 T 1999/08: J H-720165 220148: J REFERENCE J HI J C-L HT ROCK J H-016 (DIRETTER J BST WE'ST THE JURG (HR-7501 D/C-HT ROCK) J H-0164 (THE)															
	16 JA	- 162	EJEAT P	• •	6 SEDIFER HERHER GREGTROMOLY PETREGIS HINDT FASILISELE	° ۱	'	SOUT TRIPLES	65 652 E24	89-08-00-	'	1	2010-04 10 13-0 10 R	lótt-indró ladaðin Þóri-indró	аларын мернекеришер-негелерискерскерске тердал We st tep lets, pin-7691 б.р.н-96666 // не		'	Jiku		•	1	1	· ·	'					1	
	1 0 116	a	8.) <u>60</u> 7	. –	NOT CASE LOLLE		<u>،</u>	SOUT TRIFLICS	262 B2 B2 B	194021-0011		، ا	SUNT 121.6 126		SUM TID SUGDES MILLIPO-HSHOR GON (DIST-SOUT	1	1 1	Jié.u			-	*	1 1	-		-				
	14 1-1				SANGE NODI		· ·		HELOGOR	HOH ON BOOK		1 .	SCHOOR NO NOT	Creh To HER CH HEN CH	TERPLES FILE-TOPICS SCHOOL READ (VELDE: OFFICE OF BOOK, DIST + FLOGOR WEST TERPLES INF. TOPICS FILE OFFICE FILE TERPLES INF. TOPICS FILE OFFICE FILE		4					+			20 PO IN F2 8 6					
		-es	a and 12	-	SHOT EVELOPIE		· ·	WESTTREURS		104-04 1000		1 .	STREET NO HOL	CP-24 TT 1-6 124 H 64 D	TRIPLES, PH-T20164 PH-01201-1201 201687 REPORT VILLE, CHIDHER BOOK-DIST-WEB T TRIPLES PH-T2016	8	4				-	-				1				
	1.2		83 4 88 1		PRIOP CH. COSE	5	-	WESTTRPURG		HOM IN BOOM		1 1	PROOP CHACKE	LAIESH OISE	SENSE ROMUNELS CHEVEN BOOM JUST WEDT TRUIS JUST SENSE FROM CHEVEN SENSE TRUIS JUST SENSE TRUIS SENSE SENSE SENSE SENSE SENSE TRUIS SENSE S	53						1				1				
	24 I. I. I.		a and 12		5 CF 10 D R 14 0 6		· ·			104-04 1000		1 .	201459-241		SCHEGEN MULTICHERGENERGENERGENERGENERGENERGENERGENERGE	1 18	4					-				-				
			20 49-6 1		C 20 HE & 12 (22 H		· ۱			104-04 10004	1	<u>، ۱</u>	AS FOR OLI	LOTE-FERMENT	TRIPLES PINTED ISPANIS CONTRACTOR SFER CLUELE CHICAR SCOP DET-SCHEHLROWERT TRIPLES PINTED IS	8	1					1								
	12 1-1		1-04-0-0		4 M24461.0 B B4	5			HELGOOR	HOM IN BOOM		' '	ROHLON OLI	LOTE++ 640H 6L1	TRIPLES PH-T20115 REFUGE CLV LLP. CHOHON BOOL, DIST-WEST TRIPLES, PH- T20115		1													
	19 I-1		2. - 2 2		S 2016 2012/0		'			10416-0004		' '	IS THORE S IN USE	LOTT-000850 SINO-0	129115 16 TIMBROS IN OPE, VILLE CHICKEN BOOK (DIST-SCHOHURS WEST TRE LEG, PIN-15916		4 1	-1-1			1	1	1 1	71						
	125 I - 1 1		1 8442 C		I ORUM DOTTO	<u> </u>	' '	WEST TREURS		e epteu 16e E epteu	2	1	SRUA DUTTO	LOTT-CHENDRO HOMON DUTTO LOTT-NORMATT POP COP	WEST TRUERO, PR-7001 6 REUR DUTTE MEURO-HENEN BOOLP IN 7001 (SPF- 2006-2011) SUJTEN GROUP ALLE, OHOMEN BOOL-INC-WORD PH-			17.71		\$	*	2	1	14	'					
	1. 1. A.S.		** ** *		2 SHATCH (8-05)-	2	'	WEST TRIPLES		e epteu 16 ter 16 ter	2			LOTE-HORODEEP OF OSP				• • • •		\$	•		1 1	•	2				9	9
	1. ISB		83 4 06 t					WESTTREURO		DA TAP	,	1 3	HIRE LEL DES		MISIGUES, CHEMISING TELL			•		•	2			•	99 DRY F84 94 OP					
	12 1 (* 129		986 14 0 B		- 00PH 045	2		WEST TRIPLICS		E EPTEU Be Ter	,	1 3	GOPEL DES	644606065	асти видии и стисник внога		36	241		•	3	· ·	' '	N	SPLOUMDY				1	°
	25 1=3 36 1=36		93 446 1 83446 1		S NOT CARLENDE S SUBFOR BONK	,			HEL606 R	6 10F		1 2	LALIT ODGAL SUBJACH BANK	ed 11 Cled 124 bids in	LEUT ADDE LA LES DE EMERSIAN TELL SUBJECT DEMERSION DE CARGANY CARACTELI		15	5.75		•	*	· ·	. 1		SPECTOR DOCTOR SPECTOR					
			534-6 L 774-6 I		TOPULAL DEVICETY	,	1 '			С БРТОЦ 107 С БРТОЦ	1			I OCUME DE LEGER	SUBPOS BOND, VELIP CHACHRONDOTOLI		8	63			1	1			39 ST6 TICH6	~				
	11 1=28 12 1=28		7.7 14-6 L 8.7 14-6 L		TOPULOL DEVICET	,	<u> </u>	MEST TREURA		6 6776-U 66 768 HOM-68 1600			DIPULOL DEVICOTO	LOCH OF DEVICITI	DIPULAL DEVICETH, ALUPIONS HER MOSTOU DEPUT ALUAL HAR BANGATALLE OF ETTAL		1 "	5.84			1	1	11	**	1		1			9
	ш (•26 ш (•26		8.7406 L			L;		WEST TREURS		CEPTOD C	1	1 - 1	AND FOR OLD		26 FOR BULL HELHER BUDGETELLED-25 EPTE U LENDER STITUTE & STREAM MILL STREAM PROJECTION		1.6				1	1	1 1	22					'	
	и тезні 1941 тез		- [[5180140500448 548868 6764640057	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		HELCOLOR		1	1 (HEDRUSLOHM Sérinér Rénésiony		HEGHLEDER OF SOM OF MILL-SUNDLE, P.DST PTOLT REMAIN DEV, MILLP, DHOR ON BADDIST-SOM CHURS WIST	<u> </u>	11				1_	-]]		HERE		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	!	
	19 193 28 1931		43 446 1 82 446 1		6 60 67 6 0 674 6 74 1 60 67 6 0 674 6 74	L ,	<u> </u>	MEST TRPURA				1 '	ED EN DEN DE VIERTP	LOTE-HON HONON DE'V REVINDE ON DE VROTE	рение, Брунк, истороние высодоват-заниные масат тарыхе ринтан (др. 46-аз) со Соснает на метатку истороногон вногодоват-заниные	"	1 1	•215		\vdash	1	1	1 1		1		<u> </u>	, i	!	*
	126 1968) 136 1968)			<u> </u>	Part Primary		<u> </u>	WESTTERVER]	1		LATE-PORTAGE SATE	LOCATE A TRANSFORMENT AND THE CONTRACT AND A CONTRACT A	- "] _					-	╷╷╷				<u> </u>		ن	
			··r- r		ACRES R NOT EVELOUE ENDED CHE HE BORTY	;						· ·	GHOREN EN SCHORTS		MP 60 CHER RELEASING MILLIPLE HOUSE IN MP COL TRIPLES	<u> </u>	1 7	210		1	_1_	1	11				1		I	
	17 1665 18 1665	13 IST				i -	+ ;	WEST TREURS		104-08 1000-		i -	AREA CHE HER BORTY			1 4	4 7	1363			-	3	1 1	- 1	,	+				
	129 16664 1995 1996	15 1667) 15 1856	NUMBER D		S NOT 646 LOLE	- i		WEST TREPARE	HELCOLOR	HOH SHI BOOM		<u> </u>	NO FO YON SOLO ONE CH. OPCSP	NHR IN S CHORD IN CHOSE	SERVE CHORES BORTY MULTIPLO HONG IN SHORE TRIPLICE SHE CH. GHOSH VELLIPLO HONG INSHORE PHOSESSIESS		i a	2717			-	4	4 4	- 1		-				
		15 1+56	a a a a a		1 OR JUN 0240524							1 1	10040 MIL 100	SHE CH OPOSH	SON CHORE MI CRIEDIN CHORE VIEL IN CHICKNEH COLDH AN SAISTEST		4		12555 (4755) 150	\vdash	_		+	_					ļ	
		15 1+58	a an ta	.	STATES & GLOSE		<u> </u>	MEST	HELEGIHER			, 1	20 M 60 R 60 - 054-	NAL CH GROSP	SANAA SINAA SILAA SI		4		12552 657 5517 0	\vdash	_		+			+				
	-	15 1+56	a and La		SRUM GHOSH		<u> </u>	MEST	HE1.600-68	HOHerenoor	<u> </u>	1 1	SRUM GHOSH	SHE CH GHOSH	ALM CHEND MILLING CHICK AND LOCAD MICHAELAND I		4		TREES OFFICTED		-	-	+	-					!	
	- 1-51:	sisa	1 244US	. .	20-662 h (0-062-		- I	WEST	HEL COLLER	HOMENON		1 ,	9-666 h (9-06)-				4		IREES OFFICIED		-			-		-				
	- 1-24		66 84 8 8		1 PR 60 P CP. 0P CS4	-				HOP ONE HOLE		1 1		LOTE LATE SHI CH. CHOSH	Bridden (Bridden (BLIN), DHOURAND (BRING BRING BRING BRING Scheholes (Bridden (BLIN), DHOURAND BRING BRING FROM (BLIN), BRIDGEN (BLIN), DHOURAND BRING Scheholes (BLIN), BRIDGEN (BLIN), DHOURAND BRI Scheholes (BLIN), BRIDGEN BRING Scheholes (BLIN), BRIDGEN BRINGS Scheholes (BLIN), BRIDGEN Scheholes (BLIN), BRI	6	4		TREES OFFICTED		+	+	+			+				-
	-		85486 8		- HERR GLOGA		· ·					- ·		LOTE FOR CHORENES	антититите ин портано Наказана ди оби ишко, се се состава сод со и ди оби и или и со се состава сод	1 2	+ +		12555 647 5515 0			+	+ +			+				
		-	7 7 - 8 - 8		SHERING STREET	· ·	· ·					<u>''''</u>	NEM GLEP EL SINGLE E	LOTE HORENDRY CH.	HE MODP & LEMANS VILL PLOHONSMENCE	1 1	1					1				-				
	H		17 44-6 6		i chilopirhosina+c		· ·			HOMMEROOM		· •	PRIVOLOL SIMONO	allean a Late harendea an. Silean a	SCH CHORE MITTERURE PHOISEN JAK PRIVATEL SINGHAN VILLIP IOHICH CHORE OG SCH CHORE MITTERURE PHOISEITZHIS	11	1		TREES OFFICTED											
			77 7 - 8 - 8		STREETENLEL SINGLE		'			101-001-001-		· ·	HERICALCI SINGLE	LOTE HORENDRE CH. SINCH-6 LOTE VEDER CH.SHORE	SCH GHORS MITTEPURS PHORSE TO BO TERTION TOL SHOULD MITTE CHECK COME SCH GHORS MITTEPURS PHORSE TO BO PRIVELS SHOPPURS AN INFORMATION SCH GHORS MI	1 1	1													
	2	- I	1 4 40 5 5		C PRINCIPLI SPORTE	'	' '			HOM SHE HOLD	1	, I		LOTO 10000 CP SHO 13-8	PRIVATE LA CREATING AND A CHROMOLITELLI SCH CHORD MI TRIPLINE PHILAISE 24/62														\$	
	54 I.T.		85448 8	· ·			' '			HOP SHE FORP	1	1 1	RO FLIGHT OLI	LOTT HOMH OLI	TRIPLES PLAISE 2-62 Reflek blivel f.o-Horskip-ogsonshoremj triples		1												\$	
	- ····		23466 0			'	'			HOP ONE HOLE			रत्नस्तक त्या	SHER U	VER LE ALT VELL 19. CHICH CHENGLICULS CHECH CRAINIJ TRIPLIRA PA 2056 I Trille Phil Torice June Balli Vell 19. ChiCh Chech Che Schichlore Mij Triplira	- n	1												4	
L	14 I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I		9 84424 9 84424		1 HD. NUR 614-E'D		'				'	1 1	AINE ALI	EFTER ELI HERCH SHL	ALING BALL VELLAP LOHI CHIGH COLSCIN CHICRO MIL TRIPLIRA HADING SINT VELLAP CHIGH MASTRON SCHICK CHICK CHI	61	1												5	
	9 1464 36 1469				SHEGHLISHI GROT GAZILGILI		1				'	1	HEGHLISHL HEHLIGHCSH		HEGHU SHU VUU (PLOHE HEE NOOTSU SCHOHERSKH) Trapurs pin-Tsuiss pinge sootmis Hendi diace av uu (Ploherik shdatsu) somshore hij		1	• 575			1	1	1 1	~	0				3	
					NET WELSELF	,						1	NE ALL GLOGH	ATT SHEEPER GLOSE	HEND GHOSHVEL (PC-HEHRENGETELT SCHEHOREN) TRIPURE ER JUN GHOSHVEL (PC-HEHRENGETELT SCHEHOREN)			•38			1	1	1	66	SPISTS TICKS					
	26 I P 24		50 140 B		NERSEN & GEOSE						1	1,	KRAIN GHOGH MTMI NETHATA	LOTE SURFICERS GLOSE REALE CO. DE SECTO	CRIMINIAHOSIA VILLAPIO-NOMENDATULI SOMEHORENNI TRIPURE PIN-TSAIES PIN-GENZIELISI ST NITELERINETA VILLAPIO-NEETEENSIMSTELISI CHEHORENNI INTELERINETA VILLAPIO-NEETEENSIMSTELISI CHEHORENNI		1 1				1	1	11	-12	39 5 TO TIONS	~				
	- 1°3 8		220000 B			⊢ ,	<u> </u>				1	1		CATE LA DAL DE LANG TH	IN THE DE DIRET WILL PE ONS HIS NOUTO LIS CHENCENN TRIPLES PROTEINES SUBSECTOR VILL PEOPLENE NERODISCHENEREN TRIPLES	<u> </u>	1		ļ	⊢∔	1	1	1 1		-					
	SE 193		[[NOT MO LOLE	1	<u> </u>				1	1	HORIDES DUTTE	and the set of the	Salassin Siel vell vellende kandelssewerkeren in merke Prik-Toorde Privasio in of Poist das dat Troviel vellende kan de somerkoren vij	I	11				1	-							1	
	1990 (* 594 1992 (* 594		81949 B 8499 B		SHOT WELSELF	⊢ ,	<u> </u>	WEST	HELCOMPOR HELCOMPOR		1	<u>} </u>	NO FO DOS DUTTO NO FO VON KORTONER		HE IS DES DE TTE VILL "PLO-HERE NER DELSONGHER SING TREPERE PIN-TSELSE NE REVEN REFERENTE HELE GARR (SECC)	I	+			1	1	1								
\vdash	1-2- 1-2-				CHAN GOOD SHOLE	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	WEST				1 >	NON GOOM SHOW	CONTRACT CINCLES	REMODEL SHOKE MILL IN OHOMERING	 	╞┤				-		1	• 44			_			<u> </u>
\vdash	2		2014 G		THOT EVELONE	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	MTST					FEJER ELI		SON CHORE MITTERURE PHONESCI JEEC FOUCE OLI VILLI PLOHO HED MACTO IL SON CHORIONI TE PLECO	 		30			-	1	<u> </u>	• 55	_		-	<u> </u>	1	· · · ·
\vdash	a				PERFSH SUTREDHER	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	MEST				, ,	10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 1	NES RUCH SUTTREAD FOR	PIN- 30165 PORTSH SITTEODIOR VILLIPLAN HER HOUTOU	 	1 28	9499				*	1 1			+		<u> </u>		-
\vdash	1.20	1.4 1-96	L		S BIPHO HE JUHIDER			MEST	HELGOLOR	HOMMEHOOM		1 .	LOCI HE MR		SCH CHORS MITTERURS PHILTORIES LOCAL HEART VILL (PLC-HORS MILLOR SCH CHORSEN) TERFURS		15	2021				*	1							-
\vdash			13446		2 20 m DF 54 2 m-			WEST		-		· ·	CHICAGO CALONICATA	LOTE POIL-OF OF DESIGN	HER COPERS THE CHORDS IN DE SHOTH VILL (P.O.HOHS HERCO.	8	4 14	5.45		<u>⊢</u> .⊢	-	*	┥┤	59]	
\vdash	e 154			· ->		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	WEST				، ار	acomenias ne	LOTE GARGEGORACIA SOLO	DOUTCH SONE VILLE DHID-CHIR-COL	1 3	4 1	.			-	*	ͷ╶╢	-		+			,	
\vdash	15 IG		• # # # #		8 RUPOU 2010	I		MEST		HOHMAHOM		1 1	646 R 2646	LOTE SUPESH SOLO	SCH CHORE MITTERURE PH-TOPIC PH-DISUT7111 CHERS CHOVELL & CHORERPOR SCH CHOREON TREPURS	<u> </u>	- 16				-	*	+ +	τı	_	-				
	a 163		U. 144-16 P		SHE IN SHE HINS			WEST	HELEOPER	HOP SHORE HOP			HONORING PROCES		HONE HENDER FOR S UTE HONE IN BACK BACK BE		- 20	6164			-		ォ	-	_					\$
	1671-			2	5 529 64 86 1346 A	<u> </u>		MEST	HEL 604-68	HOMMENOOP		1 .	L TO SC FICH BC FSHC H	LOTE HORI DO SIBORHEM	Scheholis an Internet Scheholis an Internet Scheholis an Internet Scheholis an Internet Re-de-12-525	1 4	4		TREES OFFICTED	\vdash		+	+			-				
												1			SCHICKERS MITTERS PERSON 2626	1	1				1	_								

Annex 6 75

s Ne.	Shart	En	ıd	Milege	Side	Nr.	Heaptin dent menne	l ype 🐨	Nee	Listact	block	I stars fillings	A2 lype	1.81	A32 Non	Coupers rene	Son-Vene on	A33 Address	Incuded	Age	Americand	Kenerica	lècer	Mail	hkar	Iverlagy	Ner	μa	82	General	827	822	82.3	Peakive	Negetove
	chaneg	ար տե	ылыды	μu –	1			u see	atory	1		1	e-	GARM-	5154				Iness	1 1	-		1			1	recine		Burness	Specty -	GARM-	Dertmana	Engleyee	m parcha	ingeste
				1				1		1		1	property	she -	hddar					1 1			1				1		defending		ship			perceived	perceived
24	172	272	116.83	- C 664	1	'	NOT CASE OFF		1	WEST	HILGOR	PURDA CHANDINAR		•	1	MANUAL CHERICHERICE		NELEP CALE DEADE HEER TEMPLE VILL IP. OCHE HEIDER WEST TREARE		5 -6	16J			•	2	1	1	1 15							
271	1	786	1798	C 00	ŀ	L	SOWROI DO S		1	MEST	HELGOOR	PURSS CHORDINGR		1	1	CHOKRE DES	LOTT 14-E SP 10-S	CHERRY DESVEL & OST CHE NOMER WEST TRIPLINE PIN-		5 15	24.2	8		5	J .	2	1	1 54							•
20		n¤	1122	- C 664	ł	•	HEVERONISCRIME		'	INTST	HELGOOR	PURSS CHEMONIAE		1	1	HER IN COLOR & SERVICE		HER BORG SERVER VILLFORMS CHORDER PC-FORMS CHORDING PH-OM21210-1		2				+			+								•
20		-	11-293	100	•	5	HE FOL SUTRADIO R		'	HTST	HELGOGER	PURSS CHORDER		1	1	NOTEL SUTREDISER	PURAS CHEMORE SUTTO DE CR	HE FOL SUTREDIES WILL FLEDE CHEMINDER FLOFURDE CHEMINER FLEDENSING TOPTO		8 15	,	2	+	•	1	1	1	1							3
20	197	Π <u>6.</u> =	19776-3	- C 643	ł		LU JÓ L KÓR HER ÓR		2	WEST	HELOGOR	PURES		2	1	LU JOL NORHENOR	LOTE DISESSMOR NO RING NOR	LU JOL MARHAMAR VILL FURDACHA NDIGAR P. DCHANDIGAR		6	12	L:		4	× .	2									1
20	194	292	1990	C 664	1		STORE VISITISTO		1	WEST	HELEOR R	PURSE		1	1	TOP ON IN INCOM						FROM GATE	-	+			-								-
25	181	1165	1112	- C 663	R		NOT 646 LOLE		1	MEST	HELGONGE	CHARDINGE		1	1	PO TONO NONE	LOTE TOPO N NOTED	RETENDENTIAL VILL (P.O.C.) & NORDER SCHOHOR & WITE PURG PR-7501 &		1	673	16		•	2	2	1								
20		115		C 64	R.	1	STOKELY IS FUSIO		1	WEST	HELCOMOR	CHENDRER	1	1		an Marine Steiner	LOTT RESIDENCE SO THAT	SCHOOL SERVICE MILLIP. COLLEGIES AND	, i	8 2	320	2	1	•	2	1	1	1 151							1
24	15	82	19552-0	- C 64	8	-	2-16-6 12-5		'	WEST	HIGHER	PURES CHORDER		1	1	TEP 24 18 5	NERSE CHENDRE DES	TREE & SVELIP OF LESS CHENDERS PIN-TOP IS		- 16	73	2		•		1	1								1
20	**	264	334	C 663	8	×	NITUR POUL		2	WEST	HELCOMOR	PURSS CHEMDINER		1	1	NTER POLL	LOTE SHOSHIRLOOR POUL	NTER PAUL VILLPLIRES CHARGER P.OPS SHOPH CHARGER		*	"	•		5	s .	1	1								1

			Com	munity Consultations
	tendance Sheet			
Da	ite: <u>RC /10/2009</u>			Place: Katker
	****************************			Community A
S. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks
1.	Rabi ul Ala	am Tranks white	- Rabiuls	Henr.
2.	MARUJNAN	4 21 BSUIS BALAN	Mar and	3
3.	IVaragean of Se	, PV93381 SATT	J- Jaroyan GAS	h
4.	Bidhon Makin .	les mon -	9	
5.	Asmazon 2170	No Ca Prisace	urt	
6.	२४ मेरन 121	De ry	<i>d</i>	
7.	Benelowerhow	MAN CURICUM BUN		
З.	Mand. La.	Amprol-		
9.	Azishomal	- mint	8	
10	Relationshing	× 1.1	-	
	Randmarch	no with in S.		-
				-

Community Consultations

Attendance Sheet

Date: 20/10/09

.....

Place: Kakrabon Community Hall

S. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks
1.	Pulin Kame	red arky		
2.	\$ monto 500	the second s		
3.	Gowangsch	sale		
4.	Pata	Øre.		
5.	21 -1 50	Im		
6.	Ramodal D	05.		
7.	Ramodlal De AVN7 769	hadrono		
8.	ansomburg	hat		
9.	PrearSonsit	pcb		
10,	manik zaha			
11	Manil 30tha Netoi D	estry		
12	Dueps	onho		
13	Anil Ch. &	2Và		_
14	8(m; 32m			

Community Consultations

Attendance Sheet

Date: 22/10/2009

Place: G. P. office, Mohanthog

S. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks
1.	Subal Ch. Das	Prachan	Fills	
2.	Sinpshash	upa-prodon	Doztro	
3.	Rakhallhobey	Contraction of the second	Ray.	
4,	26292020	11 11		The second s
5.	Sanjit Singha	11 21	Samp 21110109	
6.	Sujit. Ch. Thosh-	11 11		
7.	87733237	27 21 BURN	-	
8.	mathusui	proxod		
9.	Orgen 43	81+ Dotrong.		
to	Amar Saha	30/20 2013-	**************************************	
11	Kho Kom mich	Khokom mich		
12	- Subosh Shiel	/www.		
13	BUST ONAT	6/ 30000		
14.	Pumima sakler Da	P. W. D. Melayhur	Con Die	

parachardor

Community Consultations

0.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks
-	Angeligactionspec	upa, preadhac. suddhalt g/P	drave -	
	Hornors	Res -		
1	Ramani Vinila 23	5 Agriculia	Brath 23/10/09	
	3 mit 5m	Kon - Bisne	the second s	
	Sanjut Saha	- Bisness	Contraction of the second s	ergelekter och som og de som en s
	APBIEne 2 Jit Da	> Bisnes	3	
	Bismajih Das		Bary 10/09	
	Caltan Qas.	Binnerich		
	Bijoy Kr. AN	Service.	MM231×103	
0	Subal Chande		- Ous:	÷
		info	231101009	
	Suballhour	she total	231 lalbq	

	tendance Sheet te: 24/10/2007			Place: Public
S. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Janjuni Remarks
1.	Mishad Mich G.P.			
2.	Sceadbh Belon			
3.	Ashi Bardhon	TSCalars-		
4.	Areau on Ch &	p 1		
5.	Clonesh Sha	Que ar	Wish	Tom Truck
6.	Rasavarda Raha	- 00 -	Alala-	
7.	Minte Auga	11C. Agent	MEUST	
8.	Allalimelar	July Blances		
9.	Barkery	Steph		
10 :	Harie naray	on sas.		2
	4			

	rte:	H		Place: Pi-6	licht
S. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks	
1.	Rustom Ahamed.				
2.	odacha	do		1911 and 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	
3.	Jayanda Dan	de			
4.	50 Jan 120mar son	*			
5.	Roy Will	-			_
5.	Samue Das.			4	
7.	Dilip Das				
3.	Abhizithowday	/			
).	PRPack Barthan		*/************************************		
	Abre Taken.				
	MAN 30 or WYS				
	Swapan Chales			-	

	e: 2,0/10/2,009			Place: G., P. Off Khilpard
S. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks
1.	Sogal cushi	Souper	Sayaccusud	ſ
2.	Remjofsukas. 8.	1	-Brite Bog	
3.	\$133/00	3/20101	077-180	
4.	Monilist. De	07.1727321	- Amileth	ince
5.	Md. Abul Kash		Acasen	
6.	Nandan saho	and the second second second second second	Mand ansah	n
7.	-2003-31231	A I should be had a start of the last of t	1 26 4 3 र	10-
8.	wells the fic	50662 orantia	38 सीन 34	-
9.	SX yo mal en la	2029 80A	Stylemue	s sec
10	Scherauber Dob math.	adamisy.	Like dra Det	math
21	Uniter par	- Yoran Children -	(अगडलाभूभ	fates
12	1986 in 830 833	BALES SULLISS		
13	PinteckinSala	mo um ann	-Pinter Kr. Sen	~
14	Vatal recold	Gorcey SORP	Nator Aces	21/1

- 17 solori org 3 18. And Raujan Mayunda, Pradbar, Khilfferra Gran facturet BRCSNESS of store

@ Pinko mojum de J.

	endance Sheet te: 25/10/09			Place: Prurbe G. P. Of
s. No.	Name	Designation / Occupation	Signature	Remarks
1.	Hopm akikosbery	UP Procelhin'	A2511013	
2.	BardunerSorkos		Dolloge	
3.	5131 37: 5,320	B House wike	23110109	
۱.	C'DN13	Farmer		
i.	70013/7115	Howewite		Children of the second s
5.	भी अल्हाद जिने के कि	Daylabour		
ť. «	िप्यान स्वहार	Carpenter		
3.	Redip W. Low	h.R.s	12h	3
7.	Layman ch. Ha	Eay labour		
101	DEnest Houstika	G.P. Member.	Ittla.	(4.
11.	Pymima saklabas	P.W.D. Moleyhw.	25/11/09	_

Road name				
SI. No.	Name of Person	Occupation	Remarks of Attendants	
1.	(STIS ON MONTREA	Day Diver		and wood
2.	21 oriTSIA07	11 #	-	
3.	Siga mm	11 (1		buckered met.
4.	Albred Kallason	2 11		A. harlas
5.	antora Ento	<i>H L</i> 1		216/20233
6.	We we made and an	11 14		
7.	SUSTAS MOLENCO	NJ 7)		201052
8.	PULLE MELLE	. u u		
9.	Presto A26K	ti V		
10.	64 UENY 40 BLAPY	y . w		
11.	Siddek Merch	17 V		
12.	APTON GLAST	17 XI		
13.	Neerof thotes	1/ //		
14.	FRANC CIDHIC	th 11		
15.	Level to Phy Eak	-011 11		
16.	Kuis Buistan milale	V \		
17.		"		
18.				
19.	-			
20.				
21.				
22.				
23.	÷			
24.				
25.				
26.				
27.				
28.				
29.				
30.		and the second second second		

-

Road name	Name of Person	Occupation	Remarks of	Signature
SI. No.	Name of Person	Occupation	Attendants of	agnature
1.	Chondonia Des (Sorcharc)			Chandage
2.	Anjali Bkoumiklowiko		-	Angali
З.	1211 Mathere			Amali
4.	অন্দ্র রা দার			VAR SI
5.	Bilva Dog sorkar			13-1-Va
6.	2011 (3) (200			2-2-51
7.	Somerals			Sima
8.	921254 your Name Sultana	Fishery		P2022M
9.	Nahid Sultana			Nahid
10.	Delinani dus	Fi shary		dollin
11.	Rila Chardelher	11		Rila cherry
12.	Rillo chowdhuy Jameena Deetta			Jamuna (
13.	SAR ER LALAN			BARRE
14.	न्युष्ठ ५७	10 B		438 100
15.	143			ENS/NO
16.	I and and factor that a			6 20 EN
17.	to over an for the land			1 miller
18.	करिनी			4255
19.				1
20.				
21.				
22.				
23.				
24.				
25.				
26.	-			
27.				
28.				
29.	-			

COMPARISON BETWEEN LA ACT, NRRP AND ADB INVOLUNTARY RESETTLEMENT SAFEGUARDS

				-	
S. No	ADB Safeguard Requirement	Land Acquisition Act 1894	NRRP, 2007	Remarks, and provisions in NRRP	Measures to bridge the Gap
	Objectives				
1	Avoid involuntary resettlement wherever feasible	Х	~		-
2	If unavoidable, minimize involuntary resettlement by exploring project and design alternatives	X	V		-
3	To enhance, or at least restore, the livelihoods of all displaced persons in real terms relative to pre-project levels	X	~		-
4	To improve the standards of living of the displaced poor and other vulnerable groups.	Х	√		-
	Policy Principles				
5	Screen the project early on to identify past, present, and future involuntary resettlement impacts and risks.	x	~	While the policy does not specify any requirement for screening of the project at an early stage for resettlement impacts and risks, the process for resettlement planning is defined.	Screening of all sub-projects in line with the IR checklist of ADB, towards enabling identification of the potential resettlement impacts and associated risks.
6	Determine the scope of resettlement planning through a survey and/or census of displaced persons, including a gender analysis, specifically related to resettlement impacts and risks	x	~	Clause 23. (1) After completion of baseline survey and census of the affected families under section 21, and assessment of the requirement of land for resettlement under section 22, the Administrator for Rehabilitation and Resettlement shall prepare a draft scheme or plan for the rehabilitation and resettlement of the affected families after consultation with the representatives of the affected families including women and the representative of the requiring body.	-
7	Carryout consultations with affected persons, host communities and concerned NGOs. Inform all displaced persons of their entitlements and resettlement options	Х	~	Clause 10 (ii) hold consultation with the affected persons while formulating a rehabilitation and resettlement scheme or plan;	In addition to the consultations with the affected population, the framework includes provisions for information dissemination about the project including the entitlement and resettlement options to the affected persons.
8	Establish grievance redressal mechanism	x	~	Clause 14.—provides for appointment by the appropriate Government of an ombudsman for time bound disposal of grievances, etc.	Given that the Resettlement Impacts are not envisaged to be significant, a project level GRM is included in the RP.
9	Where involuntary resettlement impacts and risks are highly complex and sensitive,	Х	✓	Clause 4.—seeks to provide for social impact assessment study in certain cases in the proposed	Social Impact Assessment, awareness campaigns, and social preparation phase will be done for any

S. No	ADB Safeguard Requirement	Land Acquisition Act 1894	NRRP, 2007	Remarks, and provisions in NRRP	Measures to bridge the Gap
	Objectives				
	compensation and resettlement decisions should be preceded by a social preparation phase.			affected areas taking into consideration the impact that the project will have on public and community properties etc., and specify the ameliorative measures.	projects with significant impacts.
10	Improve or restore the livelihoods of all displaced persons through (i) land-based resettlement strategies (ii) prompt replacement of assets with access to assets of equal or higher value, (iii) prompt compensation at full replacement cost for assets that cannot be restored, and (iv) additional revenues and services through benefit sharing schemes where possible.	x	×	Clause 36 provides for the option of land based resettlement strategies	Structure to be compensated at replacement cost without depreciation
11	If there is relocation, secured tenure to relocation land, better housing at resettlement sites with comparable access to employment and production opportunities, integration of resettled persons economically and socially into their host communities, and extension of project benefits to host communities; provide transitional support and development assistance, such as land development, credit facilities, training, or employment opportunities; and (iii) civic infrastructure and community services, as required.		×	Clause 30 – specifies that in case of involuntary displacement of less than four hundred families en masse in plain areas, or less than two hundred families en masse in tribal or hilly areas, DDP blocks or areas mentioned in the Fifth Schdule or Sixth Schedule to the Constitution, all affected families shall be provided basic infrastructural facilities and amenities at the resettlement area as per the norms specified by the appropriate Government	Not envisaged under the proposed project. Therefore, the provision of alternative resettlement sites is not provided for in the framework.
12	Improve the standards of living of the displaced poor and other vulnerable groups, including women, to at least national minimum standards	X	×	Clause 46. The project authorities shall, at their cost, arrange for annuity policies that will pay a pension for life to the vulnerable affected persons (such as the disabled, destitute, orphans, widows, unmarried girls, abandoned women, or persons above fifty years of age), of such amount as may be prescribed by the appropriate Government subject to a minimum of five hundred rupees per month.	

S. No	ADB Safeguard Requirement	Land Acquisition Act 1894	NRRP, 2007	Remarks, and provisions in NRRP	Measures to bridge the Gap
	Objectives				
13	If land acquisition is through negotiated settlement, ensure that those people who enter into negotiated settlements will maintain the same or better income and livelihood status	X	~		Not envisaged
14	Ensure that displaced persons without titles to land or any recognizable legal rights to land are eligible for resettlement assistance and compensation for loss of non-land assets.	X	✓ 	Clause 3 provides that non-titleholders who has been residing or engaged in any trade, business, occupation or vocation continuously for a period of not less than five years in the affected area preceding the date of declaration of the affected area, and who has been deprived of earning his livelihood or alienated wholly or substantially from the main source of his trade, business, occupation or vocation because of the acquisition of land in the affected area or being involuntarily displaced for any other reason;	
15	Prepare a resettlement plan / indigenous peoples plan elaborating on displaced persons' entitlements, the income and livelihood restoration strategy, institutional arrangements, monitoring and reporting framework, budget, and time-bound implementation schedule.	X	~	Clause 23 provides for the preparation and content of the Resettlement Plan to be prepared.	-
16		X	x	The approved scheme or plan for rehabilitation and resettlement shall be published in the Official Gazette by the appropriate Government	In addition to the publishing of the approved resettlement plan, the RF includes provision for disclosure of the various documents pertaining to RP implementation.
10	Include the full costs of measures proposed in the resettlement plan and indigenous peoples plan as part of project's costs and benefits. For a project with significant involuntary resettlement impacts and / or indigenous peoples plan, consider implementing the involuntary resettlement component of the project as a stand-alone	X	✓	Clause 28—seeks to make it the responsibility of the requiring body to provide requisite funds to the Administrator for Rehabilitation and Resettlement for implementation of the scheme/plan for affected families; the requiring body to deposit 1/3rd cost of the scheme or plan with the Administrator for Rehabilitation and Resettlement on finalization of the scheme or plan.	-

S. No	ADB Safeguard Requirement	Land Acquisition Act 1894	NRRP, 2007	Remarks, and provisions in NRRP	Measures to bridge the Gap
	Objectives				
	operation.				
17	Pay compensation and provide other resettlement entitlements before physical or economic displacement. Implement the resettlement plan under close supervision throughout project implementation.	x	~	Clause 29— seeks to provide that the compensation award, full payment of compensation etc. shall precede actual displacement of affected families where land acquisition is on behalf of a requiring body.	
18	Monitor and assess resettlement outcomes, their impacts on the standards of living of displaced persons, and whether the objectives of the resettlement plan have been achieved by taking into account the baseline conditions and the results of resettlement monitoring. Disclose monitoring reports.	x	×	Clause 10 - The formulation, execution and monitoring of the rehabilitation and resettlement plan shall vest in the Administrator for Rehabilitation and Resettlement.	

Terms of References (TOR) for Resettlement and Rehabilitation NGO/Agency

A. Project Background

1. Government of India has applied for assistance from Asian Development Bank towards the cost of North East State Roads Investment Program (NESRIP). This Program will assist the six states of the region to develop their road network and establish reliable road connectivity to the national and sub regional road networks. In Tripura, the road section of Udaipur to Melaghar (20.28 kilometers) has been included for widening and improvement under Tranche II of this Project. The existing road will be converted to a 2-lane road. The Project road lies in West Tripura and South Tripura.

2. All possible steps have been taken to minimize land acquisition and demolition of structures so as to reduce adverse impacts on people settled along the road. Based on the GOI National Policy on Resettlement and Rehabilitation (R&R) Policy and ADB Safeguard Policy Statement (2009), PWD, Government of Tripura has prepared a Resettlement Plan (RP) for the Udaipur-Melaghar contract package to deal with the involuntary resettlement impacts of the Project. The RP has been prepared based on census and baseline socio-economic surveys conducted in the affected districts. To assist in the implementation of the RP for this road Package, PWD Tripura now invites the services of an eligible non-government organizations (NGOs) and/or Agency.

3. Tripura PWD Roads intends to utilize part of the proceeds of this loan for engaging services of a non-government organization (NGO) and/or Agency, to assist in the implementation of the Resettlement Plan (RP) developed for a 20.28 kilometer road (Udaipur to Melaghar Road) in Gomati district of Tripura. The services of the NGO and/or Agency shall include providing assistance to the Project Implementation Unit (PIU), NESRIP with grassroot skills and capacity for effective field implementation of the RP.

B. Objective of the Assignment

4. Involuntary resettlement is a sensitive issue and strong experience in R&R matters along with community related skills will be required in order to build a good rapport with the affected communities and facilitate satisfactory R&R of the affected persons (APs). An experienced and well-qualified NGO/agency in this field will be engaged to assist the EA in the effective, timely and efficient implementation of the RP for this Package.

C. Scope of Work - Generic

5. The NGO/agency will play the role of a facilitator and will work as a link between the Project Implementation Unit (PIU) within PWD and the affected community. Further the NGO/agency will inform the APs on aspects relating to R&R measures for implementation of the Project and ensure proper utilization of various compensations and assistance extended to the APs under the R&R entitlement package.

6. The NGO/Agency shall be responsible for the following, according to the Resettlement Plan:

- a) Developing R&R information campaigns and community participation;
- b) Assisting the APs, especially from vulnerable groups, in resettlement and rehabilitation, including redressing grievances, and coordination with local authorities and other relevant institutions.
- c) Calculating detailed costs of income restoration and resettlement components;
- d) Updating the database of APs and their entitlements for implementation and monitoring purposes.

e) Monitoring and evaluating progress and achievement of resettlement objectives.

D. Scope of Work – Specific

7. **Administrative Responsibilities of the NGO/Agency**: The administrative responsibilities of the NGO/Agency will include:

- Working in co-ordination with the Resettlement Officer (RO) in the PIU and Executive Engineers
- The NGO/Agency shall help to promote good working relationships between the APs and the PIU, particularly the RO. This will be achieved through regular meetings with both the RO and the APs. Meetings with the RO will be held at least fortnightly, and meetings with the APs will be held monthly, during the entire duration of the assignment. The NGO/Agency shall document all meetings and decisions taken.
- Preparing monthly action plans with targets in consultation with the RO.
- Assisting the RO in carrying out the implementation of the RP;
- Updating the database of APs and their entitlements;
- In consultation with the APs, the NGO/Agency shall prepare micro-level plans indicating the categories of entitlement, alternative livelihood options, and relevant institutions for obtaining additional training and support. Women's perceptions are important to be incorporated in the development of these plans.
- Reporting to the RO on a monthly and quarterly basis. The report should include physical and financial progress, both in quantitative and qualitative terms. The report should prominently feature the problems and issues addressed and tackled with the APs and the solutions found. The report should have a separate chapter on women's issues, their problems and what has been done (within the framework of the RP) to ensure their participation in decision-making as well as the options made available to them to access economic opportunities, marketing and credit. The report should clearly indicate the number of field visits made by the NGO/Agency staff and the outcome of consultations with people.

8. **Responsibilities for Implementation of the RP:** In general, the Project Implementation Unit (PIU), headed by a Project Director (PD), will be responsible to address and manage social issues. The role of PIU will be responsible for overall implementation of R&R activities as mentioned in the Resettlement Plan. The PIU will have a Resettlement Officer for duration of resettlement activities and a local NGO/agency for the effective, timely and efficient execution of the RP.

9. The key tasks of the selected NGO/Agency will be the following:

a. Act as community liaison during the compilation of the Inventory of Loss (IoL)

 The NGO/Agency will participate as an independent monitor in the compilation of the Inventory of Loss based on the Resettlement Census conducted and any required updates caused by a change in the technical design of the alignment.

- During the identification and verification of the eligible AP's, the NGO/Agency shall ensure that each of them are contacted and consulted either individually or in groups. It would be imperative to carry out consultations with the vulnerable groups, which include the following:
 - Those who are Below Poverty Line (BPL)
 - Those who belong to the Scheduled Castes
 - Those who belong to the Scheduled Tribes
 - Female Headed Households
 - Elderly
 - Disabled Persons

b. Computerization of AP Database and Files

10. Based on the identification and verification of the eligible AP's, the NGO/Agency would be responsible to create a computerized database of the AP's, their socio-economic profiles, vulnerability, the specific impact of the project on them, entitlements due to them as per the Resettlement Plan and other assistance available to APs either from government or as per the RP. The NGO/Agency would update this database, as and when required.

c. Information Campaign and Feedback

11. The NGO/Agency will be responsible for planning and implementing a public information campaign to disseminate information among the affected community. In particular, the NGO/Agency would be responsible to disseminate information regarding the following:

- The Project, its components, anticipated benefits and impacts on the community
- The Resettlement and Rehabilitation Policy and the Entitlements Matrix laid down in the RP
- Mechanisms and arrangements for availing their compensation and other assistances
- The role of NGO in assisting them in availing their entitlements, assistance in proper utilization of the same as well as mechanisms to voice their grievances and concerns.
- The progress of the RP implementation

12. The information campaign would include measures like distribution of information booklets, leaflets, notices and other Information, Education and Communication (IEC) materials among the AP's and the general community. The NGO/Agency would be additionally responsible in assisting the PIU in holding consultations with the affected communities especially with the vulnerable sections and recording the outcomes of the same.

d. Accompanying and Representing the APs at the Grievance Redress Committee (GRC) Meetings

- The NGO/Agency shall nominate a suitable staff member to be a member of the Grievance Redress Committees for the respective contract packages.
- The NGO/Agency shall help the APs in filling the grievance application and also in clearing their doubts about the required procedures.

- The NGO/Agency shall record the grievance and bring it to the notice of the GRCs within seven days of receipt of the grievance from the APs. It shall submit a draft resolution with respect to the particular grievance of the AP, suggesting multiple solutions, if possible, and deliberate on the same in the GRC meeting through the NGO representative in the GRC.
- The NGO/Agency shall accompany the APs to the GRC meeting on the decided date, help the AP to express his/her grievance in a formal manner if requested by the GRC and again inform the APs of the decisions taken by the GRC within 3 days of receiving a decision from the GRC. (The time frame for the GRC to take a decision is 21 days).

e. Assist the AP's in availing their Entitlements and Proper Utilization of the same.

13. The NGO/Agency would be primarily involved in assisting the AP's in availing their entitlements apart from information dissemination about the procedures for the same.

14. In case the affected community wishes to relocate to a different site, the NGO/Agency would assist the community in identifying such relocation sites and facilitate the process for their resettlement in coordination with the PIU and Resettlement Officer (RO).

15. The NGO/Agency will also play a key role in providing income restoration assistance to the affected households losing their primary sources of livelihood/income as a result of the Project. The NGO/Agency shall undertake consultations with the affected households on finalizing the skills training and also undertake a market feasibility survey to ascertain the feasibility of the skills being imparted to those affected. Based on the outputs of these, the NGO/Agency will plan out income restoration activities as per it. Emphasis will be paid to vulnerable groups such as female headed households, SC & ST households, poor, landless, etc.

16. In addition, the NGO/Agency would also be responsible for liaison with the various government departments, in order to create a link between the existing government schemes and the affected groups.

f. Tracking and Recording the Disbursement of Compensation and Other Assistances

17. The NGO/Agency would be responsible for keeping a track of the disbursements of the entitlements so that no eligible AP is left unpaid of his/her rightful dues. This would include maintaining the accounts and records of the progress of the disbursement of the entitlements in a systematic and accurate manner as deemed fit. Further, the NGO shall permit duly authorised representatives of the PIU/GRC/ADB/GoA to inspect and make an audit of all such documents, accounts, records in connection with payments made as per the RP.

g. Preparation of Progress Reports

18. The NGO/Agency would be responsible to prepare all reports and documents related to the tasks enumerated in the above section especially regarding verification of the disbursement of entitlements (which is a precondition to the commencement of the civil

works) as per the RP on a monthly basis and submitted to the PIU. The report would specifically include the following:

- A clear and complete account of tasks performed
- Work planned for the next reporting period;
- Status of funding and expenditure;
- Identification of any problems encountered or anticipated that would affect the completion of the project within the time and money constraints set forth in the agreement, together with recommended solution to such problems.
- Minutes of the meetings of the Grievances Redress Committee.

19. It is imperative to note that all such reports are the sole and exclusive property of the PWD Tripura/PIU and cannot be used for any other purposes by the NGO/Agency without the prior written consent by the same (though they can keep copies of it).

D. Selection criteria, Staffing, Implementation Plan

20. The NGO/Agency to be selected for the tasks must have relevant experience for resettlement planning and implementation. Specifically, key quality criteria include:

- Experience in direct implementation of community programs in local, similar and/or other states;
- Availability of trained staff speaking the local language/s;
- Competence, transparency and accountability based on neutral evaluations, internal reports, and audited accounts;
- Integrity and experience to represent vulnerable groups against abuses and demonstrable mandate to represent local groups;
- Demonstrated experience in computerizing and managing project-related databases;
- Experience in socio-economic survey, community project planning, monitoring and evaluation; and
- Experience in working with local communities, providing technical information in an understandable way, and representing the concerns of local people in a constructive manner to government agencies in order to prevent misunderstanding and problems.

21. The NGO/Agency chosen will have to agree to the terms and conditions under the RP. The following staffing provision may be necessary for smooth and effective implementation of the RP within the time frame:

•	Team Leader/Social Worker (1 no)	:	12 Man Months
•	Community Organizers/Workers (2 nos.)	:	12 Man Months each

22. **Team Leader** must have a university degree in Social sciences or sociology or its equivalent and have at least 3-5 years experience in working with indigenous people/local communities, on rural participatory appraisals and or social sector activities with communities in Tripura. The consultant's demonstrated work experience in the project areas, stakeholder consultation, public awareness campaigns, promotion of livelihood activities and training to communities will be given additional weight. The consultant should be conversant in local language and English and also have extensive experience in working with Government departments. Report writing skills and working knowledge on computers are a must.

23. **Community organizers/workers** shall have either a university degree or diploma with at least 2-3 years experience in working with communities on various social development programs in Tripura. Working and speaking knowledge of local language is a must and English would be advantageous.

24. Interested NGO, academic institution, or registered agency should submit proposal for the work with a brief statement of the approach, methodology, and field plan to carry out the tasks. The proposal should include:

- Relevant information concerning previous experience working with communities and government on similar project implementation and preparation of reports.
- The proposal should also include samples of information brochures, AP files etc. to be used during the implementation phase.
- The field plan must address training and mobilization of staff
- Full CVs (2-3 pages) of key personnel.
- The agency must be an established organization registered with the Government.

E. Time Frame

25. The NGO would be hired from the fourth quarter of the year 2012 to initiate the RP implementation until the last quarter of 2012 (12 months) when all activities/ payments related to RP implementation would be completed. Work may be full or part time, continuous or occasional depending on progress and the needs of the resettlement and land acquisition process during its various stages.

TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR EXPERT / NGO FOR MONITORING OF IMPLEMENTATION OF RESETTLEMENT PLAN

I. Project description

The proposed North East State Roads Investment Program (NESRIP) is a part of MDONER's¹ initiative to bring the North Eastern Region into the mainstream of development. The project will assist the eight states of the region to develop their road network and establish reliable road connectivity to the national and sub regional road networks and thus facilitate regional integration and trade flows. The project will also support capacity building of road sector institutions at the state level and contribute to effective and efficient management of the road assets.

The Project road TR02 Udaipur to Melaghar, which is 20.28 kilometers in length takes off at *Udaipur* village from National Highway 44 at Km 51.200 (from Agartala) and ends at *Melaghar* at the junction with another MDR, joining Melaghar to NH-44 and further leading to Agartala.

The Project includes a provision for monitoring of the implementation of Resettlement Plan (RP) by an external expert/NGO. Therefore, the Project Implementation Unit (PIU) for this project, requires services of a experienced individual/NGO for monitoring of RP implementation.

II. Scope of work - Generic

Based on the monitoring information collected by the Project Implementation Unit (PIU) / Executing Agency (EA), the responsibility of the Expert / NGO will be-

- To review and verify the progress in resettlement implementation as outlined in the RP and to assess the implementation of RP measures are on course to achieving its objectives;
- To monitor the effectiveness and efficiency of PIU and NGO in RP implementation.
- To assess whether resettlement objectives, particularly livelihoods and living standards of the Displaced Persons (DPs)² have been restored or enhanced;
- To assess the efforts of PIU & NGO in ensuring 'Community Participation' with particular attention on participation of vulnerable groups namely (a) those who are below the poverty line (BPL); (b) those who belong to scheduled castes (SC), scheduled tribes (ST); (c) female-headed households (FHH); (d) elderly and (e) disabled persons.
- To assess resettlement efficiency, effectiveness, impact and sustainability, drawing both on policies and practices and to suggest any corrective measures, if necessary.
- To review the project impacts on Indigenous People and groups and assess the effectiveness of the mitigation measures adopted;

Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region (MDONER) was set up in September 2001 to act as the nodal department of the Central Government to deal with matters pertaining to socio-economic development of the eight States of North East India.

² 'The displaced persons are those who are physically displaced (relocation, loss of residential land, or loss of shelter) and/or economically displaced (loss of land, assets, access to assets, income sources, or means of livelihoods) as a result of (i) involuntary acquisition of land, or (ii) involuntary restrictions on land use or on access to legally designated parks and protected areas' (Source: ADB Safeguard Policy Statement, 2009).

III. Scope of work- Specific

The independent monitoring Expert/NGO will be involved in ongoing monitoring of the resettlement efforts by the EA/PIU. The Expert/NGO will review and verify the monitoring data collected by the EA/PIU. The major tasks expected from the external monitor are:

1. To develop specific monitoring indicators for undertaking monitoring for implementation of Resettlement Plans.

2. Review results of internal monitoring and verify claims through random checking at the field level to assess whether resettlement objectives have been generally met.

3. Identify the strengths and weaknesses of the resettlement objectives and approaches, implementation strategies.

To review and verify the progress in resettlement implementation of subproject on a sample basis and prepare quarterly reports for the EA/PIU and ADB.

5. Evaluate and assess the adequacy of compensation / assistances given to the DPs and the livelihood opportunities and incomes as well as the quality of life of DPs of project-induced changes.

6. To evaluate and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the consultative process with affected DPs, particularly those vulnerable, including the adequacy and effectiveness of grievance procedures and legal redress available to the affected parties, and dissemination of information about these.

IV. Time Frame and Reporting

The independent monitoring expert / NGO will be responsible for monitoring of the R&R activities carried out by EA / PIU and will submit quarterly review directly to ADB and determine whether resettlement goals have been achieved, more importantly whether livelihoods and living standards have been restored/ enhanced and suggest suitable recommendations for improvement.

V. Qualifications

The independent monitoring expert / NGO should have significant experience in resettlement policy analysis and RP implementation. Candidates with degrees in anthropology, sociology, and development studies will be preferred.

Interested expert / NGO should submit proposal for the work with relevant information concerning previous experience on monitoring of resettlement implementation and preparation of reports. In case of expert the detailed CV should be submitted providing the details of the previous experience in monitoring of resettlement related activities. In case of NGO, the profile of NGO along with full CVs of monitors to be engaged must be submitted.

VI. Budget and Logistics

The proposal - both technical and financial - should be submitted and the budget should include all cost and any other logistics details necessary for resettlement monitoring. Additional expense claims whatsoever outside the budget will not be entertained.